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PART I
DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Throughout this Form 10-K, we make a number of “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. As the words
imply, these are statements about future plans, objectives, beliefs, and expectations that might or might not happen in the future, as contrasted with historical information.
Forward-looking statements are based on assumptions that we believe are reasonable, but by their very nature are subject to a wide range of risks.
Accordingly, in this Form 10-K, we may say something like,
“We expect that future revenue associated with the Process Equipment Group will be influenced by order backlog.”
That is a forward-looking statement, as indicated by the word “expect” and by the clear meaning of the sentence.
Other words that could indicate we are making forward-looking statements include:
intend

believe

plan

expect

may

goal

would

become

pursue

estimate

will

forecast

continue

could

targeted

encourage

promise

improve

progress

potential

should

This is not an exhaustive list, but is intended to give you an idea of how we try to identify forward-looking statements. The absence of any of these words, however, does not
mean that the statement is not forward-looking.
Here is the key point: Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance, and our actual results could differ materially from those set forth in any
forward-looking statements. Any number of factors, many of which are beyond our control, could cause our performance to differ significantly from what is described in the
forward-looking statements.

For a discussion of factors that could cause actual results to differ from those contained in forward-looking statements, see the discussions under the heading “Risk Factors” in
Item 1A of this Form 10-K. We assume no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements.
Item 1.

Business

In this section of the Form 10-K, we provide you a basic understanding of our Company, our reportable segments, the products we manufacture and sell, how we distribute
our products, with whom we compete, and the key inputs to production. We also provide you background on industry trends, regulatory matters, key patents and trademarks
important to our business, and an explanation of our business strategies. Finally, we provide you a brief background on our executive officers so that you can understand
their experience and qualifications.
Further quantitative information about the business is set forth in Note 13 to our financial statements included in Part II, Item 8, of this Form 10-K.
GENERAL
Hillenbrand, Inc. is a global diversified industrial company that makes and sells premium business-to-business products and services for a wide variety of industries. We
pursue profitable growth and meaningful dividends for our shareholders by leveraging our leading brands, robust cash generation capabilities, and strong core competencies.
Hillenbrand has two segments: the Process Equipment Group and Batesville®. The Process Equipment Group has multiple market-leading brands of process and material
handling equipment and systems serving a wide variety of industries across the globe. Batesville is a recognized leader in the North American death care industry.
Hillenbrand was incorporated on November 1, 2007, in the state of Indiana and began trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “HI” on April 1, 2008.
“Hillenbrand,” “the Company,” “we,” “us,” “our,” and similar words refer to Hillenbrand, Inc. and its subsidiaries.
Although Hillenbrand has been a public company for more than five years, the businesses operated by Hillenbrand have been in place for decades. Batesville performs
several critical roles within the portfolio. It serves as the Company’s core cash-generating operation
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by providing strong annual operating cash flows. As the source of Hillenbrand’s strong core competencies, including Lean, strategy management, and talent development, it
provides talent to imbed these core competencies in acquired companies.
Batesville’s performance has allowed management to invest in acquisitions that provide diversification, with a focus on companies with growth opportunities and an ability to
benefit from Hillenbrand’s strong core competencies. Over the past three years, Hillenbrand has completed three major acquisitions of companies that now make up our
Process Equipment Group: K-Tron International, Inc. (“K-Tron”) in April 2010, Rotex Global, LLC (“Rotex”) in August 2011, and Coperion Capital GmbH (“Coperion”) in
December 2012. Each of these companies has a long profitable history and multiple pathways for revenue and earnings growth. See Note 3 to our financial statements
included in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K for more information on our acquisitions.
Hillenbrand’s strong, steady cash flow since becoming a public company in 2008 has also provided the foundation to pay a meaningful dividend to shareholders. The annual
dividend has increased each year, growing from $0.73 per share in 2008 to $0.78 per share in 2013.
We believe we can most effectively continue to increase shareholder value by leveraging our strong financial position and core competencies to continue to build a global
diversified industrial company with strong positions in multiple growth-oriented industries. Our long-term value creation strategy consists of:
·

Growing revenue and income within our existing platforms through organic growth and targeted acquisitions: Each operating company within our two business
platforms has specific organic growth strategies and targets. Our operating companies may also grow by executing select “add-on” acquisitions to supplement their
organic growth strategies. They are committed to achieving superior operational performance by employing Hillenbrand’s three core competencies:
·
·
·

·

Lean: continuously improving quality and customer satisfaction, increasing effectiveness and operational efficiency, driving costs down, and developing lean
leaders;
Talent development: successfully recruiting and intentionally developing, retaining, and deploying talent in the organization for improved execution and
results; and
Strategy management: overseeing the development, execution, and continuous assessment of strategic direction, serving as the basis for annual and longterm business planning.

Using our strong cash flow and debt capacity to selectively invest in additional strategic acquisitions: We will focus on companies in the industrial sector that we
believe will benefit from our core competencies and that meet our financial, cultural, and business model criteria.

PROCESS EQUIPMENT GROUP
Over the past three years, Hillenbrand has completed three major acquisitions of companies that now make up the Process Equipment Group: K-Tron in April 2010, Rotex in
August 2011, and Coperion in December 2012. The Process Equipment Group designs, engineers, manufactures, markets, and services differentiated process and material
handling equipment and systems for a wide variety of industries, including plastics, processed food, chemicals, potash, industrial minerals, power generation, and coal mining.
The Process Equipment Group uses its strong applications and process engineering expertise to solve the needs of customers. Its highly engineered capital equipment and
systems offerings require after-market service and/or parts replacement, providing an opportunity for ongoing revenue at attractive margins. Service and replacement parts
represent approximately one-third of the Process Equipment Group revenue.
We believe that long-term growth for this segment is driven by megatrends such as a rapidly growing middle class in China and India and a growing global population,
resulting in rising demand for products sold by many of the end markets the Process Equipment Group serves. While overall demand for these products is expected to increase
over the long run, we expect demand to shift from time to time. These shifts can be attributed to the cyclicality of these industries, as demonstrated in the proppants market in
2012, or by long-term capacity expansions, as demonstrated currently with the building and expansion of polyolefin plants.
The Process Equipment Group is diversified by end market and further diversification of these end markets is an important element of its strategy. Currently, projects in the
plastics industry represent about half of the Process Equipment Group’s sales; however, this ratio is expected to decline due to initiatives to grow in target end markets such as
processed food, aluminum, and fertilizer. Revenue in the Process Equipment Group is fairly balanced between North America, Asia, and Europe.
The acquisition of Coperion is the largest in Hillenbrand’s history and represents an important step in the execution of strategic plans to further diversify Hillenbrand and
accelerate the growth of the Process Equipment Group. The integration of Coperion within the Process Equipment Group will continue to be a key initiative for the next 12
months. Combining product offerings to provide a more
3
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complete system solution is the highest priority from an integration perspective. In addition, Hillenbrand believes leveraging Coperion’s global infrastructure will enable the
existing businesses within the Process Equipment Group to enter new global markets more quickly and expects that the Process Equipment Group’s existing strong sales
network will enhance Coperion’s expansion in North America. Finally, applying Lean and other core competencies to Coperion’s operations is expected to contribute to
improved margins and increased customer satisfaction.
Process Equipment Group: Products and Services
·

·

Compounding, Extrusion, and Material Handling Equipment
·

Compounding equipment can range from twin screw compounders for laboratory machines to high performance, high throughput large scale systems.
Customers use compounding machines for engineering plastics, masterbatch, and special applications for the plastics, food, chemical, and pharmaceutical
industries. These products are sold under the Coperion® brand.

·

Extrusion equipment can range from twin screw solutions for small modules up to large scale plants based on high-performance extruders. These turn-key
solutions provide support for the plastics, chemical, aluminum, and mineral industries. The extrusion products are sold under the Coperion ® brand.

·

Material handling equipment includes pneumatic conveying equipment for difficult-to-move materials, high-precision feeders that can operate at both very
high and very low fill rates, blenders for pellets and powders, and rotary valves, diverters and slide gate valves used for feeding, dosing, discharge, and
distribution during pneumatic conveying. The proprietary equipment is highly engineered and designed to solve the needs of customers. A variety of
industries are served including plastics, processed food, chemicals, industrial minerals, and paper. These products are sold under the Coperion® and
Coperion K-Tron TM brands.

·

Compounding, extrusion, and material handling equipment is oftentimes sold as a complete system, where strong application and process engineering
expertise is used to create a broad system solution for customers. Systems can range from a single manufacturing line to large scale plants and turnkey
systems. Larger system sales are generally fulfilled over 12 to 18 months. A certain amount of revenue for large system sales comes from third-party-sourced
products that carry only a small up-charge. As a result, margins are lower on these large system sales when compared to the rest of the business. Hillenbrand
believes that selling these complete systems provides a significant competitive advantage and increases margin dollars.

Crushers and Sizing Equipment
·

·

Screening and Separating Equipment
·

·

Crushing and sizing equipment is used to reduce the size of various materials. Pennsylvania Crusher™ and Gundlach® products are used to crush materials
related to processes in industries including power generation, mining, quarrying, glass making, salt processing, and fertilizer manufacturing. Jeffrey
Rader® products are used in industries including forest products, biomass power and energy generation, and plastics/base resin manufacturing. Jeffrey Rader
also designs and assembles complete systems to meet product specifications, including boiler feed, resource recovery, rail and truck loading/unloading, and
recycling systems.

Screening and separating equipment sorts dry, granular products based on the size of the particles being processed. This equipment is sold under the
Rotex® brand to a variety of industries including potash, urea, phosphates, chemical, agricultural, plastics, proppants, and food processing. The equipment
uses a unique patented technology based on a specific gyratory motion that allows an optimal material distribution on the screens. For example, these
machines can be used in grading sugar into various size groupings for different purposes such as table, super fine, and powdered sugar.

Replacement parts and service
·

Replacement parts and service are a major component of the Process Equipment Group business. Service engineers and technicians are located around the
globe to look after customers’ machines and systems. The parts and services division offers customers service consulting, training, maintenance and repairs,
wear and spare parts, modernization, and industrial filters. These services are a key component of each part of the Process Equipment Group business:
compounding, extrusion, and material handling equipment; crushers and sizing equipment; and screening and separation equipment.
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The Process Equipment Group sells equipment and systems throughout the world to a wide variety of industrial and engineering customers using a combination of direct sales
and a global network of independent sales representatives and distributors. Parts of the Process Equipment Group’s sales, especially in North America, are made through
independent sales representatives who are compensated by commission. In situations where a representative purchases equipment and resells it as a distributor, the product is
sold at a price net of commission, depending on the type of product sold.
Due to the nature of the Process Equipment Group’s business, equipment and systems orders are often for unique, engineered-to-order items. Therefore, the Process
Equipment Group does not typically maintain significant amounts of raw material and component stock inventory on hand at any one time, except to cover replacement part
orders. Products are either assembled and tested at Process Equipment Group facilities and then shipped to a customer’s desired location or assembled at the customer’s
desired location.
Future revenue for the Process Equipment Group is influenced by order backlog because of the lead time involved in fulfilling engineered-to-order equipment for customers.
Though backlog can be an indicator of future revenue, it does not include projects and parts orders that are booked and shipped within the same quarter. The timing of order
placement, size, extent of customization, and customer delivery dates can create fluctuations in backlog and revenue. Revenue attributable to backlog is also affected by
foreign exchange fluctuations for orders denominated in currencies other than United States (“U.S.”) dollars.
Process Equipment Group: Customers
The Process Equipment Group has customers in multiple industries, including plastics, processed food, chemicals, potash, industrial minerals, power generation, and coal
mining. These customers range from large, Fortune 500 global companies to regional and local businesses. No one customer accounted for more than 10% of Hillenbrand’s
consolidated revenue during 2013. For large or customized orders, customers generally pay a deposit and make progress payments in advance of delivery. Typically, longterm relationships are established with these customers.
Process Equipment Group: Competition
We believe the Process Equipment Group holds leading positions in key industries because of brand name recognition, design and quality of products, extensive application
and process engineering expertise, product support services, and commitment to serving the needs of customers.
The Process Equipment Group faces strong competition in the markets where they compete. Competitors range in size from small privately-held companies serving narrow

market segments or geographical areas to larger well-known global companies serving national and international markets with multiple product lines. We believe its
diversification into several industries, its base of replacement parts business, and its strong worldwide network of suppliers and dealers will allow the Process Equipment
Group to maintain leading market positions even during economic downturns.
Process Equipment Group: Raw and Component Materials
The manufacturing of the Process Equipment Group’s products involves the machining and welding of raw materials (primarily sheet metals and steel) and castings that are
assembled with other component parts that generally require particular specifications or qualifications purchased from third-party vendors. Although most of these raw
materials and components are generally available from several sources, some of these items are currently purchased from sole sources. In instances where third-party
suppliers are depended upon for outsourced products or components, there is risk of customer dissatisfaction with the quality or performance of the products sold due to
supplier failure. In addition, difficulties experienced by third-party suppliers can lead to the interruption of the ability to obtain the outsourced product and ultimately to an
inability to supply products to customers. We believe the Process Equipment Group will generally be able to continue to obtain adequate supplies of key products or
appropriate substitutes at reasonable costs.
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Process Equipment Group: Strategy
Leadership of the Process Equipment Group is focused on three strategic initiatives to drive growth:
·

·

Profitably grow top-line revenue
·

Penetrate growing end markets such as processed food, aluminum, fertilizers, and minerals by developing new products and leveraging application and
systems expertise.

·

Establish scope and scale to accelerate global growth by improving access to underpenetrated geographies such as in Brazil, Russia, India, and China; leverage
Coperion’s global footprint (29 global locations) to enable an easier access to emerging markets.

·

Leverage the Coperion acquisition by 1) integrating other Process Equipment Group equipment in Coperion systems, 2) expanding Coperion’s component
sales in North America through the successful Process Equipment Group distribution network, 3) enhancing systems capabilities, and 4) leveraging endmarket expertise to access new customers and markets.

Continued growth through acquisitions
·

·

The material handling equipment manufacturing industry tends to be fragmented both in terms of product offering and geographic reach, whereas many of the
industry’s most significant customers operate on a global basis. In pursuit of the goal of becoming the local supplier of choice for its largest national and
regional customers, the Process Equipment Group will continue to search for strategic add-on acquisition opportunities that will allow it to profitably grow the
business, primarily by either adding complementary products to its offerings, or accelerate its expansion into attractive high-growth end markets and
geographies.

Utilize Lean principles to grow revenue and increase profit
·

The Process Equipment Group continues to implement Lean principles and techniques in sales, order management, engineering, procurement, and
manufacturing to reduce lead times, improve quality and on-time delivery, and drive down costs.

BATESVILLE
Batesville® is a recognized leader in the North American death care industry, where it has been designing, manufacturing, distributing, and selling funeral service products
and solutions to licensed funeral directors operating licensed funeral homes for more than 100 years. Batesville-branded products include: burial caskets; cremation caskets,
containers, urns, and cremation vaults; selection room display fixturing for funeral homes; personalization and memorialization products and services; and web-based
applications that include funeral planning, website products, and back office software for licensed funeral homes. Batesville also develops and markets comprehensive
operational management software solutions for cemeteries under the HMIS® brand.
Batesville: Products and Services
As the needs of funeral professionals and consumers have evolved, Batesville has expanded its offerings with new products, value-added services and leading partnerships.
Today, Batesville offers its products and services to customers under four primary solutions platforms: Burial Solutions, Cremation Options®, Memorial Solutions, and
Technology Solutions. These are underpinned by expert profitability solutions designed to help funeral homes optimize their business.
·

Burial Solutions
·

The leading casket manufacturer in North America, Batesville is recognized for innovation in materials, design, and proprietary features. Batesville has been
on the forefront of casket innovation over the past 60 years — from the first mass-produced gasketed casket to the introduction of Dimensions® oversized
caskets. Batesville brand metal caskets are welded and utilize rubber gaskets and a locking bar mechanism. Batesville’s gasketed caskets are made of carbon
steel, stainless steel, copper, and bronze. Batesville premium steel caskets also employ an anode bar to help protect the casket cathodically from rust and
corrosion, a feature found only on Batesville-produced caskets. Batesville also produces and markets an expanding selection of non-gasketed steel products.
Batesville solid and veneer hardwood caskets are made from a variety of woods, which are offered in more than nine different species. Batesville veneer
caskets are manufactured using a proprietary process for veneering that allows for rounded corners and a furniture-grade finished appearance. Batesville also
manufactures and provides Marsellus® premium solid wood caskets, as well as cloth-covered and all-wood construction caskets, which are also suitable for
green burials.
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·

Cremation Options®
·

The cremation Options® business is focused on helping funeral professionals capitalize on the growing trend of cremation. In addition to a broad line of
cremation caskets, containers, and urns, Options offers training, merchandising, packaging support, and a complete line of marketing support materials to

educate funeral directors and consumers on product and service options. Cremation caskets and containers are manufactured primarily of hardwoods and
fiberboard. Batesville’s memorial urns are made from a variety of materials including bronze, acrylic, wood, cloisonné, brass, and marble. Batesville also
offers a broad selection of biodegradable and scattering urns.
·

Memorial Solutions
·

·

Batesville’s commitment to helping families honor the lives of those they love® is reflected in its growing collection of Memorial Solutions products that are
designed to enhance the funeral experience and deliver value to families long after the service is over. This collection includes both Memorial Products,
which are items that families keep after the service to help them heal and remember, and Product Personalization offerings, which are features that enable
families to customize select products to tell the unique story of their loved one during the service. Many of these solutions are proprietary to Batesville and
include durable goods such as remembrance jewelry, LifeSymbols® corners, LifeStories® display medallions and tribute panels, product engraving, and
cremation keepsakes, in addition to soft lines such as memorial stationery, FTD® flowers, and video tributes.

Technology Solutions
·

The technology solutions business is a trusted provider of technology in the death care industry and is the leading partner to well over 5,000 funeral homes
and cemeteries across North America. Batesville offers a suite of integrated, easy-to-use technology products and services, including Weblink® websites
(both standard sites and customizable sites), HMIS business management software, and funeral arrangement planning software solutions. All of these
technology products are designed to support customers by: 1) creating marketing and revenue opportunities, 2) making processes easier and more efficient,
and 3) enhancing relationships between customers and the families they serve.
Batesville has exclusive agreements with leading brands such as Legacy.com®, an online obituary network provider, FTD®, a national provider of sympathy
flowers and gifts that can be ordered directly from the funeral home’s website, and Hallmark, which designs and supplies Batesville’s memorial stationary
and sympathy card product lines. Customers benefit from these brands through increased web consumer traffic through the legacy network, having trusted
providers of sympathy products right on their websites, and having access to the creativity and quality of Hallmark.

Batesville: Sales, Distribution, and Operations
Batesville offers several marketing and merchandising programs to funeral professionals. Batesville-branded caskets are marketed by a direct sales force only to licensed
funeral professionals operating licensed funeral establishments throughout the U.S., Puerto Rico, Canada, Mexico, the United Kingdom, and Australia. In states that do not
have specific licensing requirements, Batesville markets to full-service funeral establishments offering funeral products in conformance with state law.
Batesville has sales contracts in place with certain national death care service providers that generate a portion of its revenue. Batesville also serves more than 12,000
independent, privately owned funeral homes across North America. None of Batesville’s customers accounted for more than 10% of Hillenbrand’s consolidated revenue in
2013.
Batesville: Customer Preferences and Demographics
The death of a family member or loved one causes most people to seek the services of a state-licensed funeral director. Most consumers have limited familiarity with funeralrelated products and expect funeral directors to provide information on product and service alternatives. Although caskets and urns can be purchased from a variety of
sources, including internet sellers and casket stores, the overwhelming majority of those who arrange a funeral purchase these products directly from the funeral home.
Demand for the products and services Batesville produces is partially impacted by a few key external factors; primarily U.S. and Canadian population demographics, the
number of deaths, and the rate at which consumers opt for cremation. While these factors fluctuate from year to year, they have exhibited a more stable, flat-to-slightlydeclining mid-term burial trend. Batesville anticipates this trend will remain relatively consistent until the number of deaths is influenced by the post-World War II spike in
births and the rate at which consumers shift their preference towards cremation. Cremations as a percentage of total deaths now represent over 40% of deaths in the U.S. and
more than 60% in Canada. The exact timing of the above factors is unknown, and can lead to periodic
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fluctuations in industry demand and revenue. Finally, the death care industry has also experienced a gradual long-term decline in product mix demand.
Batesville: Competition
Batesville is a recognized leader in the sale of death care products in North America. Competition in this industry is based on product quality, design features, personalization,
price, delivery, and service. Batesville competes with several national and regional casket manufacturers and distributors, as well as more than 100 independent casket
distributors, most of whom serve fairly narrow geographic segments. Some non-traditional death care providers, such as large discount retail stores, casket stores, and internet
casket retailers, also sell caskets directly to consumers. The industry has also seen a few foreign manufacturers, mostly from China, import caskets into the U.S. and Canada.
However, for the past three years, sales from these non-traditional and Chinese providers have remained relatively stable and represent only a small percentage of total casket
sales in North America, collectively less than 5%.
The effect of declining casket demand continues to put added economic pressures on casket manufacturers and distributors as they seek to maintain volume. Existing
domestic over-capacity and commodity price increases further impact these pressures, resulting in higher per unit costs.
Batesville: Raw Materials
Batesville uses carbon and stainless steel, copper and bronze sheets, wood, fabrics, finishing materials, rubber gaskets, zinc, and magnesium alloy in the manufacture of its
caskets. Although most of these raw materials are generally available from several sources, some are currently procured from a single source.
Volatility in the prices Batesville pays for raw materials used in its products, including steel, fuel, petroleum-based products, and fuel-related delivery costs, has a direct effect
on profitability. Batesville generally does not engage in hedging transactions for these purchases but does enter into fixed-price supply contracts at times. Batesville regularly
takes steps to mitigate the impact of volatility in raw material and fuel prices, including executing Lean initiatives and various sourcing actions.
Most of Batesville’s sales are made pursuant to supply agreements with its customers, and historically it has instituted annual price adjustments to help offset some, but not
necessarily all, raw material cost increases.
Batesville: Strategy
While volume growth in the burial casket space continues to be limited, we believe there are opportunities to generate additional revenue within a wider range of death care
products and services. Batesville’s leadership team is focusing on three categories of strategic initiatives to drive growth:

·

Recognize and respond to unique needs in the death care industry
·

·

Build and deliver integrated solutions that provide quantifiable value to customers
·

·

Identify and consolidate unmet industry needs by partnering with our customers, and through leading consumer and customer research. Then develop and
deliver products and services that meet these needs and remain focused on helping families honor the lives of those they love®.

Focus on providing unique, integrated solutions that lead the death care industry and provide greater value to customers, such as integrated cremation and
burial solutions (products, promotion, display fixturing) working in concert with our technology offerings.

Utilize Lean principles to grow revenue and increase profit
·

Continue to develop Hillenbrand Lean business leaders at every level of our company. Leaders that continually improve processes that are more consistent,
efficient, and clearly yield industry leading quality products and services that our customers value.

Hillenbrand Patents and Trademarks
We own a number of patents on our products and manufacturing processes that are of importance, but we do not believe any single patent or related group of patents is of
material significance to our business as a whole. We also own a number of trademarks and service marks relating to products and product services which are of importance.
We believe the marks Coperion ®, Coperion K-TronTM, Pennsylvania Crusher®, Gundlach®, Jeffrey Rader®, K-Tron®, and Rotex® are of material significance to the
Process Equipment Group. We believe the mark Batesville® is of material significance to our Batesville segment.
Our ability to compete effectively depends, to an extent, on our ability to maintain the proprietary nature of our intellectual property. In the past, certain of our products have
been copied and sold by others. Hillenbrand vigorously seeks to enforce its intellectual
8
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property rights. However, we may not be sufficiently protected by our various patents, trademarks, and service marks, and they may be challenged, invalidated, cancelled,
narrowed, or circumvented. Beyond that, we may not receive the pending or contemplated patents, trademarks, or service marks for which we have applied or filed.
Hillenbrand Regulatory Matters
Both the Process Equipment Group and Batesville are subject to a variety of federal, state, local, and foreign laws and regulations relating to environmental, health, and safety
concerns, including the handling, storage, discharge, and disposal of hazardous materials used in or derived from our manufacturing processes. We are committed to
operating all our businesses in a manner that protects the environment and makes us good corporate citizens in the communities in which we operate. In the past, we have
voluntarily entered into remediation agreements with various environmental authorities to address onsite and offsite environmental impacts. From time to time we provide for
reserves in our financial statements for environmental matters. We believe we have appropriately satisfied the financial responsibilities for all currently known offsite issues.
Based on the nature and volume of materials involved regarding onsite impacts, we do not expect the cost for the onsite remediation activities in which we are currently
involved to have a material adverse effect on our capital expenditures, earnings, or competitive position. Future events or changes in existing laws and regulations or their
interpretation may require us to make additional expenditures in the future. The cost or need for any such additional expenditure is not known.
Hillenbrand Foreign Operations and Export Sales
Quantitative information about foreign operations is set forth in tables relating to geographic information in Note 13 to our financial statements included in Part II, Item 8, of
this Form 10-K. For a discussion of risks related to our non-US operations and foreign currency exchange, refer to Part 1, Item 1A. Risk Factors, of this Form 10-K.
Hillenbrand Employees
At September 30, 2013, we had approximately 6,000 employees worldwide. Approximately 3,300 employees were located within the U.S. and 2,700 employees were located
outside of the U.S., primarily throughout Europe and China. Approximately 2,200 employees in North America and Europe work under collective bargaining agreements.
Hillenbrand strives to maintain satisfactory relationships with all its employees, including the unions representing those employees. As a result, we have not experienced a
significant work stoppage due to labor relations in more than 20 years.
Executive Officers of the Registrant
Our Board of Directors is responsible for electing the Company’s executive officers annually and from time to time as necessary. Executive officers serve in the ensuing year
and until their respective successors are elected and qualified. There are no family relationships between any of our executive officers or between any of them and any
members of the Board of Directors. The following is a list of our executive officers as of November 15, 2013.
Joe A. Raver, 47, has served as a director and as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since September 6, 2013. He also has served as President of the
Process Equipment Group since April 1, 2011. Prior to that, he had been President of Batesville Casket Company since June 2008. He also previously served as Vice
President and General Manager of the respiratory care division of Hill-Rom Holdings, a leading global provider of medical equipment and services. He joined Hill-Rom in
2004 as Vice President of Strategy and Shared Services. Prior to joining Hill-Rom, Mr. Raver spent 10 years in a variety of leadership positions at Batesville Casket
Company and the former Hillenbrand Industries, Inc.
Cynthia L. Lucchese, 53, was elected Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer effective February 8, 2008. From 2005 to 2007, she served as Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer for Thoratec Corporation. Prior to that, she worked 10 years for Guidant Corporation, now a part of Boston Scientific Corporation, in a variety of
senior finance roles, including Vice President and Treasurer, Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting Officer, and Vice President of Finance and Administration of the
Guidant Sales Corporation. Ms. Lucchese was also previously employed by Eli Lilly and Company and Ernst & Young LLP.
Diane R. Bohman, 43, was elected Senior Vice President, Integration effective December 4, 2012. Ms. Bohman previously served as Vice President, Corporate Strategy of
the Company from June 6, 2011, until she transitioned to her integration role with the Company. From 2005 to 2011, Ms. Bohman served as Vice President, Logistics; Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer; and Vice President, Strategy for Batesville. Prior to this, Ms. Bohman worked for seven years at Hill-Rom Company, Inc., holding a
broad array of positions in the finance organization. She began her career in the business assurance practice of Coopers & Lybrand, LLC. Ms. Bohman is a Certified Public
Accountant.
William A. Canady, 47, was elected Senior Vice President of Corporate Strategy and Industrial Products effective November 4, 2013. Prior to joining Hillenbrand,
Mr. Canady worked at IDEX Corporation, a global fluidics leader serving high growth specialized markets. Most recently he served as the Vice President, Strategy and
Aftermarket for the IDEX Fluid and Metering Technologies Group. Prior to that, he served in a number of leadership roles in the Fluid and Metering Technologies Group and
was Vice President,
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Sales and Marketing for IDEX’s Viking Pump subsidiary. Prior to joining IDEX Corporation, Mr. Canady held a variety of leadership positions at Crane Co., Generac Power
Systems, Invensys Climate Controls, and Sackner Products.
Scott P. George, 59, was elected Senior Vice President, Corporate Development effective January 30, 2012. Mr. George has more than 30 years of investment banking
experience, advising on more than 250 transactions. Prior to joining Hillenbrand, he served as managing director and head of the Illinois practice for P&M Corporate
Finance, LLC, in Chicago. Prior to that, he held a similar position at Morgan Joseph & Co. Mr. George’s experience also includes merger and acquisition advisory roles at
Ernst & Young Corporate Finance, Salomon Brothers Inc., Morgan Stanley & Co., and Bankers Trust Co. A graduate of Northwestern University in economics, Mr. George
earned his M.B.A. from the University of Chicago Booth School of Business.
Thomas Kehl, 53, was elected Senior Vice President of Hillenbrand effective September 6, 2013. He has also served as President of Coperion since July 2013. Mr. Kehl
joined Coperion in 2008 and has been a member of the Coperion Executive Board responsible for the Compounding and Service Competence Centers. Previously, he was
Managing Director of Rieter Automatik, Senior Vice President of Rieter AG in Switzerland, and CEO of Freudenberg.
Kimberly K. Ryan, 46, was elected President of Batesville and Senior Vice President of Hillenbrand effective April 4, 2011. Prior to joining Hillenbrand, Ms. Ryan served
as Senior Vice President, North America Post-Acute Care of Hill-Rom Holdings, Inc. Prior to that, she held various Vice President roles at Hill-Rom, leading its Turnaround
Program, Shared Services and Information Technology from 2005 to 2007. From 2000 to 2005, Ms. Ryan served in a number of senior roles at the former Hillenbrand
Industries, Inc. and its subsidiaries, including Vice President, Shared Services; Batesville Casket Vice President, Business Information Systems; and Director, Enterprise
Systems. Ms. Ryan began her career with Batesville in 1989, holding positions of increasing responsibility within Batesville and Hillenbrand Industries in finance, planning,
operations, logistics, and information technology.
Jan M. Santerre, 52, was elected Senior Vice President of Lean effective December 4, 2012. She previously served as Vice President of Lean effective December 1, 2008.
Prior to joining Hillenbrand, she worked at Parker Hannifin Corporation, the world’s largest manufacturer of motion and control products. Most recently she was Vice
President of Operations in the Hydraulics Group, where she had responsibility for half of the North American divisions. Prior to that, she was the Vice President of Lean
Enterprise and Quality, where she developed the Parker Lean System and deployed it globally. Ms. Santerre developed her Lean knowledge through managerial roles during
her 18 years with Delphi Automotive Systems and General Motors. Ms. Santerre received her Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical Engineering from Purdue University in 1983
and was selected for a General Motors Fellowship to the University of Michigan where she earned a Master of Engineering in Manufacturing in 1996.
Paul Douglas Wilson, 61, was elected Senior Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer effective January 3, 2011. Prior to that, Mr. Wilson served as Senior Vice
President, Human Resources effective March 14, 2008. Prior to joining Hillenbrand, Mr. Wilson served as Vice President, Worldwide Merger Integration for Boston
Scientific Corporation, following the close of the merger between Boston Scientific and Guidant Corporation in 2006. Mr. Wilson joined Guidant Corporation in 2002 and
served as Vice President of Human Resources, the chief human resources officer. Prior to Guidant, Mr. Wilson was President and a Principal of Ronald Blue & Co., a
privately held firm providing financial planning, investment management, tax planning, and philanthropic counsel. Mr. Wilson began his career with Eli Lilly and Company,
where he spent 20 years in a variety of increasingly senior executive human resource roles.
John R. Zerkle, 59, was elected Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary effective February 8, 2008. Prior to that, Mr. Zerkle served as Vice President and
General Counsel of Batesville since March 2004. From September 2002 to February 2004, Mr. Zerkle served as Vice President and General Counsel of Forethought Financial
Services, Inc., then a subsidiary of the former Hillenbrand Industries, Inc. He also served as Compliance Officer for Forethought Investment Management, Inc. Prior to
joining Forethought, Mr. Zerkle was in private practice for 20 years, where he focused his practice on corporate, securities, regulatory, and banking law matters.
Elizabeth E. Dreyer, 51, was elected Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer effective December 1, 2010. Prior to joining Hillenbrand, Ms. Dreyer served
as the Vice President of Finance at Zimmer, Inc., an orthopedic medical device provider. Prior to joining Zimmer, she was the Chief Financial Officer for Createc
Corporation. Ms. Dreyer has also held management roles in finance, organizational effectiveness, and audit at ADESA, Inc., Guidant Corporation, and Deloitte. Ms. Dreyer
is a Certified Public Accountant.
Availability of Reports and Other Information
Our website is www.hillenbrand.com. We make available on this website, free of charge, access to press releases, conference calls, our annual and quarterly reports, and other
documents filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as soon as these reports are filed or furnished. We also make available through this
website position specifications for the Chairperson of our Board of Directors and its committees, as well as the members of the Board of Directors; our Code of Ethical
Business Conduct
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and Global Anti-Corruption Policy; the Corporate Governance Standards of our Board of Directors; and the charters of each of the standing committees of the Board of
Directors. All these documents are also available to shareholders in print upon request.
All reports and documents filed with the SEC are also available via the SEC website, www.sec.gov, or may be read and copied at the SEC Public Reference Room at 100 F
Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.
Item 1A.

Risk Factors

In this section of the Form 10-K, we describe the risks we believe are most important for you to think about when you consider investing in, selling, or owning our stock or
debt. This information should be assessed along with the other information we provide you in this Form 10-K. Like most companies, our business involves risks. The risks
described below are not the only risks we face, but these are the ones we currently think have the potential to significantly affect stakeholders in our Company if they were to
develop adversely (due to size, volatility, or both). We exclude risks that we believe are inherent in all businesses broadly as a function of simply being “in business.”
Additional risks not currently known or considered immaterial by us at this time and thus not listed below could also result in adverse effects on our business. We have
assigned the risks into categories to help you understand where they emanate from (e.g. the overall Company or a specific segment).
Risk Related to Hillenbrand
1. A key component of our growth strategy is making significant acquisitions, some of which may be outside the industries in which we currently operate. We may not
be able to achieve some or all of the benefits that we expect to achieve from these acquisitions. If an acquisition were to perform unfavorably, it could have an adverse
impact on our value.
All acquisitions involve inherent uncertainties, which may include, among other things, our ability to:

·
·
·
·
·

successfully identify targets for acquisition;
negotiate reasonable terms;
properly perform due diligence and determine all the significant risks associated with a particular acquisition;
properly evaluate target company management capabilities; and
successfully transition the acquired company into our business and achieve the desired performance.

We may acquire businesses with unknown liabilities, contingent liabilities, internal control deficiencies, or other risks. We have plans and procedures to review potential
acquisition candidates for a variety of due diligence matters, including compliance with applicable regulations and laws prior to acquisition. Despite these efforts, realization
of any of these liabilities or deficiencies may increase our expenses, adversely affect our financial position, or cause us to fail to meet our public financial reporting
obligations.
We generally seek indemnification from sellers covering these matters; however, the liability of the sellers is often limited, and certain former owners may be unable to meet
their indemnification responsibilities. We cannot assure you that these indemnification provisions will fully protect us, and as a result we may face unexpected liabilities that
adversely affect our profitability and financial position.
We may not achieve the intended benefits of the acquisition and our business could be materially impacted. Under such circumstances, management could be required to
spend significant amounts of time and resources in the transition of the acquired business. In addition, any benefits we anticipate from application of our Lean manufacturing
and Lean business expertise may not be fully realized.
If we acquire a company that operates in an industry that is different from the ones in which we currently operate, our lack of experience with that company’s industry could
have a material adverse impact on our ability to manage that business and realize the benefits of that acquisition.
2. Global market and economic conditions, including those related to the financial markets, could have a material adverse effect on our operating results, financial
condition, and liquidity.
Our business is sensitive to changes in general economic conditions, both inside and outside the U.S. Although we have seen stability or growth in some geographies since the
global economic turmoil that began in 2008, we cannot assure you that these improvements will be sustainable or predict when the next recession will occur. In addition,
uncertainties in the euro zone may depress demand in the area and create additional risk to our financial results.
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Instability in the global economy and financial markets can adversely affect our business in several ways, including limiting our customers’ ability to obtain sufficient credit or
pay for our products within the terms of sale. Competition could further intensify among the manufacturers and distributors with whom we compete for volume and market
share, resulting in lower net revenue due to steeper discounts and product mix-down. In addition, if certain key or sole suppliers were to become capacity constrained or
insolvent, it could result in a reduction or interruption in supplies or a significant increase in the price of supplies.
Substantial losses in the equity markets could have an adverse effect on the assets of the Company’s pension plans. Volatility of interest rates and negative equity returns
could require greater contributions to the defined benefit plans in the future.
3. International economic, political, legal, and business factors could negatively affect our operating results, cash flows, financial condition, and growth.
We derived approximately 43%, 17%, and 16% of our revenue from outside the U.S. for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011. This revenue is primarily
generated in Europe, the Middle East, Asia, South America, and Canada. In addition, we have manufacturing operations, suppliers, and employees located outside the U.S.
Since our growth strategy depends in part on our ability to further penetrate markets outside the U.S., we expect to continue to increase our sales and presence outside the
U.S., including in emerging markets.
Our international business is subject to risks that are often encountered in non-U.S. operations, including:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

interruption in the transportation of materials to us and finished goods to our customers;
differences in terms of sale, including payment terms;
local product preferences and product requirements;
changes in a country’s or region’s political or economic condition, including with respect to safety and health issues;
trade protection measures and import or export licensing requirements;
unexpected changes in laws or regulatory requirements, including negative changes in tax laws;
limitations on ownership and on repatriation of earnings and cash;
difficulty in staffing and managing widespread operations;
differing labor regulations;
difficulties in enforcing contract and property rights under local law;
difficulties in implementing restructuring actions on a timely or comprehensive basis; and
differing protection of intellectual property.

Such risks may be more likely in emerging markets, where our operations may be subject to greater uncertainty due to increased volatility associated with the developing
nature of their economic, legal, and governmental systems.
If we are unable to successfully manage the risks associated with expanding our global business, or to adequately manage operational fluctuations, it could adversely affect
our business, financial condition or results of operations.
4. We rely upon our employees, agents, and business partners to comply with laws in many different countries and jurisdictions. We establish policies and provide
training to assist them in understanding our policies and the regulations most applicable to our business; however, our reputation, ability to do business, and financial
results may be impaired by improper conduct by these individuals.
We cannot provide assurance that our internal controls and compliance systems will always protect us from acts committed by our employees, agents, or business partners that
would violate U.S. and/or non-U.S. laws, including the laws governing payments to government officials, bribery, fraud, anti-kickback and false claims, competition, export
and import compliance, money laundering, and data privacy. In particular, the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, the U.K. Bribery Act, and similar anti-bribery laws in
other jurisdictions generally prohibit companies and their intermediaries from making improper payments to government officials for the purpose of obtaining or retaining
business, and we operate in many parts of the world that have experienced governmental corruption to some degree. Any such improper actions could subject us to civil or
criminal investigations in the U.S. and in other jurisdictions; could lead to substantial civil and criminal, monetary and non-monetary penalties, and related shareholder
lawsuits; could cause us to incur significant legal fees; and could damage our reputation.
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5. We are subject to risks arising from currency exchange rate fluctuations, which may adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.
We are subject to currency exchange rate risk to the extent that our costs are denominated in currencies other than those in which we earn revenues. In addition, since our
financial statements are denominated in U.S. dollars, changes in currency exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and other currencies have had, and will continue to have, an
impact on our results of operations. Although we address currency risk management through regular operating and financing activities, and through the use of derivative
financial instruments, those actions may not prove to be fully effective.
6. Increased prices for, or unavailability of, raw materials used in our products could adversely affect profitability.
Our profitability is affected by the prices of the raw materials used in the manufacture of our products. These prices fluctuate based on a number of factors beyond our
control, including changes in supply and demand, general economic conditions, labor costs, fuel-related delivery costs, competition, import duties, tariffs, currency exchange
rates, and, in some cases, government regulation. Significant increases in the prices of raw materials that cannot be recovered through increases in the price of our products
could adversely affect our results of operations and cash flows.
We cannot guarantee that the prices we are paying for commodities today will continue in the future or that the marketplace will continue to support current prices for our
products or that such prices can be adjusted to fully offset commodity price increases in the future. Any increases in prices resulting from a tightening supply of these or other
commodities could adversely affect our profitability. We do not engage in hedging transactions for raw material purchases, but we do enter into some fixed-price supply
contracts.
Our dependency upon regular deliveries of supplies from particular suppliers means that interruptions or stoppages in such deliveries could adversely affect our operations
until arrangements with alternate suppliers could be made. Several of the raw materials used in the manufacture of our products currently are procured from a single source.
If any of these sole-source suppliers were unable to deliver these materials for an extended period of time as a result of financial difficulties, catastrophic events affecting their
facilities, or other factors, or if we were unable to negotiate acceptable terms for the supply of materials with these sole-source suppliers, our business could be adversely
affected. We may not be able to find acceptable alternatives, and any such alternatives could result in increased costs. Extended unavailability of a necessary raw material
could cause us to cease manufacturing one or more products for a period of time.
7. The Company could face labor disruptions that would interfere with operations.
Approximately 40% of Hillenbrand’s employees work under collective bargaining agreements. Although we have not experienced any significant work stoppages in the past
20 years as a result of labor disagreements, we cannot ensure that such a stoppage will not occur in the future. Inability to negotiate satisfactory new agreements or a labor
disturbance at one or more of our facilities could have a material adverse effect on our operations.
8. Volatility in our investment portfolio could adversely impact our operating results and financial condition.
Hillenbrand has certain investments that were transferred to us by our former parent company with an aggregate carrying value of $11.3 as of September 30, 2013. Volatility
in our investment portfolio impacts earnings. These investments could be adversely affected by general economic conditions, changes in interest rates, equity market
volatility, and other factors, resulting in an adverse impact on our operating results and financial condition.
9. We are involved on an ongoing basis in claims, lawsuits, and governmental proceedings relating to our operations, including environmental, antitrust, patent
infringement, business practices, commercial transactions, and other matters. The ultimate outcome of these claims, lawsuits, and governmental proceedings cannot be
predicted with certainty, but could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows.
We are also subject to other potential claims, including product and general liability, workers compensation, auto liability, and employment-related matters. While we
maintain insurance for certain of these exposures, the policies in place are high-deductible policies. For a more detailed discussion of asserted claims, see Note 10 to our
financial statements included in Part II, Item 8, of this Form 10-K.
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10. Upon the closing of our recent acquisition of Coperion, we increased our debt obligations significantly. This increase could adversely affect the Company and limit
our ability to respond to changes in our businesses.
As of September 30, 2013, our outstanding debt was $664.3. This level of debt could have important consequences to our businesses. For example:
·
·
·
·

We may be more vulnerable to general adverse economic and industry conditions because we have lower borrowing capacity.
We will be required to dedicate a larger portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow for
other purposes, including business development efforts and acquisitions.
We will continue to be exposed to the risk of increased interest rates because a portion of our borrowings is at variable rates of interest.
We may be more limited in our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our businesses and the industries in which they operate, thereby placing us at a
competitive disadvantage compared to competitors that have less indebtedness.

11. Provisions in our Articles of Incorporation and By-laws and facets of Indiana law may prevent or delay an acquisition of the Company, which could decrease the
trading price of our common stock.
Our Articles of Incorporation and By-laws, as well as Indiana law, contain provisions that could delay or prevent changes in control if our Board of Directors determines that
such changes in control are not in the best interests of our shareholders. While these provisions have the effect of encouraging persons seeking to acquire control of our
Company to negotiate with our Board of Directors, they could enable our Board of Directors to hinder or frustrate a transaction that the Board of Directors believes is not in
the best interests of shareholders, but which some, or a majority, of our shareholders might believe to be in their best interests.
These provisions include, among others:
·
·
·
·
·

the division of our Board of Directors into three classes with staggered terms;
the inability of our shareholders to act by less than unanimous written consent;
rules regarding how shareholders may present proposals or nominate directors for election at shareholder meetings;
the right of our Board of Directors to issue preferred stock without shareholder approval; and
limitations on the right of shareholders to remove directors.

Indiana law also imposes some restrictions on mergers and other business combinations between us and any holder of 10% or more of our outstanding common stock, as well

as on certain “control share” acquisitions.
We believe these provisions are important for a public company and protect our shareholders from coercive or otherwise potentially unfair takeover tactics by requiring
potential acquirers to negotiate with our Board of Directors and by providing our Board of Directors with appropriate time to assess any acquisition proposal. These
provisions are not intended to make our Company immune from takeovers; however, they may apply if the Board of Directors determines that a takeover offer is not in the
best interests of our shareholders, even if some shareholders believe the offer to be beneficial.
Risk Related to the Process Equipment Group
1. A significant portion of our investments in the Process Equipment Group includes goodwill and intangible assets that are subject to periodic impairment evaluations.
An impairment loss on these assets could have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations.
We acquired intangible assets with the acquisitions of Coperion, K-Tron, and Rotex, portions of which were identified as either goodwill or indefinite-lived assets. We
periodically assess these assets to determine if they are impaired. Significant negative industry or economic trends, disruptions to our business, inability to effectively
integrate acquired businesses, unexpected significant changes, or planned changes in use of the assets, divestitures, and market capitalization declines may impair these assets.
Any charges relating to such impairments could adversely affect our results of operations in the periods recognized.
2. The Process Equipment Group operates in cyclical industries.
As an industrial capital goods supplier, the Process Equipment Group serves industries that are cyclical. During periods of economic expansion, when capital spending
normally increases, the Process Equipment Group generally benefits from greater demand for its products. During periods of economic contraction, when capital spending
normally decreases, the Process Equipment Group generally is adversely affected by declining demand for new equipment orders, and it may be subject to uncollectible
receivables from customers who become insolvent. There can be no assurance that economic expansion or increased demand will be sustainable.
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3. The Process Equipment Group derives significant revenues from the energy industry. Any decrease in demand for electricity, natural gas, or coal or an increase in
regulation of the energy industry could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
The Process Equipment Group sells dry material separation and size reduction equipment to the electric generating, natural gas, and coal mining industries. A significant
portion of its sales are tied to the consumption of natural gas and coal as a means of generating electricity. The demand for natural gas and coal is dependent upon the
availability and cost of alternative sources of energy, such as oil or nuclear power. Additionally, the cost of compliance with federal, state, and local laws and regulations on
the energy industry may impact the demand for our products. As a result, any downturn in or disruption to the natural gas or coal industries or decrease in the demand for
electricity, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
Risk Related to Batesville
1. Continued fluctuations in mortality rates and increased cremations may adversely affect, as they have in recent years, the sales volume of our burial caskets.
The life expectancy of U.S. citizens has increased steadily since the 1950s and is expected to continue to do so for the foreseeable future. As the population of the U.S.
continues to age, we anticipate the number of deaths in the U.S. will be relatively flat until aging baby boomers cause the number of deaths to increase.
Cremations as a percentage of total U.S. deaths have increased steadily since the 1960s and are expected to continue to increase for the foreseeable future. The increase in the
number of cremations in the U.S. has resulted in a contraction in the demand for burial caskets. This has been a contributing factor to lower burial casket sales volumes for
Batesville in each of the last five years. We expect these trends to continue in the foreseeable future and will likely continue to negatively impact burial casket volumes.
Finally, the number of deaths can vary over short periods of time and among different geographical areas, due to a variety of factors, including the timing and severity of
seasonal outbreaks of illnesses such as pneumonia and influenza. Such variations could cause the sale of burial caskets to fluctuate from quarter to quarter and year to year.
2. Batesville’s business is dependent on several major contracts with large national funeral providers. The relationships with these customers pose several risks.
Batesville has contracts with a number of national funeral home customers that constitute a sizeable portion of its overall sales volume. Any decision by national funeral
home customers to discontinue purchases from Batesville could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. Also, while
contracts with national funeral service providers give Batesville important access to purchasers of death care products, they may obligate Batesville to sell products at
contracted prices for extended periods of time, therefore limiting Batesville’s ability, in the short term, to raise prices in response to significant increases in raw material prices
or other factors.
3. Batesville is facing competition from a number of non-traditional sources and from caskets manufactured abroad and imported into North America.
Non-traditional death care product providers, such as large discount retail stores, casket stores, and internet casket retailers could present more of a competitive threat to
Batesville and its sales channel than is currently anticipated. In addition, a few foreign manufacturers, mostly from China, import caskets into the U.S. and Canada. For the
past three years, sales from these non-traditional and Chinese providers have remained relatively stable and represent a small percentage of total casket sales in North
America, collectively less than 5%. It is not possible to quantify the financial impact that these competitors will have on Batesville in the future. These competitors and any
new entrants into the funeral products business may drive pricing and other competitive actions in an industry that already has nearly twice the necessary domestic production
capacity. Such competitive developments could have a negative impact on our results of operations and cash flows.
Item 1B.

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

We have not received any comments from the staff of the SEC regarding our periodic or current reports that remain unresolved.
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Item 2.

PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters is located in Batesville, Indiana, in a facility that we own. At September 30, 2013, the Process Equipment Group operated 18 significant
manufacturing facilities located in the U.S. (New Jersey, Kansas, Ohio, Illinois, and Virginia), Germany, Switzerland, China, India, the United Kingdom, and Belgium.
Seven of these facilities are owned and 11 are leased. The Process Equipment Group also leases or owns a number of other sales offices in Europe, Asia, Canada, and South

America.
At September 30, 2013, Batesville operated five significant manufacturing facilities located in Indiana, Tennessee, Mississippi, and Mexico. Four of these facilities are owned
and one is leased. Batesville also leases or owns a number of other warehouse distribution centers, service centers, and sales offices in the U.S., United Kingdom, Mexico,
Canada, and Australia.
Facilities often serve multiple purposes, such as administration, sales, manufacturing, testing, warehousing, and distribution. We believe our current facilities will provide
adequate capacity to meet expected demand for the next several years.
Item 3.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved on an ongoing basis in claims, lawsuits, and government proceedings relating to our operations, including environmental, antitrust, patent infringement,
business practices, commercial transactions, and other matters. We are also subject to other claims and potential claims, including those relating to product and general
liability, workers’ compensation, auto liability, and employment-related matters. The ultimate outcome of claims, lawsuits, and proceedings cannot be predicted with
certainty. We carry various forms of commercial, property and casualty, product liability, and other forms of insurance; however, such insurance may not be applicable or
adequate to cover the costs associated with a judgment against us. It is difficult to measure the actual loss that might be incurred related to litigation, and the ultimate outcome
of these claims, lawsuits, and proceedings could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows.
For more information on various legal proceedings, see Note 10 to our financial statements included in Part II, Item 8, of this Form
10-K. That information is incorporated into this Item by reference.
Item 4.

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
PART II
Item 5.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Hillenbrand common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “HI.” The following table reflects the quarterly range of high and low closing
sales prices of our common stock for 2013 and 2012.
2013

2012

High

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

$
$
$
$

Low

22.76
25.28
25.41
27.86

$
$
$
$

High

18.22
23.07
22.88
23.80

$
$
$
$

Low

22.78
23.90
23.04
19.34

$
$
$
$

17.40
22.31
17.54
16.82

On November 15, 2013, we had approximately 2,500 shareholders of record.
On July 24, 2008, our Board of Directors approved the repurchase of $100.0 of our common stock. The program has no expiration date, but may be terminated by the Board
of Directors at any time. As of September 30, 2013, we had repurchased approximately 1,200,000 shares for $22.5, which were classified as treasury stock. No shares were
repurchased during 2013 or 2012. At September 30, 2013, we had $77.5 remaining for share repurchases under the existing Board authorization.
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Dividends
Although we have paid cash dividends since our inception on April 1, 2008, the declaration and payment of cash dividends is at the sole discretion of our Board of Directors
and depends upon many factors, including our financial condition, earnings potential, capital requirements, alternative uses of cash, covenants associated with debt
obligations, legal requirements, and other factors deemed relevant by the Board of Directors. We currently expect that comparable quarterly cash dividends will continue to
be paid in the future. The following table provides detail on the quarterly dividends paid to shareholders for the past three years.
2013

First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter
Item 6.

$
$
$
$

2012

0.1950
0.1950
0.1950
0.1950

$
$
$
$

2011

0.1925
0.1925
0.1925
0.1925

$
$
$
$

0.1900
0.1900
0.1900
0.1900

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(in millions, except per share data):
2013

Net revenue
Gross profit
Operating profit
Net income(1)
Earnings per share - basic and diluted
Cash dividends per share
Total assets
Long-term obligations
Cash flows provided by operating activities
Cash flows (used in) investing activities
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities
Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,553.4
527.2
118.1
63.4
1.01
0.78
2,003.2
961.4
127.2
(441.0 )
336.5
29.9
89.4

2012

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

983.2
388.9
148.8
104.8
1.68
0.77
1,087.5
429.4
138.2
(22.5)
(211.1 )
20.9
40.4

2011

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

883.4
369.9
158.6
106.1
1.71
0.76
1,180.7
601.4
189.5
(154.5 )
(22.0)
21.9
36.1

2010

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

749.2
313.3
137.9
92.3
1.49
0.75
1,048.9
559.0
118.2
(348.7 )
289.8
16.3
28.2

2009

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

649.1
274.4
155.0
102.3
1.66
0.74
561.1
122.2
123.2
(5.3 )
(97.4)
10.0
18.5

(1) Net income attributable to Hillenbrand
Item 7.
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(in millions throughout Management’s Discussion and Analysis)
The following discussion compares our results for the year ended September 30, 2013, to the year ended September 30, 2012, and also compares our results for the year ended
September 30, 2012 to the year ended September 30, 2011. We begin the discussion at a consolidated level and then provide separate detail about the Process Equipment
Group, Batesville, and Corporate. These financial results are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”).
We also provide certain non-GAAP operating performance measures. These non-GAAP measures are referred to as “adjusted” and exclude expenses associated with backlog
amortization, inventory step-up, business acquisitions, restructuring, antitrust litigation, and sales tax recoveries. The measures also exclude the tax benefit of the international
integration in 2012 and expenses associated with long-term incentive compensation related to the international integration. The related income tax effect for all of these items
is also excluded. This non-GAAP information is provided as a supplement, not as a substitute for, or as superior to, measures of financial performance prepared in
accordance with GAAP.
An important non-GAAP measure that we use is Adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Income Tax, Depreciation and Amortization (“Adjusted EBITDA”). As previously
discussed, a part of our strategy is to selectively acquire companies that we believe can benefit from our core competencies to spur faster and more profitable growth. Given
that strategy, it is a natural consequence to incur related
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expenses, such as amortization from acquired intangible assets and additional interest expense from debt-funded acquisitions. Accordingly, we use Adjusted EBITDA, among
other measures, to monitor our business performance.
We analyze net revenue on a constant currency basis to better measure the comparability of results between periods. We provide this information because exchange rates can
distort the underlying change in sales, either positively or negatively.
We use this non-GAAP information internally to make operating decisions and believe it is helpful to investors because it allows more meaningful period-to-period
comparisons of our ongoing operating results. The information can also be used to perform trend analysis and to better identify operating trends that may otherwise be
masked or distorted by these types of items. We believe this information provides a higher degree of transparency.
See page 28 for a reconciliation of non-GAAP measures to the closest GAAP-equivalent of each measure.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Our financial results are affected by the selection and application of accounting policies and methods. Significant accounting policies which require management’s judgment
are discussed below. A detailed description of our accounting policies is included in the notes to our financial statements included in Part II, Item 8, of this Form 10-K.
Revenue Recognition — Net revenue includes gross revenue less sales discounts, customer rebates, sales incentives, and product returns, all of which require us to make
estimates for the portion of these allowances that have yet to be credited or paid to our customers. We estimate these allowances based upon historical rates and projections of
customer purchases toward contractual rebate thresholds.
Following the acquisition of Coperion, a portion of Hillenbrand’s revenue is derived from long-term manufacturing contracts. The majority of this revenue is recognized
based on the percentage-of-completion method. Under this method, revenue is recognized based upon the costs incurred to date as compared to the total estimated project
costs. Approximately 25% of Hillenbrand’s revenue was attributable to these long-term manufacturing contracts for 2013.
Accounting for these contracts involves management judgment in estimating total contract revenue and cost. Contract revenues are largely determined by negotiated contract
prices and quantities, modified by our assumptions regarding contract options, change orders, incentive and award provisions associated with technical performance clauses.
Contract costs are incurred over longer periods of time and, accordingly, the estimation of these costs requires management judgment. Cost estimates are largely based on
negotiated or estimated purchase contract terms, historical performance trends, and other economic projections. Significant factors that influence these estimates include
inflationary trends, technical and schedule risk, internal and subcontractor performance trends, business volume assumptions, asset utilization, and anticipated labor
agreements. Revenue and cost estimates are regularly monitored and revised based on changes in circumstances. Anticipated losses on long-term contracts are recognized
immediately when such losses become evident. We maintain financial controls over the customer qualification, contract pricing, and estimation processes to reduce the risk of
contract losses.
Revenue for components, replacement parts, and service is recognized on a completed contract basis when title and risk of loss passes to the customer.
Performance-Based Stock Compensation — The vesting of our performance-based stock awards is contingent upon the creation of shareholder value as measured by the
cumulative cash returns and final period net operating profit after tax compared to the established hurdle rate over a three-year period. The hurdle rate is a reflection of the
weighted-average cost of capital and targeted capital structure. Based on the extent to which the performance criteria are achieved, it is possible for none of the awards to vest
or for a range up to the maximum to vest, which is reflected in the performance-based stock award table in Note 9 to our financial statements included in Part II, Item 8, of this
Form 10-K. We record expense associated with the awards on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based upon an estimate of projected performance. The actual
performance of the Company is evaluated quarterly, and the expense is adjusted according to the new projection if it has changed significantly. As a result, depending on the
degree to which performance criteria are achieved or our projections change, our expenses related to the performance-based stock awards may become more volatile as we
approach the final performance measurement date at the end of the three years. This increase in volatility stems from the requirement to increase or reduce compensation
expense as the projection of performance changes. Thus, any one period’s financial results could be significantly affected by the cumulative effect of the adjustment.
Preparing the projection of performance requires us to exercise significant judgment as to the expected outcome of final performance up to three years in the future. In making
the projection, we consider both actual results and probable business plans for the future. At September 30, 2013,
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we have recorded cumulative compensation expense associated with unvested performance-based stock awards of $4.1 which continues to be subject to periodic adjustments
as the related awards approach their final performance measurement dates.
Retirement and Postretirement Plans — We sponsor retirement and postretirement benefit plans covering the majority of our employees. Expense recognized for the plans is
based upon actuarial valuations. Inherent in those valuations are key assumptions including discount rates, expected returns on assets, and projected future salary rates. The
actuarial assumptions we use may differ significantly from actual results due to changing economic conditions, participant life span, and withdrawal rates. These differences

may result in a material impact to the amount of net periodic pension expense to be recorded in our financial statements in the future. The discount rates used in the valuation
of our defined benefit pension and postretirement benefit plans are evaluated annually based on current market conditions. In setting the discount rate, we use a yield curve
approach to discount each expected cash flow of the liability stream at an interest rate applicable to the timing of each cash flow based on corporate bond rates. These present
values are then converted into an equivalent weighted-average discount rate. Our overall expected long-term rate of return on pension assets is based on historical and
expected future returns, which are inflation-adjusted and weighted for the expected return for each component of the investment portfolio. Our rate of assumed compensation
increase for pension benefits is also based on our specific historical trends of past wage adjustments in recent years and expectations for the future.
Changes in retirement and postretirement benefit expense and the recognized obligations may occur in the future as a result of a number of factors, including changes to key
assumptions such as the weighted-average expected rate of return on pension assets and the weighted-average discount rate. Our weighted-average expected rate of return on
pension assets was 6.3%, 6.4%, and 6.9% at the end of 2013, 2012, and 2011, and the weighted-average discount rate at the end of 2013 was 4.1% for the pension plan and
3.5% for the postretirement healthcare plan. A 50 basis-point change in the expected rate of return on domestic pension assets changes annual pension expense by $1.0. A 50
basis-point change in the discount rate changes the annual domestic pension expense by $1.3 and the annual postretirement healthcare plan expense by less than $0.1. Impacts
from assumption changes could be positive or negative depending on the direction of the change in rates. Based upon the new rates and assumptions, we expect the aggregate
expense associated with our defined benefit plans to decrease to $14.6 in 2014. See Note 5 to our financial statements included in Part II, Item 8, of this Form 10-K, for key
assumptions and other information regarding our retirement and postretirement benefit plans.
Uncertain Income Tax Positions — In assessing the need for reserves for uncertain tax positions, we make judgments regarding the technical merit of a tax position and,
when necessary, an estimate of the settlement amount based upon the probability of the outcome. At September 30, 2013, we had reserves of $6.4 established for uncertain
tax positions based upon our estimates. Our ability to make and update these estimates is limited to the information we have at any given point in time. This information can
include how taxing authorities have treated the position in the past, how similar cases have settled, or where we are in discussions or negotiations with taxing authorities on a
particular issue, among others. As information available to us evolves, we update our reserves quarterly. These updates can result in volatility to our income tax rate
(particularly in a given quarter) if new information or developments result in a significant change in our estimate.
Business Combinations — Estimating fair value for acquired assets and liabilities as part of a business combination typically requires us to exercise judgment, particularly for
those assets and liabilities that may be unique or not easily determined by reference to market data. Often estimates for these types of acquired assets and liabilities will be
developed using valuation models that require both historical and forecasted inputs, as well as market participant expectations. Thus, the valuation is directly affected by the
inputs we judge as best under the given circumstances. When material, we expect to seek assistance of competent valuation professionals when the underlying valuation is
more complex or unique.
We anticipate that in most cases, we will exercise significant judgment in estimating the fair value of intangible assets, contingent liabilities, and contingent consideration.
This list is not exhaustive, but is designed to give you a better understanding of where we think a larger degree of judgment will be required due to the nature of the item and
the way it is typically valued.
Asset Impairment Determinations — We evaluate the carrying value of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets annually, or whenever circumstances suggest that
impairment may have occurred. We evaluate the carrying value of finite-lived intangible assets whenever circumstances suggest that impairment may have occurred.
Significant assumptions are utilized including forecasted operating results, strategic plans, economic projections, anticipated future cash flows, the weighted-average cost of
capital, comparable transactions, market data, and earnings multiples. The assumptions that have the most significant effect on the fair value calculations are the anticipated
future cash flows, discount rates, and the earnings multiples. While we use reasonable and timely information to prepare our cash flow and discount rate assumptions, actual
future cash flows or market conditions could differ significantly resulting in future non-cash impairment charges.
19

Table of Contents
EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW
Hillenbrand is a global diversified industrial company that makes and sells premium business-to-business products and services for a wide variety of industries. We pursue
profitable growth and meaningful dividends for our shareholders by leveraging our leading brands, robust cash generation capabilities, and strong core competencies.
Hillenbrand has two segments: the Process Equipment Group and Batesville®. The Process Equipment Group has multiple market-leading brands of process and material
handling equipment and systems serving a wide variety of industries across the globe. Batesville is a recognized leader in the North American death care industry. Batesville
performs several critical roles within the portfolio. It serves as the Company’s core cash-generating operation by providing strong annual operating cash flows. As the source
of Hillenbrand’s strong core competencies, including Lean, strategy management, and talent development, it provides talent to imbed these core competencies in acquired
companies. Batesville’s performance has allowed management to invest in acquisitions that provide diversification, with a focus on companies with growth opportunities and
an ability to benefit from Hillenbrand’s strong core competencies. We believe we can most effectively continue to increase shareholder value by leveraging our strong
financial position and core competencies to continue to build a global diversified industrial company with strong positions in multiple growth-oriented industries.
On March 20, 2013, Kenneth A. Camp notified the Board of Directors of Hillenbrand of his intent to retire as President, CEO, and a Director. Hillenbrand’s Board of
Directors thereafter announced its decision to transfer these leadership roles to Hillenbrand executive, Joe A. Raver. Mr. Camp stepped down from his executive and
directorial positions on September 6, 2013, to effect a smooth transition of leadership to Mr. Raver prior to Mr. Camp’s planned retirement as an employee of Hillenbrand on
December 31, 2013. In addition to his role as Hillenbrand’s president, CEO, and director, Mr. Raver also continues to serve as President of the Process Equipment Group.
Another significant event in 2013 was our acquisition of Coperion Capital GmbH (“Coperion”), on December 1, 2012, in a transaction valued at $540.7. Based in Stuttgart,
Germany, Coperion is a global leader in the manufacturing of compounding, extrusion, and material handling equipment used in a broad range of industries, including
plastics, chemicals, food processing, pharmaceutical, and aluminum. Coperion has been in business since 1879, operates nine manufacturing sites in Germany, the United
States (“U.S.”), China, and India, and has sales offices in approximately 30 locations in the Americas, Europe, and Asia. Approximately one-third of Coperion’s revenue is
derived from replacement parts and service, generating a large portion of recurring business due to its well-positioned service network and active installed base of equipment
across the world.
Coperion revenues consist of large system sales, equipment, components, replacement parts, and service. Large system sales are generally fulfilled over 12 to 18 months,
during which customers generally pay a deposit and make progress payments before and during the manufacture of the order. Working capital requirements for Coperion
generally range from an optimal negative working capital position, where cash received from customers is more heavily weighted toward the beginning of the project, to our
current position where a larger portion of the cash will be received in later stages of manufacturing.
The Coperion business model includes large system projects, where strong application and process engineering expertise is used to create a broad system solution for
customers. A certain amount of revenue for large system sales comes from third-party-sourced products that carry only a small up-charge. As a result, margins are lower on
these large system sales when compared to the rest of the business. Hillenbrand believes that selling these complete systems provides a significant competitive advantage and
increases margin dollars.
The Coperion acquisition was the largest in the Company’s history and represented an important step in the execution of our strategic plans to further diversify Hillenbrand
and accelerate the growth of the Process Equipment Group. The integration of Coperion with the Process Equipment Group will continue to be a key initiative for the next 12
months. Combining our product offerings to provide a more complete system solution is our highest priority from an integration perspective. In addition, we believe
leveraging Coperion’s global infrastructure will enable the existing businesses within the Process Equipment Group to enter new global markets more quickly. We also expect
the Process Equipment Group’s existing strong U.S. sales network will enhance Coperion’s expansion in North America. Finally, the application of the Company’s Lean tools

and other core competencies to Coperion’s operations is expected to contribute to improved margins and increased customer satisfaction.
The calculation of fair value of Coperion’s assets and liabilities is preliminary and subject to adjustment based on finalization of the closing balance sheet. The fair value
assigned to Coperion’s backlog was $34.3 and was amortized over 10 months. The fair values assigned to Coperion’s customer relationships and technology total $201.9 and
will be amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The fair value assigned to Coperion’s inventory resulted in a step-up in value of $21.6, and was
amortized through cost of goods sold over 10 months. The fair value assigned to Coperion’s property, plant, and equipment resulted in a step-up in value of $19.5, and will be
depreciated over the useful lives of the assets. The acquisition resulted in preliminary goodwill of $267.8.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW — CONSOLIDATED
Hillenbrand

2013 (a)

Net revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating profit
Interest expense
Other income (expense), net
Income tax expense
Net income(1)

$

1,553.4
527.2
409.1
118.1
24.0
(0.4 )
28.3
63.4

Year Ended September 30
2012

$

983.2
388.9
240.1
148.8
12.4
(1.5 )
30.1
104.8

2011 (b)

$

883.4
369.9
211.3
158.6
11.0
10.2
51.7
106.1

(1) Net income attributable to Hillenbrand
(a) Included ten months of operations related to Coperion following its acquisition on December 1, 2012
(b) Included one month of operations related to Rotex following its acquisition on August 31, 2011
Year Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2012
Revenue grew $570.2 (58%). Changes in foreign currency exchange rates did not have a significant impact on revenue year over year.
·

The Process Equipment Group’s revenue increased $556.3 (148%) due to the acquisition of Coperion ($590.9) in December 2012. Revenue for the rest of the Process
Equipment Group decreased 9% primarily due to the expected sharp reduction ($24.3) in demand for equipment that processes proppants. Demand for this type of
equipment spiked dramatically in the second quarter of 2012 and continued at relatively high levels before dropping off dramatically at the end of the fourth quarter of
2012. To a lesser degree, lower demand for equipment that is used in the potash industry also impacted revenue ($7.6).

·

Batesville’s revenue was $620.7, an increase of $13.9 (2%). The increase was due to an increase in the average selling price ($10.1) along with an increase in volume
($3.8).

Gross profit grew $138.3 (36%) to $527.2 due to growth in both segments. Consolidated gross profit margin was 33.9%, a decrease of 570 basis points. On an adjusted
basis, which excluded items described below, gross profit grew $159.3 (41%) to $552.4 and adjusted gross profit margin was 35.6%, a decrease of 440 basis points.
·

The Process Equipment Group’s gross profit grew $122.3 (76%) to $283.8 and was driven by the Coperion acquisition. This increase was offset in part by a $15.9
decrease for the rest of the Process Equipment Group due to lower revenue. Gross profit margin was 30.4% in 2013 compared to 42.9% in 2012. The decrease in gross
profit margin was a reflection of the Coperion acquisition, which includes large system sales. A certain amount of revenue for large system sales comes from thirdparty-sourced products that carry only a small up-charge. As a result, margins are lower on these large system sales when compared to the rest of the business.
Gross profit margin also included Coperion acquisition-related charges ($22.0 in 2013) and restructuring charges ($0.3 in 2013 and $0.9 in 2012). Excluding these
items, adjusted gross profit grew $143.7 (88%) to $306.1. Adjusted gross profit margin decreased from 43.1% in 2012 to 32.8% in 2013.

·

Batesville’s gross profit grew $16.0 (7%) to $243.4. Gross profit margin grew 170 basis points to 39.2% in 2013. This growth was primarily driven by an increase in
the average selling price in 2013 ($10.1), higher volumes ($2.1), and savings from structural changes implemented in 2012 that benefited 2013 ($3.2). The increase
was offset in part by savings in 2012 related to changes in employee benefits and other estimates ($2.3).
Included in gross profit margin are restructuring charges ($2.9 in 2013 and $3.3 in 2012). Excluding these charges, adjusted gross profit grew $15.6 (7%) to $246.3 in
2013. Adjusted gross profit margin was 39.7%, a 170 basis-point improvement over 2012.
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Operating expenses increased $169.0 to $409.1 in 2013, primarily due to the acquisition of Coperion. Operating expenses as a percentage of revenue increased 190 basis
points to 26.3% in 2013. This includes $10.4 of ongoing amortization expense for the ten months since Coperion was acquired and the following items:
Year Ended September 30,
2013
2012

Backlog amortization
Business acquisition costs
Restructuring charges
Antitrust litigation expenses
Long-term incentive compensation expense related to the international integration

$

34.5
16.8
0.9
0.2
—

$

2.5
4.2
4.3
5.5
2.2

The vesting of our long-term performance-based stock awards is contingent upon the creation of shareholder value as measured by the cumulative cash returns and final
period net operating profit after tax compared to the established hurdle rate over a three-year period. As such, the tax benefit from the international integration in 2012
resulted in additional compensation expense related to performance-based stock awards.
On an adjusted basis, which excluded backlog amortization, business acquisition costs, restructuring charges, antitrust litigation expenses, and long-term incentive
compensation expense related to the international integration, operating expenses increased $135.3 to $356.6. Our adjusted operating expense-to-revenue ratio increased by 50
basis points to 23.0% in 2013.

Our continued focus on the application of Hillenbrand’s Lean business principles and practices continues to increase efficiencies across the organization. This is evident both
in the Process Equipment Group, which is continuing to mature in these practices, and Batesville, where Lean has evolved to an advanced level with projects such as singlepoint scheduling to connect its entire value chain.
Interest expense increased $11.6 due primarily to borrowings in connection with the Coperion acquisition, which led to higher weighted-average principal borrowings and
higher interest rates on the revolving credit facility as well as interest expense incurred on the new term loan.
Other income (expense), net was $0.4 of expense in 2013 compared to $1.5 of expense in 2012. See Note 11 to our financial statements included in Part II, Item 8, of this
Form 10-K for more detailed information.
The income tax rate was 30.2% in 2013 compared to 22.3% in 2012. The year-over-year change in the effective tax rate was largely due to a $10.4 reduction of income tax
expense in 2012, attributable to the permanent reinvestment of historical earnings of certain Swiss operations. (For more information, see Note 7 to our financial statements
included in Part II, Item 8, of this Form 10-K.) The effective income tax rate was favorably impacted by the acquisition of Coperion, which produced a larger percentage of
income from foreign sources in lower tax rate jurisdictions in 2013. Excluding the $10.4 tax benefit as well as the tax effect of all other adjustments discussed above, our
adjusted effective income tax rate was 29.9% in 2013 compared to 30.5% in 2012.
Year Ended September 30, 2012 Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2011
Revenue grew $99.8 (11%) or $103.7 on a constant currency basis.
·

The Process Equipment Group’s revenue increased $130.5 (53%) or $133.3 (54%) on a constant currency basis. The revenue increase was due primarily to the
acquisition of Rotex in August 2011 ($109.7), in addition to 9% growth in the rest of the Process Equipment Group.

·

Batesville’s revenue was $606.8, a decrease of $30.7 (5%) or $29.6 on a constant currency basis. The decrease was the result of lower volume ($30.3).
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Gross profit grew $19.0 (5%) to $388.9 in 2012 due to growth in the Process Equipment Group, offset by Batesville results. Gross profit margin was 39.6%, a decrease of
230 basis points. On an adjusted basis, which excluded items described below, gross profit grew $20.4 (5%) to $393.1 and adjusted gross profit margin decreased 220 basis
points to 40.0%.
·

The Process Equipment Group’s gross profit grew $55.8 (53%) to $161.5. Gross profit margin decreased 10 basis points to 42.9% in 2012 due to product mix and
market factors that impact pricing.
The Process Equipment Group’s gross profit included restructuring charges ($0.9 in 2012) and inventory step-up charges related to the Rotex acquisition ($2.8 in
2011). Excluding these items, adjusted gross profit grew $53.9 (50%) to $162.4 and adjusted gross profit margin decreased 100 basis points to 43.1% in 2012.

·

Batesville’s gross profit decreased $36.8 (14%) to $227.4. Gross profit margin decreased 390 basis points to 37.5% in 2012. The decrease in the gross profit margin
was due to lower volume ($19.4), increased commodity costs ($4.8), increased distribution costs ($2.3), and short-term transition costs including those related to a shift
consolidation ($1.6).
Batesville’s gross profit also included restructuring charges ($3.3 in 2012). Excluding the restructuring charges, adjusted gross profit decreased $33.5 (13%) to $230.7
and adjusted gross profit margin decreased 340 basis points to 38.0% in 2012.

Operating expenses increased $28.8 to $240.1 in 2012, primarily due to the acquisition of Rotex. Operating expenses as a percentage of revenue increased 50 basis points to
24.4%. Amortization of intangible assets was $21.7 in 2012, which included a full year of amortization expense related to the Rotex acquisition, compared to $17.0 in 2011,
which included only one month of Rotex’s amortization expense. Operating expenses also included the following items:
Year Ended September 30,
2012
2011

Backlog amortization
Business acquisition costs
Restructuring charges
Antitrust litigation expenses
Long-term incentive compensation expense related to theInternational integration
Sales tax recoveries

$

2.5
4.2
4.3
5.5
2.2
—

$

0.8
6.3
1.3
1.3
—
(0.8 )

On an adjusted basis, which excluded the items listed in the table above, operating expenses increased $18.9 to $221.3. Our adjusted operating expense-to-revenue ratio
improved by 40 basis points to 22.5%.
Interest expense increased $1.4 in 2012 due primarily to higher weighted-average principal borrowings on the revolving credit facility.
Other income (expense), net was $1.5 of expense in 2012 compared to $10.2 of income in 2011, representing a variance of $11.7.
·
·
·

Interest income related to the Forethought Note was $6.4 less in 2012 due to the early collection of the note in April 2011.
Income from investments in limited partnerships decreased $3.8 in 2012.
See Note 11 to our financial statements included in Part II, Item 8, of this Form 10-K for more detailed information.

The income tax rate was 22.3% in 2012 compared to 32.8% in 2011. The year-over-year change in the effective tax rate was largely due to a $10.4 tax benefit recognized in
2012 attributable to the permanent reinvestment of historical earnings of certain Swiss operations. The rate was also favorably impacted by an increase in the percentage of
foreign source income in lower rate jurisdictions, and a decrease in uncertain tax positions. Excluding the $10.4 benefit, our adjusted income tax rate was 30.5% in 2012
compared to 32.9% in 2011.
23

Table of Contents
OPERATIONS REVIEW — PROCESS EQUIPMENT GROUP

Year Ended September 30,
2013 (a)
Amount

Revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating profit
Depreciation and amortization

$

2012
% of
Revenue

932.7
283.8
265.8
18.0
71.1

Amount

100.0
30.4
28.5
1.9
7.6

$

376.4
161.5
107.4
54.1
23.3

2011 (b)
% of
Revenue

100.0
42.9
28.5
14.4
6.2

Amount

$

245.9
105.7
72.3
33.4
17.5

% of
Revenue

100.0
43.0
29.4
13.6
7.1

(a) Included ten months of operations related to Coperion following its acquisition on December 1, 2012
(b) Included one month of operations related to Rotex following its acquisition on August 31, 2011
Year Ended September 30, 2013, Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2012
Revenue increased $556.3 (148%) driven by the acquisition of Coperion ($590.9) in December 2012. For the rest of the Process Equipment Group, revenue decreased 9%
primarily due to the expected sharp reduction ($24.3) in demand for equipment that processes proppants. Demand for this type of equipment spiked dramatically in the second
quarter of 2012 and continued at relatively high levels before dropping off dramatically at the end of the fourth quarter of 2012. To a lesser degree, lower demand for
equipment used in the potash industry also impacted revenue ($7.6).
We believe that the industries the Process Equipment Group serves have attractive long-term growth prospects because of the increase in demand resulting from the
expanding middle class in countries such as China and India. While overall demand for Process Equipment Group products is expected to increase over the long run, we
expect demand to shift from time to time. These shifts can be attributed to the cyclicality of these industries, as demonstrated in the proppants market in 2012, or by long-term
capacity expansions, as demonstrated currently with the building and expansion of polyolefin plants.
We expect future revenue for the Process Equipment Group to continue to be influenced by order backlog because of the lead time involved in fulfilling engineered-to-order
equipment for customers. Though backlog can be an indicator of future revenue, it does not include projects and parts orders that are booked and shipped within the same
quarter. The timing of order placement, size of orders, extent of order customization, and customer delivery dates can create fluctuations in backlog and revenue. Revenue
attributable to backlog is also affected by foreign exchange rate fluctuations for orders denominated in currencies other than U.S. dollars. Based upon new orders accepted,
including those related to the Coperion acquisition, less orders completed and shipped, backlog increased from $120.5 on September 30, 2012, to $604.3 on September 30,
2013. Backlog increased primarily due to the acquisition of Coperion.
Gross profit grew $122.3 (76%) to $283.8 primarily due to the Coperion acquisition, offset in part by a $15.9 decrease for the rest of the Process Equipment Group due to
lower revenue. Gross profit margin decreased from 42.9% to 30.4%.
The decrease in gross profit margin in 2013 was a reflection of the Coperion acquisition, which includes large system sales.A certain amount of revenue for large system sales
comes from third-party-sourced products that carry only a small up-charge. As a result, margins are lower on these large system sales when compared to the rest of the
business.
Gross profit included inventory step-up charges related to the Coperion acquisition ($21.8 in 2013), restructuring costs ($0.3 in 2013 and $0.9 in 2012), and business
acquisition costs ($0.2 in 2013). Step-ups in inventory value were recorded at the time of the Coperion acquisition and were subsequently expensed when the inventory was
sold. Excluding these items, adjusted gross profit increased $143.7 (88%) to $306.1 and adjusted gross profit margin decreased from 43.1% to 32.8%.
Operating expenses increased $158.4 to $265.8 and our operating expense-to-revenue ratio was flat year over year at 28.5%. Operating expenses included ten months of
ongoing amortization expense ($10.4) related to intangible assets acquired in the Coperion acquisition.
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Operating expenses also included backlog amortization ($34.5 in 2013 and $2.5 in 2012), business acquisition costs ($3.1 in 2013), restructuring costs ($0.2 in 2013 and $2.8
in 2012), and long-term incentive compensation related to the international integration ($0.2 in 2012). Excluding these charges, adjusted operating expenses increased $126.1
to $228.0 and the adjusted operating expense-to-revenue ratio was 24.4% compared to 27.1% in 2012.
Year Ended September 30, 2012, Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2011
Revenue increased $130.5 (53%) in 2012, or $133.3 (54%) on a constant currency basis. The increase was attributable primarily to the Rotex acquisition ($109.7), as well as
9% growth in the rest of the Process Equipment Group. Rotex revenue was positively impacted by increased demand for equipment that processes proppants. Demand for this
type of equipment spiked dramatically in the second quarter of 2012 and continued at relatively high levels before dropping off dramatically at the end of the fourth quarter of
2012. Based upon new orders accepted, including those related to the Rotex acquisition, less orders completed and shipped, order backlog increased from $119.0 on
September 30, 2011, to $120.5 on September 30, 2012.
Gross profit increased 53% to $161.5 in 2012 primarily as a result of the Rotex acquisition. Gross profit margin decreased by 10 basis points to 42.9%. Gross profit margin
for the Process Equipment Group is influenced by a variety of factors, including the timing and size of orders, the mix of products and services sold, and market factors that
impact pricing.
Gross profit included restructuring costs ($0.9 in 2012) and inventory step-up charges ($2.8 in 2011). Step-ups in inventory value were recorded at the time of the Rotex
acquisition and were subsequently expensed when the inventory was sold. Excluding these costs, adjusted gross profit increased $53.9 to $162.4 and the adjusted gross profit
margin decreased by 100 basis points to 43.1%. Early in 2012 the Process Equipment Group was strategically realigned through the consolidation of certain manufacturing
facilities. This resulted in the closure of one manufacturing plant, enabling the Process Equipment Group to more efficiently meet customer needs, while continuing to
provide the same high-quality products and services.
Operating expenses increased $35.1 to $107.4 in 2012. The operating expense-to-revenue ratio improved from 29.4% in 2011 to 28.5% in 2012 due to the integration of
Rotex, which has a lower operating expense-to-revenue ratio than the rest of the Process Equipment Group.
Operating expenses include restructuring charges ($2.8 in 2012), backlog amortization ($2.5 in 2012 and $0.8 in 2011), and long-term incentive compensation related to the
international integration ($0.2 in 2012). Excluding these items, adjusted operating expenses increased $30.7 to $101.9 and the adjusted operating expense-to-revenue ratio
improved 190 basis points to 27.1%.
OPERATIONS REVIEW — BATESVILLE
Year Ended September 30,

2013
% of
Revenue

Amount

Revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating profit
Depreciation and amortization

$

2012

620.7
243.4
100.1
143.3
17.9

% of
Revenue

Amount

100.0
39.2
16.1
23.1
2.9

$

2011

606.8
227.4
99.0
128.4
16.6

100.0
37.5
16.3
21.2
2.7

% of
Revenue

Amount

$

637.5
264.2
101.5
162.7
17.8

100.0
41.4
15.9
25.5
2.8

Year Ended September 30, 2013, Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2012
Revenue increased $13.9 (2%) to $620.7 in 2013 and was driven primarily by an increase in the average selling price ($10.1) and volume ($3.8). Based on preliminary U.S.
and Canadian mortality information, the death care industry experienced a year-over-year increase in deaths that was slightly higher than the estimated increase of families
choosing cremation. This resulted in flat to slightly increasing burial product demand versus 2012.
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Gross profit increased 7% to $243.4 in 2013 and gross profit margin improved 170 basis points to 39.2%. The increase in gross profit was primarily driven by an increase in
the average selling price in 2013 ($10.1), savings from structural changes implemented in 2012 that benefitted 2013 ($3.2), and higher volumes ($2.1), and were offset in part
by savings in 2012 related to changes in employee benefits and other estimates ($2.3).
Gross profit also included restructuring charges ($2.9 in 2013 and $3.3 in 2012). Excluding restructuring charges, adjusted gross profit grew $15.6 (7%) to $246.3 and
adjusted gross profit margin was 39.7%, a 170-basis-point improvement over 2012.
Operating expenses increased $1.1 (1%) to $100.1 in 2013 and the operating expense-to-revenue ratio was relatively flat at 16.1% compared to 16.3% in 2012. Operating
expenses increased in 2013 due to strategic initiatives spending, particularly in technology offerings ($4.4), and incentive compensation expense ($3.0). Changes in employee
benefits and other estimates reduced expense by $4.4 in 2012.
Operating expenses included restructuring charges ($0.5 in 2013 and $0.6 in 2012), antitrust litigation expense ($0.2 in 2013 and $5.5 in 2012), and long-term incentive
compensation related to the international integration ($0.8 in 2012). Excluding these charges, adjusted operating expenses increased 8% to $99.3, and the adjusted operating
expense-to-revenue ratio increased by 80 basis points to 16.0%.
Year Ended September 30, 2012, Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2011
Revenue decreased $30.7 (5%) to $606.8 in 2012 primarily due to a decrease in volume ($30.3). Revenue decreased $29.6 on a constant currency basis. The volume
decrease was a result of the decrease in U.S. and Canadian burial product demand driven by an above average change in the percentage of families choosing cremation.
Gross profit decreased 14% to $227.4 in 2012 and gross profit margin decreased 390 basis points to 37.5%. This decrease was primarily due to lower volume ($19.4),
increased distribution costs ($2.3), and increased commodity costs ($4.8), and was offset in part by $2.3 in savings related to changes in employee benefits and other estimates.
Batesville also incurred $1.6 in transition costs in 2012. Management consistently sizes operations to respond to changing market conditions and consumer preferences, and
continuously evaluates capacities to ensure products are manufactured in the most efficient manner possible. As a result, Batesville consolidated the first and second shifts at
one of its plants and converted one of its international manufacturing facilities into a distribution center.
Gross profit also included restructuring charges ($3.3 in 2012). Excluding these charges, adjusted gross profit decreased 13% to $230.7, and adjusted gross profit margin
decreased 340 basis points to 38%.
Operating expenses decreased $2.5 (2%) to $99.0 in 2012 and the operating expense-to-revenue ratio increased from 15.9% to 16.3%. Management adjusted its cost
structure to offset declining volumes and reduced compensation and benefit expenses by $7.6, including $4.4 of savings related to changes in employee benefits and other
estimates that we do not expect to take place again in the future.
Operating expenses included antitrust litigation expense ($5.5 in 2012 and $1.3 in 2011), restructuring charges ($0.6 in 2012 and $1.3 in 2011), long-term incentive
compensation related to the international integration ($0.8 in 2012), and sales tax recoveries ($0.8 in 2011). Excluding these items, adjusted operating expenses decreased
$7.7 to $92.0 and the operating expense-to-revenue ratio improved by 40 basis points to 15.2%.
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REVIEW OF CORPORATE EXPENSES
Year Ended September 30,
2012
% of
Amount
Revenue

2013
% of
Revenue

Amount

Operating expenses, excluding business acquisition costs, long-term
incentive compensation related to the international integration,
and restructuring costs
Business acquisition costs
Long-term incentive compensation related to the international
integration
Restructuring costs
Operating expenses

$

$

Depreciation and amortization

29.3
13.7

1.9
0.9

—
0.2
43.2

—
—
2.8

0.4

$

$

27.4
4.2

2.8
0.4

1.2
0.9
33.7

0.1
0.1
3.4

0.5

2011
% of
Revenue

Amount

$

$

31.5
6.0

3.5
0.7

—
—
37.5

—
—
4.2

0.8

Year Ended September 30, 2013, Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2012
Operating expenses excluding business acquisition costs, long-term incentive compensation related to the international integration, and restructuring costs increased $1.9 (7%)

in 2013. The year-over-year increase was driven by increased incentive compensation ($1.5). These expenses as a percentage of revenue were 1.9%, an improvement of 90
basis points compared to 2.8% in 2012. We expect this ratio to continue to decline.
Year Ended September 30, 2012, Compared to Year Ended September 30, 2011
Operating expenses excluding business acquisition costs, long-term incentive compensation related to the international integration, and restructuring costs decreased $4.1
(13%) in 2012. These expenses as a percentage of revenue were 2.8%, an improvement of 70 basis points compared to 3.5% in 2011. The year-over-year decrease was driven
by a reduction in incentive compensation ($3.8).
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NON-GAAP OPERATING PERFORMANCE MEASURES
The following are reconciliations from GAAP operating performance measures to the relevant non-GAAP (adjusted) performance measures.

GAAP

2013
Adjustments

Year Ended September 30,
2012
GAAP
Adjustments
Adjusted

Adjusted

GAAP

2011
Adjustments

Adjusted

Interest expense

24.0

Other income (expense), net
Income tax expense
Net income(1)
Diluted EPS

(0.4 )
28.3
63.4
1.01

)
(25.2 (a) $
)
(52.5 (b)
)
(1.2 (c)
)
(1.1 (d)
22.9 (e)
54.9
0.87

33.9 %

1.7%

35.6 %

39.6 %

0.4%

40.0 %

41.9 %

0.3%

42.2 %

26.3 %

(3.3 )%

23.0 %

24.4 %

(1.9 )%

22.5 %

23.9 %

(1.0 )%

22.9 %

Cost of goods sold

$

Operating expenses

Ratios:
Gross margin
Operating expenses as a % of
revenue

1,026.2
409.1

$

1,001.0

$

594.3

$

(4.2)(f) $

590.1

$

513.5

$

(2.8)(i) $

510.7

(8.9 )(j)

202.4

356.6

240.1

(18.8)(g)

221.3

211.3

22.8

12.4

—

12.4

11.0

—

11.0

(1.5 )
51.2
118.3
1.88

(1.5 )
30.1
104.8
1.68

—
18.1 (h)
4.9
0.08

(1.5 )
48.2
109.7
1.76

10.2
51.7
106.1
1.71

—
4.0(k)
7.7
0.13

10.2
55.7
113.8
1.84

(1) Net income attributable to Hillenbrand
P = Process Equipment Group; B = Batesville; C = Corporate
(a) Inventory step-up ($21.8 P), restructuring ($0.3 P, $2.9 B), business acquisition costs ($0.2 P)
(b) Backlog amortization ($34.5 P), business acquisition costs ($3.1 P, $13.7 C), restructuring ($0.2 P, $0.5 B, $0.2 C), antitrust litigation ($0.2 B), other ($0.1 B)
(c) Business acquisition costs ($1.2 C)
(d) Acquisition-related foreign currency transactions ($0.8 C), business acquisition costs ($0.2 C), other ($0.1 B)
(e) Tax effect of adjustments
(f) Restructuring ($0.9 P, $3.3 B)
(g) Antitrust litigation ($5.5 B), restructuring ($2.8 P, $0.6 B, $0.9 C), business acquisition costs ($4.2 C), backlog amortization ($2.5 P), long—term incentive compensation
related to the international integration ($0.2 P, $0.8 B, $1.2 C), other ($0.1 B)
(h) Tax benefit of the international integration ($10.4), tax effect of adjustments ($7.7)
(i) Inventory step-up ($2.8 P)
(j) Restructuring ($1.3 B), antitrust litigation ($1.3 B), business acquisition costs ($0.3 P, $6.0 C), backlog amortization ($0.8 P), sales tax recoveries ($0.8 B)
(k) Tax effect of adjustments
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Year Ended September 30,
2012

2013

Net income of consolidated and affiliated subsidiaries
Interest income
Interest expense
Income tax expense
Depreciation and amortization
EBITDA
Antitrust litigation
Long-term incentive compensation related to the international integration
Restructuring
Inventory step-up
Business acquisition costs
Other
EBITDA - Adjusted

$

$

$

65.4
(0.6 )
24.0
28.3
89.4
206.5
0.2
—
2.8
21.8
16.0
0.2
247.5

$

$

$

104.8
(0.5 )
12.4
30.1
40.4
187.2
5.5
2.2
8.3
—
4.2
—
207.4

2011

$

$

$

106.1
(7.4 )
11.0
51.7
36.1
197.5
1.3
—
1.3
2.8
6.3
(0.8 )
208.4

Adjusted EBITDA for 2013 compared to 2012 increased $40.1 (19.3%), due primarily to the acquisition of Coperion and increased volume at Batesville. Adjusted EBITDA
for 2012 compared to 2011 decreased $1.0 (1%), primarily due to the decrease in volume at Batesville and lower investment income. This decrease was offset in part by
growth from the Rotex acquisition, as well as growth in the rest of the Process Equipment Group.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
We believe our ability to generate cash from operating activities is one of our fundamental financial strengths. In this section, we discuss our ability to generate and access
cash to meet business needs. We describe actual results in generating and utilizing cash by comparing 2013 to 2012. We discuss how we see cash flow being affected for the

next 12 months. While it is not a certainty, we explain where we think the cash will come from and how we intend to use it. Finally, we identify other significant matters that
could affect liquidity on an ongoing basis.
We believe the twelve-month outlook for our business remains strong. As a result of our expected cash flows from operations, we have significant flexibility to meet our
financial commitments including working capital needs, capital expenditures, and financing obligations. Our debt financing includes long-term notes, a term loan, and a
revolving credit facility, as part of our overall financing strategy. We believe we continue to have ready access to capital markets and regularly review the optimal mix of
fixed-rate and variable-rate debt. In addition to cash balances and our ability to access long-term financing, we had $349.7 of borrowing capacity available under the
revolving credit facility as of September 30, 2013. The available borrowing capacity reflects a reduction of $24.8 for outstanding letters of credit issued under the facility.
The Company has the ability to increase the total borrowing capacity under the revolving credit facility by an additional $300.0 subject to approval of the lenders.
In the normal course of business, the Process Equipment Group provides to certain customers bank guarantees and other credit arrangements in support of performance,
warranty, advance payment, and other contractual obligations. This form of trade finance is customary in the industry and, as a result, we are required to maintain adequate
capacity to provide the guarantees. As of September 30, 2013, we had credit arrangements totaling $305.9, under which $204.6 was utilized for this purpose. These
arrangements include a €150.0 Syndicated Letter of Guarantee Facility (“LG Facility”) entered into on June 3, 2013, under which unsecured letters of credit, bank guarantees,
or other surety bonds may be issued. The LG Facility matures on June 3, 2018, or earlier, should we elect to discontinue or fail to replace our primary credit facility which
expires on July 27, 2017. The Company has the ability to increase the total capacity under the LG facility by an additional €70.0 subject to approval of the lenders. There
were no direct cash borrowings under these credit arrangements as of September 30, 2013.
We have significant operations outside the U.S. The majority of foreign earnings is considered to be indefinitely reinvested in foreign jurisdictions where the Company has
made, and intends to continue to make, substantial investments to support the ongoing development and growth of our international operations. Accordingly, no U.S. federal
and state income taxes have been accrued on the portion of our foreign earnings that is considered to be indefinitely reinvested in foreign jurisdictions. The cash at our
international subsidiaries totaled $33.4 at September 30, 2013. We do not intend, nor do we foresee a need, to repatriate these funds; however, repatriation of these funds
under current regulatory and tax law for use in domestic operations would expose us to additional taxes.
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We did not make discretionary contributions to our pension plans in 2013. We are not required to make discretionary contributions, nor do we currently have plans to do so in
2014. Our minimum required contribution to our pension plans in 2014 is $20.1. We will continue to monitor plan funding levels, performance of the assets within the plans,
and overall economic activity, and will make funding decisions based on the net impact of the above factors.
We currently expect to pay quarterly cash dividends in the future comparable to those we paid in 2013, which will require approximately $12.4 each quarter based on our
outstanding common stock at September 30, 2013. We are currently authorized by our Board of Directors to purchase additional shares of our common stock, and may elect
to do so, depending on market conditions and other needs for cash consistent with our growth strategy. We did not make any repurchases during 2013.
We expect existing cash, cash flows from operations, and the issuance of debt to continue to be sufficient to fund our operating activities and cash commitments for investing
and financing activities. Based on all of the aforementioned factors, we believe our current liquidity position is strong and will continue to meet all of our financial
commitments for the foreseeable future.
(in millions)

Cash flows provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Year Ended September 30,
2012

2013

$

$

127.2
(441.0 )
336.5
(0.2 )
22.5

$

$

138.2
(22.5 )
(211.1 )
0.1
(95.3 )

2011

$

$

189.5
(154.5 )
(22.0 )
4.1
17.1

Operating Activities
Cash provided by operating activities in 2013 compared to 2012 decreased $11.0 (8%) primarily due to increased working capital requirements at Coperion, where we made
investments to finance Coperion customer projects in process. Certain projects underway have payment schedules where a large portion of the cash will be received in later
stages of manufacturing. The terms of these deposits and progress payments vary greatly among industries and geographies.
Working capital requirements for Coperion generally range from an optimal negative working capital position, where cash received from customers is more heavily weighted
toward the beginning of the project, to our current position where a larger portion of the cash will be received in later stages of manufacturing. We expect working capital
may fluctuate in the future due to the mix and geography of customer projects in process at any point in time.
Cash provided by operating activities in 2012 compared to 2011 decreased $51.3 (27%), primarily due to the receipt of $59.7 of interest in 2011 in conjunction with the final
settlement of the Forethought Note, offset in part by $6.4 of related interest income. The Process Equipment Group’s core pre-tax operating cash flows contributed
approximately $6.3 more to our operating cash flows in 2012 compared to the prior year, as 12 months of operations were included for Rotex compared to one month in 2011.
In addition, cash provided by operating activities was positively affected by a $26.2 decrease in cash payments for income taxes in 2012.
Investing Activities
Cash used in investing activities in 2013 compared to 2012 was largely impacted by increased acquisition activity ($415.7 paid in 2013, primarily related to Coperion,
compared to $4.4 paid in 2012), and increased capital expenditures in 2013 ($9.0).
Cash used in investing activities in 2012 compared to 2011 was largely impacted by decreased acquisition activity ($4.4 paid in 2012 compared to $240.4 paid in 2011 for
Rotex). In addition, we received $91.5 for the full repayment of principal on the Forethought Note in 2011 and sold auction rate securities and investments ($0.8 in 2012 and
$12.4 in 2011).
Financing Activities
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities was largely impacted by our acquisition activity. Our practice is to utilize our cash to pay down debt unless it is needed for an
acquisition. Cash provided by financing activities in 2013 was $336.5 compared to cash used by financing activities in 2012 of $211.1. Net borrowings of $389.3 in 2013
were due primarily to the acquisition of Coperion, including net borrowings on the term loan ($190.0) and the revolving credit facility ($199.3). During 2012, we made
$160.0 of net repayments on our revolving credit facility.
We returned over $48.7 to shareholders in 2013 in the form of quarterly dividends. We increased our quarterly dividend in 2013 to $0.1950 per common share from $0.1925
paid during 2012 and $0.1900 paid in 2011.
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Cash used in financing activities in 2012 was $189.1 higher compared to 2011. We made $162.3 of net repayments under our revolving credit facilities in 2012, compared to
net borrowings of $28.1 in 2011. In 2011, we used $150.9 of proceeds from the collection of the Forethought Note to pay down our revolving credit facilities and borrowed
$159.0 under our revolving credit facilities to fund the acquisition of Rotex.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no significant off-balance sheet arrangements.
Inflation
The effect of broad-based inflation on the Company’s revenues and net earnings was not significant in 2013, 2012, or 2011.
Contractual Obligations and Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
The following table summarizes our future obligations as of September 30, 2013. This will help give you an understanding of the significance of cash outlays that are fixed
beyond the normal accounts payable we have already incurred and have recorded in the financial statements.
Payment Due by Period

(in millions)

Total

10 year, 5.5% fixed rate senior unsecured notes
Revolving credit facility (1)
Term loan
Interest on financing agreements (2)
Operating lease obligations (noncancellable)
Purchase obligations (3)
Defined benefit plan funding (4)
Other long-term liabilities (5)
Capital call arrangements (6)
Total contractual obligations

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

Less
Than 1
Year

$

$

150.0
325.5
190.0
82.9
114.2
190.9
170.4
18.5
3.0
1,245.4

$

$

—
—
10.0
15.8
19.6
169.9
20.9
4.3
3.0
243.5

1-3
Years

$

$

4-5
Years

—
—
35.0
30.9
26.7
21.0
44.6
5.6
—
163.8

$

$

After 5
Years

—
325.5
145.0
21.1
14.5
—
40.9
3.3
—
550.3

$

$

150.0
—
—
15.1
53.4
—
64.0
5.3
—
287.8

Our revolving credit facility expires in July 2017. Although we may make earlier principal payments, we have reflected the principal balance due at expiration.
Cash obligations for interest requirements relate to our fixed-rate debt obligation at its contractual rate and borrowings under the variable-rate revolving credit facility and
term loan at their current rate at September 30, 2013.
Agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable and legally binding and that specify all significant terms, including fixed or minimum quantities to be
purchased; fixed, minimum or variable price provisions; and the approximate timing of the transaction.
Non-discretionary requirements based upon plan funding at September 30, 2013, excluding discretionary contributions.
Included the estimated liquidation of liabilities related to our casket pricing obligation, self-insurance reserves, and long-term severance payments.
We could be called upon by our private equity limited partnership investments to provide a maximum of $3.0 in additional funds.
We have excluded our $6.4 liability related to uncertain tax positions from the table as the current portion is not significant and we are not able to reasonably estimate the
timing of the long-term portion.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Standards
For a summary of recently issued and adopted accounting standards applicable to us, see Note 2 to our financial statements included in Part II, Item 8, of this Form 10-K.
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Item 7A.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

In this section, we tell you about market risks we think could have a significant impact on our bottom line or the financial strength of our Company. The term “market risk”
generally means how results of operations and the value of assets and liabilities could be affected by market factors such as interest rates, currency exchange rates, the value of
commodities, and debt and equity price risks. If those factors change significantly, it could help or hurt our bottom line, depending on how we react to them.
We are exposed to various market risks. We have established policies, procedures, and internal processes governing our management of market risks and the use of financial
instruments to manage our exposure to such risks. Our primary exposures are to: fluctuations in market prices for purchases of certain commodities; volatility in interest rates
associated with our revolving credit facility and term loan; volatility in the fair value of our investments; and variability in exchange rates in foreign locations.
We are subject to market risk from fluctuating market prices of certain purchased commodity raw materials including steel, wood, red metals, and fuel. While these materials
are typically available from multiple suppliers, commodity raw materials are subject to market price fluctuations. We generally buy these commodities based upon market
prices that are established with the supplier as part of the purchasing process. We generally attempt to obtain firm pricing from our larger suppliers for volumes consistent
with planned production. To the extent that commodity prices increase and we do not have firm pricing from our suppliers, or if our suppliers are not able to honor such
prices, we may experience a decline in our gross margins to the extent we are not able to increase selling prices of our products or obtain supply chain efficiencies to offset
increases in commodity costs.
At September 30, 2013, we had $325.5 outstanding under our $700.0 revolving credit facility and $190.0 outstanding under a related term loan. We are subject to interest rate
risk associated with our revolving credit facility and related term loan, which bear a variable rate of interest that is based upon the lender’s base rate or the LIBOR rate. The
interest we pay on our borrowings is dependent on interest rate conditions and the timing of our financing needs. Assuming these borrowings remain at $515.5 for 12 months,
a one percentage point change in the related interest rates would increase or decrease our annual interest expense by approximately $5.2; a $4.0 increase in interest rate
exposure over 2012.
We are subject to volatility in our investment portfolio. The investment portfolio included interests in private equity limited partnerships and warrants for the purchase of
common stock with an aggregate carrying value of $11.3 at September 30, 2013. These investments could be adversely affected by general economic conditions, changes in

interest rates, default on debt instruments, and other factors. The changes in the fair value of the limited partnerships’ underlying investment portfolios can impact us
significantly because we record our share of the change in our income statement under the equity method of accounting.
We are subject to variability in foreign currency exchange rates in our international operations. Exposure to this variability is periodically managed through the use of natural
hedges and also by entering into currency exchange agreements. As of September 30, 2013, a 10% change in the foreign exchange rates affecting unhedged balance sheet
exposures would have impacted pre-tax earnings by less than 2%.
The translation of the balance sheets of our non-U.S. operations from local currencies into U.S. dollars is also sensitive to changes in foreign exchange rates. These translation
gains or losses are recorded as cumulative translation adjustments (“CTA”) within accumulated other comprehensive loss on our balance sheet. Using the example above, the
hypothetical change in CTA would be calculated by multiplying the net assets of our non-U.S. operations by a 10% change in the applicable foreign exchange rates. The
result of the appreciation/depreciation of all applicable currencies versus the U.S. dollar would be to change shareholders’ equity by approximately $47 as of September 30,
2013.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company. In order to evaluate the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, management has conducted an assessment, including testing, using the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in 1992. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting,
as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act), is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.
On December 1, 2012, we completed our acquisition of Coperion, which included its existing information systems and internal controls over financial reporting. In
conducting our evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting as of September 30, 2013, we have elected to exclude Coperion from our
evaluation for 2013 as permitted under existing SEC rules. We are currently in the process of evaluating and integrating Coperion’s historical internal controls over financial
reporting with those of the rest of the Company. The integration may lead to changes in future periods, but we do not expect these changes to materially affect our internal
controls over financial reporting. We expect to complete this integration in 2014.
Based on our assessment under the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, issued by the COSO, management has concluded that the Company
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2013.
Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2013, has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report included herein.
By:

/s/ Elizabeth E. Dreyer
Elizabeth E. Dreyer
Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer

By:

/s/ Cynthia L. Lucchese
Cynthia L. Lucchese
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

By:

/s/ Joe A. Raver
Joe A. Raver
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Hillenbrand, Inc.:
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Hillenbrand, Inc. and its
subsidiaries (the “Company”) at September 30, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
September 30, 2013, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule
listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2013, based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in
1992. The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement
and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.
As described in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management has excluded Coperion from its assessment of internal control over
financial reporting as of September 30, 2013, because it was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination during 2013. We have also excluded Coperion
from our audit of internal control over financial reporting. Coperion is a wholly-owned subsidiary whose assets and total revenues represent 21% and 38%, respectively, of
the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013.
/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Indianapolis, Indiana
November 25, 2013
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HILLENBRAND, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Year Ended September 30,
2012

2013

Net revenue
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating profit
Interest expense
Other income (expense), net
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Consolidated net income
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net income(1)
Net income(1) — per share of common stock
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
Weighted-average shares outstanding — basic
Weighted-average shares outstanding — diluted

$

$

$
$

1,553.4
1,026.2
527.2
409.1
118.1
24.0
(0.4 )
93.7
28.3
65.4
2.0
63.4

1.01
1.01
62.7
63.0

$

$

$
$

2011

983.2
594.3
388.9
240.1
148.8
12.4
(1.5 )
134.9
30.1
104.8
—
104.8

$

1.68
1.68
62.2
62.4

$
$

$

883.4
513.5
369.9
211.3
158.6
11.0
10.2
157.8
51.7
106.1
—
106.1

1.71
1.71
62.0
62.0

Cash dividends per share

$

0.78

$

0.77

$

0.76

(1) Net income attributable to Hillenbrand
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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HILLENBRAND, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in millions)
Year Ended September 30,
2012

2013

Consolidated net income
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Currency translation
Pension and postretirement (net of tax of $15.2, $2.0, and $4.3)
Net unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments (net of tax of $0.2, $0.2, and $0.1)
Net unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities (net of tax of $0.1, $0.1, and $0.2)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Consolidated comprehensive income
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Comprehensive income(2)

$

65.4

$

14.7
25.5
0.5
(0.2 )
40.5
105.9
1.5
104.4

$

104.8

$

(4.2 )
2.0
(0.5 )
(0.2 )
(2.9 )
101.9
—
101.9

2011

$

106.1

$

11.3
(8.5 )
0.3
0.4
3.5
109.6
—
109.6

(2) Comprehensive income attributable to Hillenbrand
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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HILLENBRAND, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions)
September 30,
2013

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables, net
Unbilled receivables from long-term manufacturing contracts
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant, and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Other assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade accounts payable
Liabilities from long-term manufacturing contracts and advances
Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued compensation
Deferred income taxes
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Accrued pension and postretirement healthcare
Deferred income taxes
Other long-term liabilities
Total Liabilities

$

$

$

2012

42.7
213.4
142.1
177.5
22.3
20.4
21.0
639.4
171.9
558.6
585.8
47.5
2,003.2

$

181.4
80.9
10.0
59.6

$

$

20.2
150.7
—
90.0
19.6
15.1
9.7
305.3
117.9
313.9
303.7
46.7
1,087.5

35.3
15.9
—
29.3

12.1
121.5
465.5
654.3
190.3
75.4
41.4
1,426.9

0.9
70.4
151.8
271.6
111.8
21.7
24.3
581.2

—

—

Commitments and contingencies
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, no par value (63.1 and 63.2 shares issued, 62.9 and 62.6 shares outstanding, 0.0 and 0.3 shares restricted)

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Treasury stock (0.2 and 0.6 shares)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Hillenbrand Shareholders’ Equity
Noncontrolling interests
Total Shareholders’ Equity

321.7
252.2
(4.2 )
(1.4 )
568.3
8.0
576.3

Total Liabilities and Equity

$

2,003.2

321.9
238.3
(11.5 )
(42.4 )
506.3
—
506.3
$

1,087.5

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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HILLENBRAND, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)
Year Ended September 30,
2012

2013

Operating Activities
Consolidated net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Net loss on disposal or impairment of property
Net gain on auction rate securities and investments
Interest income on Forethought Note
Forethought Note interest payment
Equity in net loss (income) from affiliates
Share-based compensation
Trade accounts receivable and receivables on long-term manufacturing contracts
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Trade accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Income taxes payable
Defined benefit plan funding
Defined benefit plan expense
Other, net
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

65.4

$

104.8

2011

$

106.1

89.4
(23.6 )
1.4
(0.3 )
—
—
1.3
6.4
(38.9 )
26.5
(4.5 )
0.1
(24.8 )
27.9
(20.8 )
17.7
4.0
127.2

40.4
(5.0 )
3.3
(0.2 )
—
—
(1.6 )
8.7
(18.5 )
(6.2 )
(7.7 )
4.9
8.6
(0.1 )
(4.0 )
12.5
(1.7 )
138.2

36.1
(4.5 )
0.7
(0.5 )
(6.4 )
59.7
(5.4 )
11.7
(8.8 )
(5.9 )
2.5
(1.7 )
1.4
(5.4 )
(2.8 )
9.9
2.8
189.5

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures
Forethought Note principal repayment
Proceeds from sales of property, plant, and equipment
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from auction rate securities and investments
Return of investment capital from affiliates
Net cash used in investing activities

(29.9 )
—
1.6
(415.7 )
1.7
1.3
(441.0 )

(20.9 )
—
—
(4.4 )
0.8
2.0
(22.5 )

(21.9 )
91.5
—
(240.9 )
12.4
4.4
(154.5 )

Financing Activities
Proceeds from term loan
Repayments on term loan
Proceeds from revolving credit facilities, net of financing costs
Repayments on revolving credit facilities
Payment of dividends on common stock
Purchase of common stock
Other, net
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

200.0
(10.0 )
710.3
(514.7 )
(48.7 )
—
(0.4 )
336.5

—
—
545.7
(708.0 )
(47.6 )
—
(1.2 )
(211.1 )

—
—
179.0
(150.9 )
(46.9 )
(3.8 )
0.6
(22.0 )

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

(0.2 )

Net cash flows

22.5

0.1

4.1

(95.3 )

17.1

Cash and cash equivalents:
At beginning of period
At end of period

$

20.2
42.7

$

115.5
20.2

$

98.4
115.5

Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes

$
$

21.7
24.4

$
$

11.3
35.3

$
$

10.6
61.5

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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HILLENBRAND, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in millions)
.

Shareholders of Hillenbrand, Inc.

Balance at September 30, 2010
Total other comprehensive income (loss),
net of tax
Net income
Issuance/retirement of stock for stock
awards/options
Share-based compensation
Purchases of common stock
Dividends
Balance at September 30, 2011
Total other comprehensive income (loss),
net of tax
Net income
Issuance/retirement of stock for stock
awards/options
Share-based compensation
Dividends
Other
Balance at September 30, 2012
Acquisition of noncontrolling interests
Total other comprehensive income (loss),
net of tax
Net income
Issuance/retirement of stock for stock
awards/options
Share-based compensation
Dividends
Other
Balance at September 30, 2013

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Treasury Stock
Income
Noncontrolling
Shares
Amount
(Loss)
Interests
0.8 $
(14.8 ) $
(43.0 ) $
—

Common Stock
Shares
63.1

Additional
Paid-in
Capital
$
304.9

Retained
Earnings
$
124.8

—
—

—
—

—
106.1

—
—

—
—
—
(48.2 )
182.7

(0.1)
—
0.2
—
0.9

—
104.8

—
—

—
—
(48.8 )
(0.4)
238.3
—

(0.3)
—
—
—
0.6
—

—
—

—
63.4

—
—

(7.8)
6.4
0.8
0.4
321.7 $

—
—
(49.5 )
—
252.2

0.3
—
—
—
63.4
—
—
(0.2)
—
—
—
63.2
—
—
—
(0.1)
—
—
—
63.1 $

(0.9)
11.7
—
1.3
317.0
—
—
(6.7)
8.7
1.2
1.7
321.9
—

(0.4)
—
—
—
0.2 $

—
—
1.5
—
(3.8)
—
(17.1 )
—
—
5.6
—
—
—
(11.5 )
—
—
—
7.3
—
—
—
(4.2 ) $

$

Total
371.9

3.5
—

—
—

3.5
106.1

—
—
—
—
(39.5 )

—
—
—
—
—

0.6
11.7
(3.8)
(46.9 )
443.1

(2.9)
—

—
—

(2.9)
104.8

—
—
—
—
(42.4 )
—

—
—
—
—
—
6.5

(1.1)
8.7
(47.6 )
1.3
506.3
6.5

41.0
—

(0.5)
2.0

40.5
65.4

—
—
—
—
(1.4 ) $

—
—
—
—
8.0

(0.5)
6.4
(48.7 )
0.4
576.3

$

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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HILLENBRAND, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in millions, except share and per share data)
1.

Description of the Business

Hillenbrand, Inc. (“Hillenbrand”) is a global diversified industrial company that makes and sells premium business-to-business products and services for a wide variety of
industries. We pursue profitable growth and meaningful dividends for our shareholders by leveraging our leading brands, robust cash generation capabilities, and strong core
competencies. Hillenbrand has two segments: the Process Equipment Group and Batesville®. The Process Equipment Group has multiple market-leading brands of process
and material handling equipment and systems serving a wide variety of industries across the globe. Batesville is a recognized leader in the North American death care
industry. Hillenbrand was incorporated on November 1, 2007, in the state of Indiana and began trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “HI” on April 1,
2008. “Hillenbrand,” “the Company,” “we,” “us,” “our,” and similar words refer to Hillenbrand and its subsidiaries.
2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Hillenbrand and its subsidiaries, including Coperion Capital GmbH (“Coperion”),
which was acquired in December 2012. The acquisition of Coperion included a few small subsidiaries where Coperion’s ownership percentage was less than 100%. The
portion of the business that is not owned by the Company is presented as noncontrolling interests within equity in the balance sheets. Income attributable to the
noncontrolling interests is separately reported within the income statements. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Certain prior
period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2013 presentation.
Use of estimates — We prepared the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”). GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Foreign currency translation — The financial statements of our foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars using period-end exchange rates for assets and liabilities
and average exchange rates for operating results. Unrealized translation gains and losses are included in accumulated other comprehensive loss in shareholders’ equity. When
a transaction is denominated in a currency other than the subsidiary’s functional currency, we recognize a transaction gain or loss in “other income (expense), net” when the
transaction is settled.
Cash and cash equivalents include short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less. The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash and
cash equivalents are valued at cost, which approximates their fair value.
Trade receivables are recorded at the invoiced amount and generally do not bear interest, unless they become past due. The allowance for doubtful accounts is a best
estimate of the amount of probable credit losses and collection risk in the existing accounts receivable portfolio. The allowance for cash discounts and sales returns reserve are
based upon historical experience and trends. Account balances are charged against the allowance when we believe it is probable the receivable will not be recovered. We
generally hold trade accounts receivable until they are paid. At September 30, 2013 and 2012, we had reserves against trade receivables of $19.3 and $16.5.
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Inventory costs are determined by the last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) method for approximately 25% and 48% of inventories
at September 30, 2013 and 2012. Costs of remaining inventories have been determined principally by the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. If the FIFO method of inventory
accounting, which approximates current cost, had been used for all inventories, they would have been approximately $13.7 and $13.8 higher than reported at September 30,

2013 and 2012.
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September 30,
2013

Raw materials and components
Work in process
Finished goods
Total inventories

$

2012

58.3
74.8
44.4
177.5

$

$

39.1
13.9
37.0
90.0

$

Property, plant, and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using principally the straight-line method based on estimated
useful lives of six to 40 years for buildings and improvements and three to 10 years for machinery and equipment. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Upon
disposal or retirement, the cost and accumulated depreciation of assets are eliminated. Any gain or loss is reflected in the Company’s income from operations. We review
these assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized
when estimated future undiscounted cash flows relating to the asset are less than its carrying amount. The impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its fair value. Total depreciation expense for 2013, 2012, and 2011 was $25.3, $18.7, and $19.1.
September 30, 2013
Accumulated
Cost
Depreciation

Land and land improvements
Buildings and building equipment
Machinery and equipment
Total

$

17.0
101.8
316.8
435.6

$

$

September 30, 2012
Accumulated
Cost
Depreciation

(3.5 )
(57.6 )
(202.6 )
(263.7 )

$

$

16.8
92.5
272.5
381.8

$

$

$

(3.5 )
(55.5 )
(204.9 )
(263.9 )

Intangible assets are stated at the lower of cost or fair value. With the exception of trade names, intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over periods ranging
from three to 22 years, representing the period over which we expect to receive future economic benefits from these assets. We assess the carrying value of trade names
annually, or more often if events or changes in circumstances indicate there may be impairment. Total amortization expense for 2013, 2012, and 2011 was $64.1, $21.7, and
$17.0. Estimated amortization expense related to intangible assets for the next five years is: $31.4 in 2014, $29.5 in 2015, $26.7 in 2016, $26.0 in 2017, and $25.4 in 2018.
September 30, 2013
Accumulated
Cost
Amortization

Finite-lived assets:
Trade names
Customer relationships
Technology, including patents
Software
Other

$

6.1
405.1
70.6
41.3
0.6
523.7

Indefinite-lived assets:
Trade names
Total

$

(5.9 )
(45.1 )
(16.3 )
(31.9 )
(0.4 )
(99.6 )

134.5
$

658.2

September 30, 2012
Accumulated
Cost
Amortization

$

6.1
240.8
24.6
34.7
0.6
306.8

—
(99.6 )

$

$

(5.6 )
(25.5 )
(9.1 )
(28.8 )
(0.4 )
(69.4 )

76.5
$

383.3

—
$

(69.4 )

Goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to annual impairment tests. Goodwill has been assigned to reporting units. We assess the carrying value of goodwill annually, or
more often if events or changes in circumstances indicate there may be impairment. Impairment testing is performed at a reporting unit level.
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Process
Equipment
Group

Balance September 30, 2011
Adjustments
Foreign currency adjustments
Balance September 30, 2012
Acquisitions
Foreign currency adjustments
Balance September 30, 2013

$

$

294.3
6.4
(2.7 )
298.0
267.8
11.7
577.5

Batesville

$

$

Total

5.7
—
—
5.7
2.6
—
8.3

$

$

300.0
6.4
(2.7 )
303.7
270.4
11.7
585.8

Investments — Our investment portfolio consists of investments in private equity limited partnerships and common stock with a carrying value of $11.3 and $15.8 at
September 30, 2013 and 2012. Investments are included in other assets on the balance sheets. We use the equity method of accounting for substantially all private equity
limited partnerships, with earnings or losses reported in “other income (expense), net” in the income statements. Certain of these investments require commitments by us to
provide additional funding of up to $3.0. The timing of this funding is uncertain, but is expected to occur over the next three to five years.
We regularly evaluate all investments for possible impairment.
Environmental liabilities — Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations which do not contribute to current or future revenue generation are
expensed. A reserve is established when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. These reserves are
determined without consideration of possible loss recoveries. Based on consultations with an environmental engineer, the range of liability is estimated based on current
interpretations of environmental laws and regulations. A determination is made of the specific measures that are believed to be required to remediate the site, the estimated
total cost to carry out the remediation plan, and the periods in which we will make payments toward the remediation plan. We do not make an estimate of inflation for
environmental matters because the number of sites is small, the magnitude of costs to execute remediation plans is not significant, and the estimated time frames to remediate
sites are not believed to be lengthy.

Specific costs included in environmental expense and reserves include site assessment, remediation plan development, clean-up costs, post-remediation expenditures,
monitoring, fines, penalties, and legal fees. The amount reserved represents the expected undiscounted future cash outflows associated with such plans and actions and is not
significant to Hillenbrand.
Self-insurance — We are self-insured up to certain limits for product and general liability, workers compensation, and auto liability insurance programs, as well as certain
employee health benefits including medical, drug, and dental. These policies have deductibles and self-insured retentions ranging from $0.5 to $1.0 per occurrence, depending
upon the type of coverage and policy period. Our policy is to estimate reserves based upon a number of factors, including known claims, estimated incurred but not reported
claims, and outside actuarial analysis. The outside actuarial analysis is based on historical information along with certain assumptions about future events. These reserves are
classified as other current and other long-term liabilities within the balance sheets.
Treasury stock consists of our common shares that have been issued, but subsequently reacquired. We account for treasury stock purchases under the cost method. When
these shares are reissued, we use an average-cost method to determine cost. Proceeds in excess of cost are credited to additional paid-in capital.
On July 24, 2008, our Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up to $100.0 of common stock. The program has no expiration date, but may be terminated by the
Board of Directors at any time. As of September 30, 2013, we had repurchased approximately 1,200,000 shares for $22.5, which were classified as treasury stock. During
2013 and 2012, no shares were repurchased. In 2013 and 2012, approximately 400,000 shares and 300,000 shares were issued from treasury stock under our stock
compensation programs. At September 30, 2013, we had $77.5 remaining for share repurchases under the existing Board authorization.
Preferred stock — The Company has authorized 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock (no par value), of which no shares were issued at September 30, 2013 and 2012.
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Accumulated other comprehensive loss included all changes in Hillenbrand shareholders’ equity during a period except those that resulted from investments by or
distributions to our shareholders.
September 30,
2013

Currency translation
Pension and postretirement (net of taxes of $19.7 and $34.9)
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments (net of taxes of $0.1 and $0.1)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities (net of taxes of $0.0 and $0.1)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

$

$

2012

31.4
(33.0 )
0.2
—
(1.4 )

$

$

16.2
(58.5 )
(0.3 )
0.2
(42.4 )

Revenue recognition — Net revenue includes gross revenue less sales discounts, customer rebates, sales incentives, and product returns, all of which require us to make
estimates for the portion of these allowances that have yet to be credited or paid to our customers. We estimate these allowances based upon historical rates and projections of
customer purchases toward contractual rebate thresholds.
Following the acquisition of Coperion, a portion of Hillenbrand’s revenue is derived from long-term manufacturing contracts. The majority of this revenue is recognized
based on the percentage-of-completion method. Under this method, revenue is recognized based upon the costs incurred to date as compared to the total estimated project
costs. Approximately 25% of Hillenbrand’s revenue was attributable to these long-term manufacturing contracts for 2013.
Accounting for these contracts involves management judgment in estimating total contract revenue and cost. Contract revenues are largely determined by negotiated contract
prices and quantities, modified by our assumptions regarding contract options, change orders, and incentive and award provisions associated with technical performance
clauses. Contract costs are incurred over longer periods of time and, accordingly, the estimation of these costs requires management judgment. Cost estimates are largely
based on negotiated or estimated purchase contract terms, historical performance trends, and other economic projections. Significant factors that influence these estimates
include inflationary trends, technical and schedule risk, internal and subcontractor performance trends, business volume assumptions, asset utilization, and anticipated labor
agreements. Revenue and cost estimates are regularly monitored and revised based on changes in circumstances. Anticipated losses on long-term contracts are recognized
immediately when such losses become evident. We maintain financial controls over the customer qualification, contract pricing, and estimation processes to reduce the risk of
contract losses.
Revenue for components, replacement parts, and service is recognized on a completed contract basis when title and risk of loss passes to the customer.
Cost of goods sold consists primarily of purchased material costs, fixed manufacturing expense, variable direct labor, and overhead costs. It also includes costs associated
with the distribution and delivery of products.
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred as a component of operating expenses and were $12.2, $5.2, and $4.5 for 2013, 2012, and 2011.
Warranty costs — We provide for the estimated warranty cost of a product at the time revenue is recognized. Warranty expense is accrued based upon historical information
and may also include specific provisions for known conditions. Warranty obligations are affected by actual product performance and by material usage and service costs
incurred in making product corrections. Our warranty provision takes into account the best estimate of amounts necessary to settle future and existing claims on products
sold. The Process Equipment Group generally offers a one to two-year warranty on a majority of its products. It engages in extensive product quality programs and processes
in an effort to minimize warranty obligations, including active monitoring and evaluation of the quality of component suppliers. Warranty reserves were $13.2 and $2.7 for
2013 and 2012. Warranty costs were $5.0, $2.6, and $2.4 for 2013, 2012, and 2011.
Income taxes — We establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the financial statements and the tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in
effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date. The majority of the cash at our foreign subsidiaries represents earnings considered to be permanently reinvested for which deferred
taxes have not been provided.
We have a variety of deferred income tax assets in numerous tax jurisdictions. The recoverability of these deferred income tax assets is assessed periodically and valuation
allowances are recognized if it is determined that it is more likely than not that the benefits will
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not be realized. When performing this assessment, we consider future taxable income, the reversal of existing temporary differences, and tax planning strategies. We account
for accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.

Derivative financial instruments — The Company has hedging programs in place to manage its currency exposures. The objectives of our hedging programs are to mitigate
exposures in gross margin and non-functional-currency-denominated assets and liabilities. Under these programs, we use derivative financial instruments to manage the
economic impact of fluctuations in currency exchange rates. These include foreign currency exchange forward contracts, which generally have terms from one to 24 months.
The aggregate notional amount of these derivative instruments was $165.8 and $46.0 at September 30, 2013 and 2012.
We measure all derivative instruments at fair value and report them on our balance sheets as assets or liabilities. Derivative instruments designated as hedges for customer
orders or intercompany purchases have an offsetting tax-adjusted amount in accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss). Derivative instruments designated to hedge foreign
currency exposures within our balance sheet have an offsetting amount recorded in “other income (expense), net”. The carrying value of all of these contracts at fair value
resulted in assets of $1.5 and $0.0 (included in other current assets) and liabilities of $0.5 and $0.4 (included in other current liabilities) at September 30, 2013, and 2012. See
Note 12 for additional information on the fair value of our derivative instruments.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives are accounted for depending on the intended use of the derivative, designation of the hedging relationship, and whether or not the
criteria to apply hedge accounting has been satisfied. Gains and losses on derivative instruments reported in accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss) are subsequently
included in earnings in the periods in which earnings are affected by the hedged item. The amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and
subsequently through earnings were not significant for 2013 and 2012. Net gains and losses on all derivative instruments were substantially offset by foreign exchange effects
on the hedged items.
The Company does not enter into derivative contracts on a speculative basis.
Business acquisitions and related business acquisition and transition costs — Assets and liabilities associated with business acquisitions are recorded at fair value, using
the acquisition method of accounting. We allocate the purchase price of acquisitions based upon the fair value of each component, which may be derived from observable or
unobservable inputs and assumptions. We may utilize third-party valuation specialists to assist us in this allocation. Initial purchase price allocations are preliminary and
subject to revision within the measurement period, generally not to exceed one year from the date of acquisition.
Business acquisition and transition costs are expensed as incurred, and are reported as a component of cost of goods sold, operating expenses, interest expense, and “other
income (expense), net”. We define these costs to include finder’s fees, advisory, legal, accounting, valuation, and other professional or consulting fees, as well as travel
associated with the evaluation and effort to acquire specific businesses. Business acquisition and transition costs also include costs associated with acquisition tax planning,
retention bonuses, and related integration costs. These costs exclude the ongoing expenses of our business development department and other target evaluation costs.
Restructuring costs may occur when we take action to exit or significantly curtail a part of our operations or change the deployment of assets or personnel. A restructuring
charge can consist of an impairment or accelerated depreciation of effected assets, severance costs associated with reductions to the workforce, and charges for legal
obligations for which no future benefit will be derived.
Recently adopted accounting standards — In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an accounting standards update titledPresentation of
Comprehensive Income. This update eliminates the current option to report other comprehensive income and its components in the statement of changes in equity. An entity
can elect to present items of net income and other comprehensive income in one continuous statement or in two separate consecutive statements. Each component of net
income and other comprehensive income, together with totals for comprehensive income and its two parts, net income and other comprehensive income, must be displayed
under either alternative. The new disclosure requirements became effective and were adopted as of October 1, 2012. As the new standard relates to presentation only, the
adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact on our financial statements.
Recently issued accounting standards — In January 2013, the FASB issued an accounting standards update titledBalance Sheet: Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about
Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. This standard limits the scope of an accounting standards update titled Balance Sheet, issued in December 2011, to derivatives, repurchase
agreements, and securities lending transactions to the extent that they are (1) offset in the financial statements or (2) subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or
similar agreement. The disclosure requirements shall be applied retrospectively for all periods presented and will be effective for our fiscal year beginning October 1, 2013.
We do not expect the adoption of this standard to have a significant impact on our financial statements.
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In February 2013, the FASB issued an accounting standards update titledReporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. This
standard is intended to improve the reporting of reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income of various components. An entity is required to present
significant amounts reclassified from each component of accumulated other comprehensive income and the income statement line items affected by the reclassification. The
new disclosure requirements will be effective for our fiscal year beginning October 1, 2013. As the new standard relates to disclosure only, we do not expect the adoption of
this standard to have a significant impact on our financial statements.
In March 2013, the FASB issued an accounting standard update titledForeign Currency Matters — Parent’s Accounting for the Cumulative Translation Adjustment upon
Derecognition of Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Foreign Entity or of an Investment in a Foreign Entity. This update specifies that a cumulative translation
adjustment should be released into earnings when an entity ceases to have a controlling financial interest in a subsidiary or group of assets within a consolidated foreign entity
and the sale or transfer results in the complete or substantially complete liquidation of the foreign entity. The guidance will be effective for our fiscal year beginning
October 1, 2014. We do not expect the adoption of this standard to have a significant impact on our financial statements.
In April 2013, the FASB issued an accounting standard update titled Presentation of Financial Statements — Liquidation Basis of Accounting. This update requires an entity
to prepare its financial statements using the liquidation basis of accounting when liquidation is imminent, and will be effective for our fiscal year beginning October 1, 2014.
We do not expect the adoption of this standard to have a significant impact on our financial statements.
In July 2013, the FASB issued an accounting standard update titledPresentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax
Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. The new standard requires the netting of unrecognized tax benefits (“UTBs”) against a deferred tax asset for a loss or other
carryforward that would apply in settlement of the uncertain tax positions. Under the new standard, UTBs will be netted against all available same—jurisdiction loss or other
tax carryforwards that would be utilized, rather than only against carryforwards that are created by the UTBs. The standard will be effective for our fiscal year beginning
October 1, 2014. We do not expect the adoption of this standard to have a significant impact on our financial statements.
3.

Business Acquisitions

Coperion
We completed the acquisition of Coperion on December 1, 2012, in a transaction valued at $540.7. The aggregate purchase consideration consisted of $269.1 of cash, net of
cash acquired, and the assumption of $146.0 of debt and $125.6 of pension liabilities. We utilized $426.3 of borrowings under our revolving credit facility and cash on hand
to finance the acquisition, including the repayment of $146.0 of debt outstanding under Coperion’s prior financing arrangements.
Based in Stuttgart, Germany, Coperion is a global leader in the manufacture of compounding, extrusion, and material handling equipment used in a broad range of industries,
including plastics, chemicals, food processing, pharmaceutical, and aluminum. Coperion has been in business since 1879, and operates nine manufacturing sites in Germany,

the United States (“U.S.”), China, and India, and has sales offices in approximately 30 locations in the Americas, Europe, and Asia. Coperion had approximately 2,100
employees worldwide as of September 30, 2013. Approximately one-third of Coperion’s revenue is derived from replacement parts and service, generating a large portion of
recurring business due to its well-positioned service network and active installed base of equipment across the world.
Coperion revenues consist of sales of large systems, equipment, components, replacement parts, and service. Large system sales are generally fulfilled over 12 to 18 months,
whereby customers generally pay a deposit and make progress payments in advance of delivery. Working capital requirements for Coperion generally range from an optimal
negative working capital position, where cash received from customers is more heavily weighted toward the beginning of the project, to our current position where a larger
portion of the cash will be received in later stages of manufacturing.
The Coperion business model includes large system projects, where strong application and process engineering expertise is used to create a broad system solution for
customers. A certain amount of revenue for large system sales comes from third-party-sourced products that carry only a small up-charge. As a result, margins are lower on
these large system sales when compared to the rest of the business. Hillenbrand believes that selling these complete systems provides a significant competitive advantage and
increases margin dollars.
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This acquisition was the largest in the Company’s history and represented an important step in the execution of our strategic plans to further diversify Hillenbrand and
accelerate the growth of the Process Equipment Group. The integration of Coperion with the Process Equipment Group will continue to be a key initiative for the next 12
months. Combining our product offerings to provide a more complete system solution is our highest priority from an integration perspective. In addition, we believe
leveraging Coperion’s global infrastructure will enable the existing businesses within the Process Equipment Group to enter new global markets more quickly. We also expect
the Process Equipment Group’s existing strong U.S. sales network will enhance Coperion’s expansion in North America. Finally, the application of the Company’s Lean tools
and other core competencies to Coperion’s operations is expected to contribute to improved margins and increased customer satisfaction.
The following table summarizes preliminary estimates of fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the Coperion acquisition:
December 1, 2012

Cash and cash equivalents
Inventory
Current assets, excluding cash and cash equivalents and inventory
Property, plant, and equipment
Identifiable intangible assets
Goodwill
Other assets
Total assets

$

32.8
112.4
175.2
54.4
291.8
267.8
2.1
936.5

Current liabilities
Accrued pension obligations
Deferred income taxes
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

281.2
125.6
68.6
6.7
482.1

Noncontrolling interests

6.5
$

Aggregate purchase price

447.9

The estimation of fair value of Coperion’s assets and liabilities is preliminary and subject to adjustment based on finalization of the closing balance sheet. Purchase
accounting adjustments totaling $34.4 were made to deferred income taxes, inventory, current assets, and current liabilities in 2013.
Goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes and was allocated entirely to the Process Equipment Group. Fair value amounts assigned to identifiable finite-lived intangible
assets are being amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The amounts and useful lives assigned to each asset type at the time of acquisition were:
Estimated
Useful Lives
(years)

Fair Values

Trade names
Customer relationships
Technology, including patents
Backlog
Total identifiable intangible assets

$

55.6
157.7
44.2
34.3
291.8

$

Indefinite
20
12
<1

The unaudited pro forma information for the periods set forth below gives effect to the Coperion acquisition as if it had occurred at the beginning of 2012. It included
adjustments for additional interest expense, depreciation, and amortization. The unaudited pro forma information for 2012 included acquisition costs of $16.6 as well as
backlog amortization and inventory step-up costs of $56.3. Acquisition costs, backlog amortization, and inventory step-up costs are not included in the pro forma information
for 2013. The unaudited pro forma information is presented for informational purposes only and does not necessarily reflect the results of operations that would actually have
been achieved had the acquisition been consummated as of that time.
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September 30,
2013

Pro forma net revenue
Pro forma net income(1)
Pro forma basic earnings per share
Pro forma diluted earnings per share

(1)Pro forma net income attributable to Hillenbrand

$

2012

1,668.6
118.4
1.89
1.88

$

1,651.6
64.7
1.04
1.04

Other Acquisitions
We completed the acquisition of Rotex on August 31, 2011, for an aggregate purchase price of $248.1. The net cash purchase price was $240.4 when adjusted for cash
acquired. The results of Rotex have been included in the Company’s consolidated results since the date of acquisition.
Batesville completed an acquisition in 2012 with a net purchase price of $5.9. Final estimation of the fair value resulted in $2.6 of goodwill.
We incurred $17.2 of business acquisition costs during 2013. These costs consist of $0.2 of cost of goods sold, $16.8 of operating expenses, and $1.2 of interest expense,
partially offset by $1.0 of other income.
4.

Financing Agreements
September 30,
2013

$700 revolving credit facility (excluded outstanding letters of credit)
$200 term loan
$150 senior unsecured notes, net of discount
Total debt
Less: current portion
Total long-term debt

$

$

2012

325.5
190.0
148.8
664.3
10.0
654.3

$

$

123.0
—
148.6
271.6
—
271.6

The following table summarizes the scheduled maturities of long-term debt for 2014 through 2018:
Amount

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

$

10.0
15.0
20.0
470.5
—

The Company has a senior unsecured credit facility (the “Facility”) which matures in July 2017. The Facility provides for revolving loans of up to $700.0, plus a term loan in
the amount of $200.0. Borrowings under the Facility bear interest at variable rates plus a margin amount based upon our leverage. There is also a facility fee based upon our
leverage. All amounts due under the Facility mature upon expiration. The term loan will amortize so that 35% of the principal will be repaid over approximately a five year
term, with the balance due at maturity. The Company also has the ability, under certain circumstances and with the lenders’ approval, to increase the total borrowing capacity
under the Facility by $300.0. Deferred financing costs of $3.8 are being amortized to interest expense over the term of the Facility. These borrowings are classified as longterm, with the exception of the term loan, where payments due within the next 12 months are classified as current.
With respect to the Facility, as of September 30, 2013, we had $24.8 in outstanding letters of credit issued and had $349.7 of remaining borrowing capacity available. The
weighted-average interest rates on borrowings under the Facility were 1.37% and 0.80% for 2013 and 2012. The weighted-average interest rate on the term loan was 1.72%
for 2013.
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In the normal course of business, the Process Equipment Group provides to certain customers bank guarantees and other credit arrangements in support of performance,
warranty, advance payment, and other contract obligations. This form of trade finance is customary in the industry and, as a result, we are required to maintain adequate
capacity to provide the guarantees. As of September 30, 2013, we had credit arrangements totaling $305.9, under which $204.6 was utilized for this purpose. These
arrangements include a €150.0 Syndicated Letter of Guarantee Facility (“LG Facility”) entered into on June 3, 2013, under which unsecured letters of credit, bank guarantees,
or other surety bonds may be issued. The LG Facility matures on June 3, 2018, or earlier, should we elect to discontinue or fail to replace our primary credit facility which
expires on July 27, 2017. The Company has the potential, under certain circumstances and with the lenders’ approval, to increase the total capacity under the LG facility by
an additional €70.0. Guarantees provided under the LG Facility are priced at tiered rates based upon our leverage and charges for unused capacity are assessed at 0.35% of
the applicable guarantee rate (1.15% at September 30, 2013). Deferred financing costs of $1.9 are being amortized to interest expense over the term of the LG Facility. There
were no direct borrowings associated with the LG Facility.
The availability of borrowings under the Facility and the LG Facility is subject to our ability to meet certain conditions including compliance with covenants, absence of
default, and continued accuracy of certain representations and warranties. Financial covenants include a maximum ratio of Indebtedness to EBITDA (as defined in the
agreements) of 3.5 to 1.0 and a minimum ratio of EBITDA (as defined in the agreements) to interest expense of 3.5 to 1.0. As of September 30, 2013, we were in compliance
with all covenants.
We had restricted cash of $1.3 and $1.6 at September 30, 2013 and 2012.
On July 9, 2010, we issued $150 of senior unsecured notes (“Notes”) due July 2020. The Notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 5.5% per year, payable semi-annually in arrears
beginning January 15, 2011. The Notes were issued at a discount of $1.6, resulting in an initial carrying value of $148.4. We are amortizing the discount to interest expense
over the term of the Notes using the effective interest rate method, resulting in an annual interest rate of 5.65%. Deferred financing costs associated with the Notes of $2.1 are
being amortized to interest expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the Notes. The Notes are unsubordinated obligations of Hillenbrand and rank equally in right of
payment with all of our other existing and future unsubordinated obligations.
The indenture governing the Notes does not limit our ability to incur additional indebtedness. It does, however, contain certain covenants that restrict our ability to incur
secured debt and to engage in certain sale and leaseback transactions. The indenture provides holders of debt securities with remedies if we fail to perform specific
obligations. In the event of a “Change of Control Triggering Event,” each holder of the Notes has the right to require us to purchase all or a portion of their Notes at a
purchase price equal to 101% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest. The Notes are redeemable with prior notice.
5.

Retirement Benefits

Defined Benefit Retirement Plans — Approximately 42% of our employees participate in one of four defined benefit retirement programs, including the master defined
benefit retirement plan, the defined benefit plans of our German and Swiss subsidiaries, and the supplemental executive defined benefit retirement plan. We fund the pension
trusts in compliance with ERISA or local funding requirements and as necessary to provide for current service and for any unfunded projected future benefit obligations over a
reasonable period. The benefits for these plans are based primarily on years of service and the employee’s level of compensation during specific periods of employment. All
pension plans have a September 30 measurement date.
Effect on Operations — The components of net pension costs under defined benefit retirement plans were:

2013

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost, net
Amortization of actuarial loss
Net pension costs

$

U.S. Pension Benefits
Year Ended September 30,
2012

4.7 $
12.7
(12.9)
0.9
7.2
12.6 $

$

2011

4.5 $
12.1
(12.7)
0.9
5.7
10.5 $

2013

4.2 $
12.1
(14.2)
0.9
4.0
7.0 $

Non-U.S. Pension Benefits
Year Ended September 30,
2012

1.6 $
3.9
(1.0 )
—
—
4.5 $

2011

1.3 $
0.7
(1.0 )
—
—
1.0 $

1.3
0.7
(1.2 )
—
—
0.8
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Obligations and Funded Status — The change in benefit obligation and funded status of the Company’s defined benefit retirement plans were:
U.S. Pension Benefits
September 30,
2013
2012

Change in benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year
Projected benefit obligation attributable to acquisitions
Service cost
Interest cost
Plan amendment
Actuarial (gain) loss
Benefits paid
Employee contributions
Effect of exchange rates on projected benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at end of year

$

300.4
31.5
4.7
12.7
—
(29.2)
(12.7)
—
—
307.4

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Fair value of pension assets attributable to acquisitions
Actual return on plan assets
Employee and employer contributions
Benefits paid
Administrative expenses paid
Effect of exchange rates on plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

$

272.7
—
4.5
12.1
0.8
20.7
(10.4)
—
—
300.4

197.2
16.0
16.4
12.1
(12.8)
(0.8 )
—
228.1

Funded status:
Plan assets less than benefit obligations
Amounts recorded in the consolidated balance sheets:
Other assets
Accrued pension costs, current portion
Accrued pension costs, long-term portion
Plan assets less than benefit obligations

$

(79.3)

$

—
(2.0 )
(77.3)
(79.3 )

$

Non-U.S. Pension Benefits
September 30,
2013
2012

$

173.1
—
33.7
2.0
(10.4)
(1.2 )
—
197.2

28.4
110.1
1.6
3.9
—
1.1
(11.3)
0.8
5.4
140.0

$

29.6
—
1.3
0.7
—
(0.3 )
(2.7 )
0.8
(1.0 )
28.4

29.1
—
0.9
8.8
(11.3)
—
1.1
28.6

30.1
—
0.8
1.9
(2.7 )
—
(1.0 )
29.1

$

(103.2 )

$

(111.4 )

$

0.7

$

1.1
(8.5 )
(104.0 )
(111.4 )

$

$

—
(1.7 )
(101.5 )
(103.2 )

0.7
—
—
0.7

$

$

Net actuarial losses ($54.2) and prior service costs ($3.4), less an aggregate tax effect ($21.5), are included as components of accumulated other comprehensive loss at
September 30, 2013. Net actuarial losses ($92.0) and prior service costs ($4.3), less an aggregate tax effect ($35.3), are included as components of accumulated other
comprehensive loss at September 30, 2012. The amount that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net pension costs in 2014 is expected to be
$4.7.
Accumulated Benefit Obligation — The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit retirement plans was $430.8 and $312.6 at September 30, 2013 and 2012.
Selected information for plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets was:
U.S. Pension Benefits
September 30,
2013

Projected benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

$

Non-U.S. Pension Benefits
September 30,
2013
2012

2012

307.4
293.3
228.1

$

300.5
286.1
197.2

$

112.5
112.5
—

$

—
—
—
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The weighted-average assumptions used in accounting for defined benefit retirement plans were:

2013

Discount rate for obligation, end of year
Discount rate for expense, during the year
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase

U.S. Pension Benefits
Year Ended September 30,
2012

4.9%
4.0%
6.6%
2.6%

4.0%
4.5%
6.6%
2.5%

2011

2013

4.5%
5.0%
7.2%
2.5%

Non-U.S. Pension Benefits
Year Ended September 30,
2012

3.5%
3.3%
3.5%
0.2%

2.3%
2.3%
3.5%
1.5%

2011

2.5%
2.5%
3.5%
1.5%

The discount rates are evaluated annually based on current market conditions. In setting these rates, we utilize long-term bond indices and yield curves as a preliminary

indication of interest rate movements, then make adjustments to the indices to reflect differences in the terms of the bonds covered under the indices in comparison to the
projected outflow of pension obligations. The overall expected long-term rate of return is based on historical and expected future returns, which are inflation-adjusted and
weighted for the expected return for each component of the investment portfolio. The rate of assumed compensation increase is also based on our specific historical trends of
past wage adjustments in recent years.
U.S. Pension Plan Assets — Long-term strategic investment objectives utilize a diversified mix of equity and fixed income securities to preserve the funded status of the
trusts, and balance risk and return. The primary investment strategy is a dynamic target allocation method that periodically rebalances among various investment categories
depending on the current funded position. This program is designed to actively move from return-seeking investments (such as equities) toward liability-hedging investments
(such as long-duration fixed income) as funding levels improve. The investment in return-seeking assets is not to exceed 60% of total domestic plan assets.
Non-U.S. Pension Plan Assets — Long-term strategic investment objectives utilize a diversified mix of suitable assets of appropriate liquidity to generate income and capital
growth that, together with contributions from participants and Hillenbrand, will meet the cost of the current and future benefits that the plan provides. Long-term strategic
investment objectives also seek to limit the risk of the assets failing to meet the liabilities over the long term.
None of Hillenbrand’s common stock was owned by the pension plan trusts at September 30, 2013.
The tables below provide the fair value of our pension plan assets by asset category at September 30, 2013 and 2012. The accounting guidance on fair value measurements
specifies a fair value hierarchy based upon the observability of inputs used in valuation techniques (Level 1, 2, and 3). See Note 12 for definitions.
Fair values are determined as follows:
·
·
·
·
·
·

Cash equivalents are stated at the carrying amount, which approximates fair value, or at the fund’s net asset value.
Equity securities are stated at the last reported sales price on the day of valuation.
Corporate bonds actively traded are stated at the closing price reported in the active markets in which the bonds are traded.
Corporate bond funds and equity mutual funds are stated at the closing price in the active markets in which the underlying securities of the funds are traded.
Government index funds are stated at the closing price reported in the active market in which the fund is traded.
Real estate is stated based on a discounted cash flow approach, which includes future rental receipts, expenses, and residual values as the highest and best use of the
real estate from a market participant view as rental property.
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Fair Value at September 30, 2013 Using Inputs Considered as:
Level 1
Level 2

Total

U.S. Pension Plans
Cash equivalents
Equity securities
Corporate bonds
Other types of investments:
Government index funds
Equity mutual funds
Corporate bond funds
Real estate and real estate funds
Total U.S. pension plan assets
Non-U.S. Pension Plans
Cash equivalents
Equity securities
Corporate bonds
Other types of investments:
Government index funds
Equity mutual funds
Corporate bond funds
Real estate and real estate funds
Total Non-U.S. pension plan assets

$

$
$

4.0
—
—
—
—
103.1
121.0
—
228.1

$

2.8
8.5
—

$

5.5
—
9.8
2.0
28.6

$

Non-U.S. Pension Plans
Cash equivalents
Equity securities
Corporate bonds
Other types of investments:
Government index funds
Equity mutual funds
Corporate bond funds
Real estate and real estate funds
Total Non-U.S. pension plan assets

$

$

$

$

$

$

2.8
8.5
—

$

5.5
—
9.8
—
26.6

$

$

4.0
—
—
—
—
103.1
121.0
—
228.1

$

—
—
—

$

—
—
—
—
—

2.3
—
—
—
93.4
101.5
—
197.2

5.3
7.3
10.1
4.4
—
—
2.0
29.1

$

$

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

5.3
7.3
10.1
4.4
—
—
—
27.1

$

$

$

$

2.3
—
—
—
93.4
101.5
—
197.2

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
2.0
2.0

$

Fair Value at September 30, 2012 Using Inputs Considered as:
Level 1
Level 2

Total

U.S. Pension Plans
Cash equivalents
Equity securities
Corporate bonds
Other types of investments:
Government index funds
Equity mutual funds
Corporate bond funds
Real estate and real estate funds
Total U.S. pension plan assets

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

Level 3

Level 3

$

$

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
2.0
2.0

Cash Flows — During 2013, 2012, and 2011 we contributed cash of $20.1, $3.1, and $2.5, to our defined benefit retirement plans. The increase in contributions was a result
of the Coperion acquisition. We will be required to make estimated minimum contributions of $20.1 in 2014, although we may make additional discretionary contributions.

We will evaluate business conditions and capital and equity market volatility to determine whether we will make discretionary contributions.
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Estimated Future Benefit Payments — The following represents estimated future benefit payments, including expected future service, which are expected to be paid from plan
assets or Company contributions as necessary:
U.S. Pension Plans
Projected Pension
Benefits Payout

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019 - 2023

$

Non-U.S Pension Plans
Projected Pension
Benefits Payout

15.1
15.5
16.3
17.8
18.0
102.2

$

8.7
8.6
8.3
8.1
7.9
38.7

Defined Contribution Plans — We sponsor a number of defined contribution plans. Depending on the plan, we may make contributions up to 4% of an employee’s
compensation and matching contributions up to 6% of compensation. Company contributions generally vest over a period of zero to five years. Expenses related to our
defined contribution plans were $8.2, $8.0, and $6.7 for 2013, 2012, and 2011.
Postretirement Healthcare Plan — The Company offers a domestic postretirement healthcare plan that provides healthcare benefits to eligible qualified retirees and their
spouses. The plan includes retiree cost-sharing provisions and generally extends retiree coverage for medical, prescription, and dental benefits beyond the COBRA
continuation period to the date of Medicare eligibility. We use a measurement date of September 30. The net postretirement healthcare benefit cost recorded during 2013,
2012, and 2011 was $0.6, $1.0, and $1.3.
September 30,
2013

Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Interest cost
Service cost
Plan amendments
Actuarial gain
Net benefits paid
Benefit obligation at end of year

$

$

Amounts recorded in the balance sheets:
Accrued postretirement benefits, current portion
Accrued postretirement benefits, long-term portion
Net amount recognized

$
$

2012

10.9
0.4
0.5
(0.8 )
(0.5 )
(0.7 )
9.8

$

0.8
9.0
9.8

$

11.0
0.5
0.6
—
—
(1.2 )
10.9

$

0.8
10.1
10.9

$

The weighted-average assumptions used in revaluing our obligation under the postretirement healthcare plan were:
Year Ended September 30,
2012

2013

Discount rate for obligation
Healthcare cost rate assumed for next year
Ultimate trend rate

3.5 %
7.7 %
5.0 %

2011

3.4 %
7.9 %
5.0 %

4.1 %
7.8 %
5.0 %

Net actuarial gains of $4.9 and $4.0, less tax of $1.8 and $1.5, are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss at September 30, 2013 and 2012. The
estimated amount that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss as a reduction to postretirement healthcare costs in 2014 is $0.4. A one percentage-point
increase/decrease in the assumed healthcare cost trend rates as of September 30, 2013, would cause an increase/decrease in service and interest costs of $0.1, along with an
increase/decrease in the benefit obligation of $0.8.
We fund the postretirement healthcare plan as benefits are paid. Current plan benefits are expected to require net Company contributions for retirees of $0.8 per year for the
foreseeable future.
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6.

Other Long-Term Liabilities
September 30,
2013

Casket pricing obligation
Self-insurance loss reserves
Horstmann litigation liability
Other
Less current portion
Total long-term portion

$

$

2012

6.7
14.7
8.7
16.7
46.8
(5.4 )
41.4

$

$

7.6
13.4
—
8.6
29.6
(5.3 )
24.3

The casket pricing obligation is associated with a program for the future sale of caskets made in connection with prearranged funerals and was discontinued for arrangements
made after December 31, 2004. The remaining liability under the program is being recognized as a component of revenue as casket sales subject to the program are delivered
and the obligation is satisfied.
The Horstmann litigation liability is offset by a corresponding indemnification receivable recorded in other assets for $8.7. See Note 10 for additional information.

7.

Income Taxes
Year Ended September 30,
2012

2013

Domestic
Foreign
Total earnings before income taxes
Income tax expense:
Current provision:
Federal
State
Foreign
Total current provision
Deferred provision (benefit):
Federal
State
Foreign
Total deferred provision (benefit)
Income tax expense

$
$

$

108.0
(14.3 )
93.7

$

37.0
5.5
9.4
51.9

$

(2.9 )
(0.5 )
(20.2 )
(23.6 )
28.3

$

$

27.1
4.0
4.0
35.1

$

(4.1 )
0.3
(1.2 )
(5.0 )
30.1

$

140.5
17.3
157.8

$

45.4
6.1
4.7
56.2
(1.6 )
(2.4 )
(0.5 )
(4.5 )
51.7

$

Year Ended September 30,
2012

2013

Federal statutory rates
Adjustments resulting from the tax effect of:
Permanent reinvestment of unremitted earnings
State income taxes, net of federal benefit
Foreign income tax rate differential
Domestic manufacturer’s deduction
Non-deductible acquisition costs
Valuation allowance
Other, net
Effective income tax rate

$

2011

116.3
18.6
134.9

2011

35.0 %

35.0 %

35.0 %

—
3.5
(7.0 )
(4.0 )
1.4
0.8
0.5
30.2 %

(8.1 )
2.6
(3.1 )
(2.6 )
—
—
(1.5 )
22.3 %

—
1.8
(1.2 )
(2.7 )
—
(0.6 )
0.5
32.8 %
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September 30,
2013

Deferred tax assets:
Employee benefit accruals
Loss and tax credit carryforwards
Rebates and other discounts
Self-insurance reserves
Casket pricing obligation
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Inventory
Other, net
Total deferred tax assets before valuation allowance
Less valuation allowance
Total deferred tax assets, net
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Long-term contracts and customer prepayments
Unremitted earnings of foreign operations
Other, net
Total deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities, net
Amounts recorded in the balance sheets:
Deferred taxes, current
Deferred taxes, long-term
Deferred tax assets and liabilities, net

$

$

$
$

2012

63.9
39.6
5.5
6.4
2.7
1.2
2.0
8.3
129.6
(2.5 )
127.1
(20.9 )
(152.1 )
(14.6 )
(0.2 )
(3.8 )
(191.6 )
(64.5 )

10.2
(74.7 )
(64.5 )

$

$

$
$

64.1
2.7
4.4
5.9
2.9
1.2
2.0
4.6
87.8
(0.9 )
86.9
(12.4 )
(71.8 )
—
(0.1 )
(1.8 )
(86.1 )
0.8

18.7
(17.9 )
0.8

At September 30, 2013, we had $6.9 of deferred tax assets related to U.S. federal and state tax credit carryforwards, which will begin to expire in 2014, and $31.6 of deferred
tax assets related to foreign net operating loss carryforwards, which will begin to expire in 2016. We also had $1.1 of deferred tax assets related to capital loss carryforwards
that will begin to expire in 2015. The gross deferred tax assets of $39.6 as of September 30, 2013, were reduced by a valuation allowance of $2.5 relating largely to the state
tax credit carryforwards and foreign net operating loss carryforwards. At September 30, 2013 and 2012 we had $28.5 and $0.0 of current income tax payable classified as
other current liabilities on our balance sheets.
We have established a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets when it is determined that the amount of expected future taxable income is not likely to support the use of
the deduction or credit.
As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, U.S. federal and state income taxes have not been provided on accumulated undistributed earnings of substantially all our foreign
subsidiaries, as these earnings are considered permanently reinvested. The total permanently reinvested earnings were $41.7 and $42.5 for 2013 and 2012. These amounts
represent book earnings translated at historical rates.
In connection with the acquisition of K-Tron in April 2010, we recorded a deferred tax liability related to the historical earnings of its Swiss operations that would be subject
to U.S. income taxes upon earnings repatriation. With the acquisition of Rotex, we identified the need to retain cash overseas to support the continued growth of the Process

Equipment Group and began developing a plan to integrate Rotex into our existing international structure. As a result, in 2012 we asserted K-Tron historical earnings to be
permanently reinvested. Accordingly, a tax benefit of $11.0 was recognized, representing the release of the deferred tax liability. During 2012, we completed the integration
of Rotex into our international structure.
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A reconciliation of the unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
September 30,
2012

2013

Balance at October 1
Additions for tax positions related to the current year
Additions for tax positions of prior years
Reductions for tax positions of prior years
Settlements
Balance attributable to acquisition of Coperion
Balance attributable to pre-spin added in current year
Balance at September 30

$

2.9
0.2
1.5
(1.2 )
(1.3 )
4.3
—
6.4

$

$

2011

7.3
0.2
1.0
(2.5 )
(3.5 )
—
0.4
2.9

$

$

7.8
0.2
0.5
(1.2 )
—
—
—
7.3

$

The gross unrecognized tax benefit included $5.8 and $1.6 at September 30, 2013 and 2012 that if recognized, would impact the effective tax rate in future periods.
We recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as income tax expense. During 2013 and 2012, we recognized $0.1 and ($1.3) in additional
interest and penalties. Excluded from the reconciliation was $0.5 and $0.4 of accrued interest and penalties at September 30, 2013 and 2012.
We operate in multiple income tax jurisdictions both inside and outside the U.S. and are currently under examination in various federal, state, and foreign jurisdictions.
Specifically, we are currently under examination in the U.S. for 2012 and under examination in Germany for 2004 through 2008. In addition, there are other ongoing audits in
various stages of completion in several state and foreign jurisdictions.
It is possible that the liability associated with the unrecognized tax benefits will increase or decrease within the next 12 months. These changes may be the result of ongoing
audits or the expiration of statutes of limitations and could range up to $1.5 based on current estimates. Audit outcomes and the timing of audit settlements are subject to
significant uncertainty. Although we believe that adequate provision has been made for such issues, it is possible that the ultimate resolution of such issues could affect our
earnings. Conversely, if these issues are resolved favorably in the future, the related provision would be reduced, thus having a positive impact on earnings. We do not
expect that the outcome of these audits will significantly impact the financial statements.
8.

Earnings per Share

The dilutive effects of performance-based stock awards described in Note 9 are included in the computation of diluted earnings per share at the level the related performance
criteria are met through the respective balance sheet date. At September 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, potential dilutive effects, representing 2,100,000, 1,300,000, and
1,100,000 shares were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share as the related performance criteria were not yet met, although we expect to meet various
levels of criteria in the future.
Year Ended September 30,
2012

2013

2011

Net income(1)
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic (in millions)
Effect of dilutive stock options and unvested time-based restricted stock (in millions)
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted (in millions)

$

63.4
62.7
0.3
63.0

$

104.8
62.2
0.2
62.4

$

106.1
62.0
—
62.0

Earnings per share — basic
Earnings per share — diluted

$
$

1.01
1.01

$
$

1.68
1.68

$
$

1.71
1.71

Anti-dilutive effect of stock options and unvested time-based restricted stock excluded
from the computation of diluted earnings per share (millions)

1.3

2.0

1.9

(1) Net income attributable to Hillenbrand
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9.

Share-Based Compensation

We have share-based compensation plans under which 8,785,436 shares were initially registered and available for issuance. As of September 30, 2013, 4,905,141 shares were
outstanding under these plans and 2,066,903 shares had been issued, leaving 1,813,392 shares available for future issuance. This included our primary plan, the
Hillenbrand, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan, which provides for long-term performance compensation for key employees and members of the Board of Directors. It also included
our Supplemental Retirement Plan that was adopted effective July 1, 2010, into which former deferred compensation plans for directors and executives were transferred. A
variety of discretionary awards for employees and non-employee directors are authorized, including incentive or non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock, restricted stock units, and bonus stock. These programs are administered by the Board of Directors and its Compensation and Management Development
Committee.
Year Ended September 30,
2012

2013

Stock-based compensation cost
Less impact of income tax
Stock-based compensation cost, net of tax

$
$

6.4
2.3
4.1

$
$

The Company realized current tax benefits of $4.8 from the exercise of stock options and the payment of stock awards during 2013.

8.7
3.2
5.5

2011

$
$

11.7
4.3
7.4

Stock Options — The fair values of option grants under the Hillenbrand, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan are estimated on the date of grant using the binomial option-pricing model,
which incorporates the possibility of early exercise of options into the valuation as well as our historical exercise and termination experience to determine the option value.
The grants are contingent upon continued employment and generally vest over a three-year period. Option terms generally do not exceed 10 years. The weighted-average fair
value of options granted was $4.91, $5.88, and $5.67 per share for 2013, 2012, and 2011. The following assumptions were used in the determination of fair value:

Risk-free interest rate
Weighted-average dividend yield
Weighted-average volatility factor
Exercise factor
Post-vesting termination rate
Expected life (years)

2013

Year Ended September 30,
2012

2011

0.2 – 1.6%
3.8%
34.9%
32.1%
5.0%
4.1

0.1 – 2.0%
3.4%
37.4%
32.9%
5.0%
4.2

0.3 – 3.5%
3.8%
41.1%
34.4%
5.0%
4.2

The risk-free interest rate is based upon observed interest rates appropriate for the term of the employee stock options. The remaining assumptions require significant
judgment utilizing historical information, peer data, and future expectations. The dividend yield is based on the history of dividend payouts and the computation of expected
volatility is based on historical stock volatility. The expected life of employee stock options represents the weighted-average period the stock options are expected to remain
outstanding and is a derived output of the binomial model. The post-vesting termination rate and the exercise factor are based on the history of exercises and forfeitures for
previous stock options.
The following tables provide a summary of outstanding stock option awards:
Number
of Shares

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

Outstanding at September 30, 2012
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Expired
Outstanding at September 30, 2013

2,873,954
508,650
(189,199 )
(34,345 )
(113,658 )
3,045,402

Exercisable at September 30, 2013

2,060,321

$

21.18
20.78
20.16
20.96
22.51
21.13
21.11

As of September 30, 2013, there was $2.3 of unrecognized stock-based compensation associated with unvested stock options expected to be recognized over a weightedaverage period of 1.6 years. This unrecognized compensation expense included a reduction for our estimate of potential forfeitures. As of September 30, 2013, the average
remaining life of the outstanding stock options was 6.0 years with an aggregate intrinsic value of $19.0. As of September 30, 2013, the average remaining life of the
exercisable stock options was
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4.9 years with an aggregate intrinsic value of $12.9. The total intrinsic value of options exercised by employees and directors during 2013, 2012, and 2011 was $0.9, $0.7,
and $0.1.
Time-Based Stock Awards and Performance-Based Stock Awards — During 2009, we began granting performance-based stock awards as part of our annual grant instead of
time-based stock awards. These performance-based stock awards are consistent with our compensation program’s guiding principles and are designed to (i) align
management’s interests with those of shareholders, (ii) motivate and provide incentive to achieve superior results, (iii) maintain a significant portion of at-risk incentive
compensation, (iv) delineate clear accountabilities, and (v) ensure competitive compensation. We believe that our blend of compensation components provides the
Company’s leadership team with the appropriate incentives to create long-term value for shareholders while taking thoughtful and prudent risks to grow the value of the
Company. The vesting of performance-based stock awards is contingent upon the creation of shareholder value as measured by the cumulative cash returns and final period
net operating profit after tax compared to the established hurdle rate over a three-year period and a corresponding service requirement. The hurdle rate is a reflection of the
weighted-average cost of capital and targeted capital structure. The number of shares awarded is based upon the fair value of our stock at the date of grant adjusted for the
attainment level at the end of the period. Based on the extent to which the performance criteria are achieved, it is possible for none of the awards to vest or for a range up to
the maximum to vest. We record expense associated with the awards on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based upon an estimate of projected performance. The
actual performance of the Company is evaluated quarterly, and the expense is adjusted according to the new projections. As a result, depending on the degree to which
performance criteria are achieved or projections change, expenses related to the performance-based stock awards may become more volatile as we approach the final
performance measurement date at the end of the three-year period.
The value of time-based stock awards and performance-based stock awards in our common stock is the fair value at the date of grant. The total vest date fair value of shares
held by Hillenbrand employees and directors which vested during 2013, 2012, and 2011 was $6.5, $10.3, and $9.8 (including dividends). A summary of the unvested stock
award activity presented below represents the maximum number of shares that could be earned or vested:

Time-Based Stock Awards

Non-vested time-based stock awards at September 30, 2012
Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Non-vested time-based stock awards at September 30, 2013

Performance-Based Stock Awards

Weighted-Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Number of
Shares

158,249
82,830
(115,995 )
(12,010 )
113,074

$

Weighted-Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Number of
Shares

Non-vested performance-based stock awards at September 30, 2012
Granted
Vested

1,215,459
778,942
(70,460 )

Forfeited
Non-vested performance-based stock awards at September 30, 2013

(516,947 )
1,406,994

21.30
22.25
22.72
20.82
20.59

$

21.14
20.76
19.69
19.82
21.49

As of September 30, 2013, $1.6 and $3.3 of unrecognized stock-based compensation was associated with our unvested time-based stock awards and performance-based stock
awards based upon projected performance to date. These costs are expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.1 and 1.6 years. This unrecognized

compensation expense included a reduction for an estimate of potential forfeitures. As of September 30, 2013, the outstanding time-based stock awards and performancebased stock awards had an aggregate fair value of $3.1 and $38.5. The weighted-average grant date fair value of time-based stock awards was $21.47 and $21.38 per share for
2012 and 2011. The weighted-average grant date fair value of performance-based stock awards was $22.34 and $19.66 per share for 2012 and 2011.
Dividends payable in stock accrue on both time-based and performance-based stock awards, and are subject to the same terms as the original grants. As of September 30,
2013, a total of 77,974 stock units had accumulated on unvested stock awards due to dividend reinvestments and are excluded from the tables above. The aggregate fair value
of these shares at September 30, 2013, was $2.1.
Vested Deferred Stock — Past stock-based compensation programs allowed deferrals after vesting to be set up as deferred stock. As of September 30, 2013, there were
261,697 shares that were deferred fully-vested and are excluded from the tables above. The aggregate fair value of these shares at September 30, 2013, was $7.2.
58

Table of Contents
10. Commitments and Contingencies
Lease Commitments — We lease certain manufacturing facilities, warehouse distribution centers, service centers, and sales offices under operating leases. Rental expense for
2013, 2012, and 2011 was $23.7, $9.5, and $9.0. The aggregate future minimum lease payments for operating leases, excluding renewable periods, as of September 30, 2013,
were as follows:
Amount

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
Thereafter

$

19.6
15.2
11.5
8.1
6.4
53.4
114.2

$
Litigation

General — Like most companies, we are involved on an ongoing basis in claims, lawsuits, and government proceedings relating to our operations, including environmental,
patent infringement, business practices, commercial transactions, product and general liability, workers’ compensation, auto liability, employment, and other matters. The
ultimate outcome of these matters cannot be predicted with certainty. An estimated loss from these contingencies is recognized when we believe it is probable that a loss has
been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated; however, it is difficult to measure the actual loss that might be incurred related to litigation. If a loss is
not considered probable and/or cannot be reasonably estimated, we are required to make a disclosure if there is at least a reasonable possibility that a significant loss may have
been incurred. Legal fees associated with claims and lawsuits are generally expensed as incurred.
Claims other than employment and related matters have deductibles and self-insured retentions ranging from $0.5 to $1.0 per occurrence or per claim, depending upon the
type of coverage and policy period. Outside insurance companies and third-party claims administrators assist in establishing individual claim reserves, and an independent
outside actuary provides estimates of ultimate projected losses, including incurred but not reported claims, which are used to establish reserves for losses. Claim reserves for
employment-related matters are established based upon advice from internal and external counsel and historical settlement information for claims and related fees when such
amounts are considered probable of payment.
The recorded amounts represent our best estimate of the costs we will incur in relation to such exposures, but it is possible that actual costs will differ from those estimates.
Matthews Litigation — In August 2010, the York Group, Inc., Milso Industries Corporation, and Matthews International Corporation (collectively “Matthews”) filed a lawsuit
against Scott Pontone and Batesville Casket Company, Inc. in the U.S. District Court, Western District of Pennsylvania, which was subsequently amended by Matthews in
February 2011 to include two additional defendants, Harry Pontone and Pontone Casket Company, LLC (the “Matthews Litigation”). The Matthews Litigation arises, in part,
as a result of a Marketing Consulting Agreement entered into between Batesville and Pontone Casket Company effective June 24, 2010, and Batesville’s hiring of two former
employees of certain Matthews entities in June 2010. Scott Pontone provides consulting services to Batesville pursuant to the Marketing Consulting Agreement entered into
between Batesville and Pontone Casket Company. Matthews alleges that Scott Pontone and Harry Pontone breached contractual and business obligations with Matthews and
that Batesville induced certain of those breaches as part of its sales initiatives in the New York metropolitan area.
Matthews claims that it has lost revenue and will lose future revenue in the New York metropolitan area, although the amount of those alleged damages is unspecified.
Matthews seeks to: (i) recover compensatory damages, punitive damages, attorneys’ fees and costs; and (ii) enjoin certain activities by Harry Pontone, Scott Pontone, Pontone
Casket Company, and Batesville and its employees in the New York metropolitan area. Although Matthews originally moved for a preliminary injunction, that request was
withdrawn. Discovery has closed. Batesville has moved for summary judgment on Matthews’ claims. No trial date has been set.
The Company believes Batesville acted lawfully and intends to defend this matter vigorously. The Company does not believe, based on currently available information, that
the outcome of this lawsuit will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or liquidity. If Matthews prevails at trial, however, the outcome could be
materially adverse to the Company’s operating results or cash flows for the particular period, depending, in part, upon the operating results or cash flows for such period.
Horstmann Litigation — On March 18, 2013, a joint and several judgment was entered by the Higher Regional Court (OLG) Hamm, Germany, in favor of plaintiff, Jürgen
Horstmann, and against defendants, Atlas-Vermögensverwaltungs GmbH, ThyssenKrupp
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Technologies Beteiligungen (“ThyssenKrupp”), and Hillenbrand subsidiary, Coperion, in the amount of €10.3, plus interest, for a total estimated judgment of €18.5 to €19.6
(the “Horstmann Litigation”). In the Horstmann Litigation, the plaintiff alleged numerous claims relating to its purchase from ThyssenKrupp of a former ThyssenKrupp
business in 1996. This judgment reversed a ruling on September 1, 2010, by the Court of First Instance that previously dismissed these claims.
Pursuant to a Framework Agreement entered into in 2000 between ThyssenKrupp and Admini Zweiundsiebzig (“Admini”) (predecessor to Coperion), ThyssenKrupp agreed
to indemnify Coperion for all liability associated with the Horstmann Litigation. Additionally, pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement by which the Company acquired
Coperion, the sellers are required to indemnify Hillenbrand in the event ThyssenKrupp does not fulfill its indemnification obligations, subject to the terms and conditions of
such Share Purchase Agreement.
On August 22, 2013, the defendants in the Horstmann Litigation filed an appeal with the German Federal Court of Justice of the judgment that was entered on March 18,

2013. Even if the appeal is unsuccessful and the judgment stands, Hillenbrand believes it will be fully indemnified with respect to the Horstmann Litigation and does not
believe that the outcome of this lawsuit will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or liquidity. Hillenbrand’s balance sheet at September 30,
2013, included a long-term liability of $8.7 and a corresponding indemnification receivable, recorded in other assets, for $8.7.
11. Other Income (Expense), Net
Year Ended September 30,
2012

2013

Interest income on Forethought Note
Equity in net (loss) income of affiliates
Net realized gain on auction rate securities and investments
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss)
Business acquisition costs, net
Other, net
Other income (expense), net

$

—
(1.3 )
0.3
0.1
1.0
(0.5 )
(0.4 )

$

$

—
1.6
0.2
(0.5 )
—
(2.8 )
(1.5 )

$

2011

$

6.4
5.4
0.5
(0.5 )
—
(1.6 )
10.2

$

The acquisition of Coperion was transacted in euros. Business acquisition costs, net, within this income statement category represents the foreign exchange gain recognized
on euro-denominated cash required to fund the acquisition, offset by the costs of derivative contracts that hedged currency exposure on the funds required to close the
transaction.
12. Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is defined as the exit price, or the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
as of the measurement date. The authoritative guidance establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and
minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are from sources independent of the
Company. Unobservable inputs reflect the Company’s assumptions about the factors market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability developed based upon the
best information available in the circumstances. The categorization of financial assets and liabilities within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement. The hierarchy is broken down into three levels:
Level 1:
Level 2:
Level 3:

Inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active, and inputs (other than quoted prices) that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability.

See the section below titled “Valuation Techniques” for further discussion of how Hillenbrand determines fair value for investments.
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Carrying
Value at
September 30,
2013

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity investments
Investments in rabbi trust
Derivative instruments

$

Liabilities:
$150 senior unsecured notes
Revolving credit facilities
Term loan
Derivative instruments

42.7
1.0
5.6
1.5

Level 1

$

Liabilities:
$150 senior unsecured notes
Revolving credit facilities
Derivative instruments

42.7
—
5.6
—

148.8
325.5
190.0
0.5

$

20.2
2.5
5.5
148.6
123.0
0.4

$

155.3
—
—
—

Carrying
Value at
September 30,
2012

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity investments
Investments in rabbi trust

Fair Value at September 30, 2013
Using Inputs Considered as:
Level 2

Level 1

$

—
—
—
1.5

Level 3

$

—
325.5
190.0
0.5

—
—
—
—

Fair Value at September 30, 2012
Using Inputs Considered as:
Level 2

20.2
1.5
5.5
165.6
—
—

—
5.0
—
—

$

—
—
—
—
123.0
0.4

Level 3

$

—
1.0
—
—
—
—

Valuation Techniques
·

·
·
·

The carrying amount of equity investments (included as a component of other assets within the balance sheet) was $1.0 and $2.5 at September 30, 2013 and 2012. Our
equity investments include $1.0 of warrants to purchase the common stock of a privately held company, which had entered into a definitive agreement to be purchased
by a third-party as of September 30, 2013. The fair value of the warrants was determined at September 30, 2013, using the Black Scholes model and was discounted to
account for risks inherent in the pending transaction. At September 30, 2012, our equity investments also included $1.5 of common stock in a publicly traded
company, which was sold in 2013. The fair values at September 30, 2012, were determined using either quoted prices in an active market or using present value or
other techniques appropriate for a particular financial instrument. All of these techniques involve some degree of management judgment and, as a result, are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts we would realize in a current market exchange.
The fair value of the investments in the rabbi trust were based on quoted prices in active markets. The trust assets consist of participant-directed investments in publicly
traded mutual funds.
We estimate the fair value of our foreign currency derivatives using industry accepted models. The significant Level 2 inputs used in the valuation of our derivatives
include spot rates, forward rates, and volatility. These inputs are obtained from pricing services, broker quotes, and other sources.
The fair value of the 10-year, 5.5% fixed-rate senior unsecured notes was based on quoted prices in an active market.

·
·

The fair values of the revolving credit facility and term loan are estimated based on internally-developed models, using current market interest rate data for similar
issues, as there is no active market for our revolving credit facilities or term loan.
The private equity limited partnerships were excluded from the tables above. The carrying amount of these assets (included as a component of other assets within the
balance sheet) was $10.3 and $13.3 at September 30, 2013 and 2012. The fair value of these equity method investments is not readily available.

13. Segment and Geographical Information
We conduct our operations through two reportable business segments: the Process Equipment Group and Batesville. These reporting segments are determined on the basis of
our management structure, and how we internally report financial information used to make operating decisions and evaluate results.
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We record the direct costs of business operations to the reporting segments, including stock-based compensation, asset impairments, restructuring activities, and business
acquisition costs. Corporate provides management and administrative services to each reporting segment. These services include treasury management, human resources,
legal, business development, and other public company support functions such as internal audit, investor relations, financial reporting, and tax compliance. With limited
exception for certain professional services and technology costs, we do not allocate these types of corporate expenses to the reporting segments.
September 30,
2012

2013

Net revenue
Process Equipment Group
Batesville
Total net revenue

$

932.7
620.7
1,553.4

$

Adjusted EBITDA
Process Equipment Group
Batesville
Corporate

376.4
606.8
983.2

$

$

79.7
152.8
(25.1 )

$

53.3
179.9
(24.8 )

886.3
667.1
1,553.4

$

817.5
165.7
983.2

$

741.2
142.2
883.4

71.1
17.9
0.4
89.4

$

23.3
16.6
0.5
40.4

$

$

Net revenue(1)
United States
International
Total revenue

$

116.4
161.0
(29.9 )

$
$

Depreciation and amortization
Process Equipment Group
Batesville
Corporate
Total depreciation and amortization

$

2011

$
$

$

$

245.9
637.5
883.4

$

$

17.5
17.8
0.8
36.1

$

(1) We attribute revenue to a geography based upon the location of the business unit that consummates the external sale.
September 30,
2013

Total assets assigned
Process Equipment Group
Batesville
Corporate
Total assets

$
$

Tangible long-lived assets, net
United States
International
Tangible long-lived assets, net

$
$

2012

1,708.6
238.3
56.3
2,003.2

$

101.9
70.0
171.9

$

769.7
236.2
81.6
1,087.5

$

100.4
17.5
117.9

$
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The following schedule reconciles segment adjusted EBITDA to consolidated net income.
Year Ended September 30,
2012

2013

Adjusted EBITDA:
Process Equipment Group
Batesville
Corporate
Less:
Interest income
Interest expense
Income tax expense
Depreciation and amortization
Business acquisition costs
Inventory step-up
Restructuring
Long-term incentive compensation related to the international integration
Antitrust litigation
Other

$

$

2011

$

116.4
161.0
(29.9 )

79.7
152.8
(25.1 )

53.3
179.9
(24.8)

(0.6 )
24.0
28.3
89.4
16.0
21.8
2.8
—
0.2
0.2

(0.5 )
12.4
30.1
40.4
4.2
—
8.3
2.2
5.5
—

(7.4 )
11.0
51.7
36.1
6.3
2.8
1.3
—
1.3
(0.8 )

$

Consolidated net income

65.4

$

104.8

$

106.1

14. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information
First
Quarter

2013
Net revenue
Gross profit
Net income(1)
Earnings per share — basic and diluted
2012
Net revenue
Gross profit
Net income(1)
Earnings per share — basic and diluted

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

$

305.2
110.6
14.3
0.23

$

398.5
136.6
12.7
0.20

$

408.8
135.1
13.3
0.21

$

440.9
144.9
23.1
0.37

$

231.6
93.7
31.3
0.50

$

259.7
104.3
27.4
0.44

$

238.4
90.8
21.3
0.34

$

253.5
100.1
24.8
0.40

(1) Net income attributable to Hillenbrand
15. Condensed Consolidating Information
On January 9, 2013, the Company’s subsidiary, Coperion Corporation, a Delaware corporation, was joined as a party to the Guaranty dated July 27, 2012 (“Guaranty”), by
certain subsidiaries of the Company (including Coperion Corporation, the “Guarantors”), which was entered into in connection with the Company’s revolving credit facility.
In accordance with the terms of the revolving credit facility, Coperion Corporation was required to join the Guaranty as a material domestic subsidiary of the Company
following the acquisition of Coperion Capital GmbH.
On January 10, 2013, the Company, the Guarantors, and U.S. Bank National Association (“Trustee”) entered into a supplemental indenture pursuant to which the Guarantors
agreed to guarantee the obligations of the Company under its 5.50% Notes due 2020 issued pursuant to an Indenture entered into on July 9, 2010, between the Company and
the Trustee. As such, certain 100% owned subsidiaries of Hillenbrand fully and unconditionally, jointly and severally, agreed to guarantee all of the indebtedness relating to
our obligations under our 5.50% Notes due 2020. The following are the condensed consolidating financial statements, including the guarantors, which present the statements
of income, balance sheets, and cash flows of (i) the parent holding company, (ii) the guarantor subsidiaries, (iii) the non-guarantor subsidiaries, and (iv) eliminations
necessary to present the information for Hillenbrand on a consolidated basis.
The Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet for September 30, 2012, has been revised to correct the classification of certain intercompany accounts, including intercompany
receivables, investment in consolidated subsidiaries, intercompany payables, and
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shareholders’ equity. These revisions increased investment in consolidated subsidiaries and intercompany payables for the parent holding company by $58.3. The revisions
also increased intercompany receivables ($51.3) and reduced investment in consolidated subsidiaries ($56.6) and intercompany payables ($5.3) for the guarantor subsidiaries.
Finally, these revisions decreased intercompany receivables ($8.3) and intercompany payables ($10.0); and increased shareholders’ equity ($1.7) for the non-guarantor
subsidiaries. The revisions to the guarantor subsidiaries had no impact on net assets. These revisions did not impact consolidated results and are not significant to the
previously reported financial statements.
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income
Year ended September 30, 2013
NonParent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations
Net revenue
$
— $
863.4 $
862.7 $
(172.7)
Cost of goods sold
—
442.8
647.3
(63.9 )
Gross profit
—
420.6
215.4
(108.8)
Operating expenses
42.4
260.0
215.5
(108.8)
Operating profit
(42.4 )
160.6
(0.1)
—
Interest expense
19.8
0.2
4.4
(0.4)
Other income (expense), net
1.4
(3.5)
2.1
(0.4)
Equity in net income (loss)
of subsidiaries
105.2
10.0
—
(115.2)
Income (loss) before
income taxes
44.4
166.9
(2.4)
(115.2)
Income tax expense (benefit)
(19.0 )
58.5
(11.2 )
—
Consolidated net income
63.4
108.4
8.8
(115.2)
Less: Net income
attributable to
noncontrolling interests
—
—
2.0
—
$ 63.4 $
108.4 $
6.8 $
(115.2)
Net income (loss)(1)
Consolidated Comprehensive
income (loss)
$ 104.4 $
132.5 $
28.5 $
(159.0)
Less: Comprehensive
income attributable to
noncontrolling interests
—
—
1.5
—
$ 104.4 $
132.5 $
27.0 $
(159.0 )
Comprehensive income (loss)(2)

Year ended September 30, 2012
Year ended September 30, 2011
NonNonConsolidated Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated Parent Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
$
1,553.4 $
— $
795.5 $
349.1 $
(161.4) $
983.2 $
— $
726.4 $
316.9 $
(159.9) $
883.4
1,026.2
—
391.9
258.7
(56.3 )
594.3
—
334.2
233.6
(54.3 )
513.5
527.2
—
403.6
90.4
(105.1)
388.9
—
392.2
83.3
(105.6)
369.9
409.1
31.4
249.6
64.2
(105.1)
240.1
36.1
225.1
55.7
(105.6)
211.3
118.1
(31.4 )
154.0
26.2
—
148.8
(36.1 )
167.1
27.6
—
158.6
24.0
12.4
—
—
—
12.4
11.0
—
—
—
11.0
(0.4)
0.1
(0.2)
(1.4)
—
(1.5)
—
11.2
(1.0)
—
10.2
—
93.7
28.3
65.4

116.4
72.7
(32.1 )
104.8

4.5

—

(120.9)

—

158.3
57.1
101.2

24.8
5.1
19.7

(120.9)
—
(120.9)

134.9
30.1
104.8

131.9
84.8
(21.3 )
106.1

6.2

—

(138.1)

—

184.5
66.9
117.6

26.6
6.1
20.5

(138.1)
—
(138.1)

157.8
51.7
106.1

$

2.0
—
63.4 $ 104.8 $

—
101.2 $

—
19.7 $

—
(120.9) $

—
—
104.8 $ 106.1 $

—
117.6 $

—
20.5

$

—
(138.1) $

—
106.1

$

105.9 $ 101.9 $

104.9 $

13.1 $

(118.0) $

101.9 $ 109.6 $

109.5 $

32.0

$

(141.5) $

109.6

$

104.4 $ 101.9 $

$

(141.5 ) $

1.5

—

—
104.9 $

(1) Net income attributable to Hillenbrand
(2) Comprehensive income attributable to Hillenbrand
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13.1 $

—
(118.0 ) $

—

—

101.9 $ 109.6 $

—
109.5 $

—
32.0

—

—
109.6
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

Parent

As of September 30, 2013
NonGuarantors Guarantors Eliminations

0.6 $
—

$

33.4 $
116.4

— $
—

—
15.2
126.9
—
72.4
107.8
9.1
8.3
4.9
1.0
4.4
15.0
222.5
1,011.3
33.3
0.4
4.3
17.0
233.6
1,221.6
454.7
7.4
69.0
95.5
2.7
194.3
361.6
—
209.3
376.5
1,938.9
644.0
—
13.9
19.0
15.5
$ 2,196.5 $ 2,357.2 $ 1,303.8 $

—
(2.7 )
—
—
(1,267.1)
(0.7 )
(1,270.5)
—
—
—
(2,582.9)
(0.9 )
(3,854.3) $

Trade accounts payable
Liabilities from long-term manufacturing
contracts and advances
Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued compensation
Deferred income taxes
Intercompany payables
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Accrued pension and postretirement
healthcare
Deferred income taxes
Other long-term liabilities
Total Liabilities

$

Total Hillenbrand Shareholders’ Equity
Noncontrolling interests
Total Equity
Total Liabilities and Equity

568.3
1,849.1
733.8
(2,582.9)
—
—
8.0
—
568.3
1,849.1
741.8
(2,582.9)
$ 2,196.5 $ 2,357.2 $ 1,303.8 $ (3,854.3 ) $

0.6 $

8.7 $
97.0

Consolidated

Cash and equivalents
Trade receivables, net
Unbilled receivables from long-term
manufacturing contracts
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expense
Intercompany receivables
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Investment in consolidated subsidiaries
Other assets
Total Assets

25.8 $

155.0 $

As of September 30, 2012
NonGuarantors Guarantors Eliminations

Parent

42.7 $
213.4

Consolidated

6.3 $
110.4

10.0 $
40.3

— $
—

20.2
150.7

142.1
—
—
177.5
—
62.5
22.3
—
26.5
20.4
5.5
2.6
—
211.6
870.3
21.0
2.0
1.2
639.4
223.0
1,079.8
171.9
7.1
66.0
558.6
1.6
185.5
585.8
—
176.0
—
1,457.3
311.3
47.5
9.8
77.4
2,003.2 $ 1,698.8 $ 1,896.0 $

—
29.9
—
7.0
44.2
8.2
139.6
44.8
126.8
127.7
—
0.9
439.8 $

—
(2.4 )
(6.9 )
—
(1,126.1)
(1.7 )
(1,137.1)
—
—
—
(1,768.6)
(41.4)
(2,947.1) $

—
90.0
19.6
15.1
—
9.7
305.3
117.9
313.9
303.7
—
46.7
1,087.5

16.4 $

— $

35.3

— $

3.9 $
—

181.4 $

0.7 $

18.2 $

—
10.0
3.6
—
1,048.1
3.6
1,065.9
562.3

12.3
—
22.3
—
221.7
69.3
351.4
—

68.6
—
33.7
12.1
—
49.3
318.7
92.0

—
—
—
—
(1,269.8)
(0.7 )
(1,270.5)
—

80.9
10.0
59.6
12.1
—
121.5
465.5
654.3

—
—
—
—
911.8
8.4
920.9
271.6

9.6
—
22.2
—
216.7
49.9
316.6
—

6.3
—
8.8
7.8
—
12.1
51.4
—

—
—
(1.7 )
(6.9 )
(1,128.5)
—
(1,137.1)
—

15.9
—
29.3
0.9
—
70.4
151.8
271.6

—
—
—
1,628.2

86.1
46.2
24.4
508.1

104.2
30.1
17.0
562.0

—
(0.9 )
—
(1,271.4)

190.3
75.4
41.4
1,426.9

—
—
—
1,192.5

111.8
56.3
24.3
509.0

—
6.8
—
58.2

—
(41.4)
—
(1,178.5)

111.8
21.7
24.3
581.2

568.3
506.3
1,387.0
8.0
—
—
576.3
506.3
1,387.0
2,003.2 $ 1,698.8 $ 1,896.0 $

381.6
(1,768.6)
—
—
381.6
(1,768.6)
439.8 $ (2,947.1 ) $

506.3
—
506.3
1,087.5

Year ended September 30, 2011
NonGuarantors Eliminations

Consolidated

138.2 $ 252.8 $

(81.8 ) $

18.5

$

(20.9 )

(5.0)

(14.3 )

(2.6)

—

—

91.5

—

—

91.5

—

—

—

(240.9)

12.4
—

—
—

—
—

12.4
4.4

89.6

(2.6)

—

(154.5)
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

Parent
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities
Investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Forethought Note principal
repayment
Acquisition of business, net
of cash acquired
Proceeds from redemption
and sales of auction rate
securities and
investments
Other
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities
Financing activities:
Proceeds from term loan
Repayments on term loan
Proceeds from revolving
credit facilities, net of
financing costs
Repayments on revolving
credit facilities
Payment of dividends intercompany
Payment of dividends on
common stock
Purchase of common stock
Other, net
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities
Effect of exchange rates on
cash and cash equivalents
Net cash flow

$ 152.1 $

(2.8)
—
(404.3)

1.7
2.3
(403.1)

Year ended September 30, 2013
NonGuarantors Eliminations Consolidated

Guarantors

107.4 $

(36.4 ) $

(14.3 )

(12.8 )

—

—

(95.9 ) $

—
—

Parent

127.2 $ 209.4 $

335.2 $

(29.9 )

(10.1 )

—
(415.7)

(4.6)
—

—

—

52.3

0.8
2.0

—
—

—

—

—

—

—

(4.4)

—
—

0.8
2.0

—

(22.5 )

189.5

(21.9 )

—
—

(14.7 )

(23.2 )

—

(441.0)

(1.8)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

—

—

545.7

179.0

—

—

—

179.0

—

(708.0)

(150.9)

—

—

—

(150.9)

—

—

—

200.0
(10.0 )

592.3

—

118.0

—

710.3

545.7

—

(29.2 )

—

(514.7)

(708.0)

(5.6)

95.9

(90.3 )
—
—
—
(90.3 )

—
—
—

—
—
—

83.2

95.9

—

—

(48.7 )
—
(0.4)

(47.6 )
—
(1.2)

336.5

(211.1)

—

—

(0.2)

—

(0.2)

(3.3)

2.4

23.4

—

22.5

—
(3.5)

42.2

—
(388.8)
—
—
—
(388.8)

—
(11.4 )

—
—
(62.9 )

—
(21.9 )
—
—
—
(21.9 )

410.7

—

(240.9)

—

—
0.5

1.7
2.9

(56.7 )

$

—
0.1

—
—

247.7

(6.2)

Guarantors

—

—
—

(48.7 )
—
(0.4)

(410.7) $

Parent

(10.9 )

—
—

—

4.3 $

Consolidated

(0.5)

200.0
(10.0 )

(485.5)

Year ended September 30, 2012
NonGuarantors Eliminations

Guarantors

—
4.4
(241.5)

—

—

—
—
—

(47.6 )
—
(1.2)

(46.9 )
(3.8)
0.6

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

(46.9 )
(3.8)
0.6

410.7

(211.1)

(22.0 )

—

—

—

(22.0 )

—

4.1

—

4.1

7.8

20.0

—

17.1

0.1

—

0.1

(80.4 )

—

(95.3 )

—
(10.7 )

Cash and equivalents at
beginning of period
Cash and equivalents at end of
period

$

3.9

6.3

10.0

—

20.2

7.4

17.7

0.6 $

8.7 $

33.4 $

— $

42.7 $

3.9 $

90.4

6.3 $

10.0

—
$

—

115.5
$

18.1

20.2

$

9.9

7.4 $

17.7

70.4
$

90.4

—
$

—

98.4
$

115.5
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16. Restructuring
During 2013, Hillenbrand incurred $4.1 of restructuring costs ($0.5 at the Process Equipment Group, $3.4 at Batesville, and $0.2 at Corporate). These costs consisted of $3.2
classified as cost of goods sold and $0.9 classified as operating expenses related to severance and other restructuring costs. Batesville’s restructuring costs relate primarily to
the decision to discontinue the purchase, sale, and distribution of its vault product line. Future charges related to these restructurings are not expected to be significant. The
majority of the severance and exit costs have been paid as of September 30, 2013, but some will be paid in 2014.
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SCHEDULE II
HILLENBRAND, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013, 2012, AND 2011
Additions
Balance at
Beginning
of Period

(in millions)

Charged to
Costs and
Expense

Charged to
Other
Accounts

Deductions
Net of
Recoveries (b)

Balance
at End
of Period

Allowance for doubtful accounts, early pay discounts, and
sales returns:
Year ended September 30, 2013
Year ended September 30, 2012
Year ended September 30, 2011

$
$
$

16.5
21.7
20.1

$
$
$

2.6
2.2
1.2

$
$
$

1.9(a)
—
0.1(c)

$
$
$

(1.7 )
(7.4 )
0.3

$
$
$

19.3
16.5
21.7

$
$
$

2.8
3.2
3.2

$
$
$

0.6
—
0.8

$
$
$

12.8 (a)
—
—

$
$
$

(1.2 )
(0.4 )
(0.8 )

$
$
$

15.0
2.8
3.2

Allowance for inventory valuation:
Year ended September 30, 2013
Year ended September 30, 2012
Year ended September 30, 2011

(a) Reflects opening reserve balances resulting from the acquisition of Coperion.
(b) Reflects the write-off of specific receivables against recorded reserves and other adjustments.
(c) Reflects opening reserve balances resulting from the acquisition of Rotex.
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Item 9.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
Item 9A.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We have established disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance that material information relating to us,
including our consolidated subsidiaries, is made known on a timely basis to management and the Board of Directors. No control system, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide absolute assurance that the objectives of the control system are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues
and instances of fraud, if any, within a company have been detected.
Our management, with the participation of our President and Chief Executive Officer and the Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (the “Certifying Officers”),
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)). Based upon that evaluation, the Certifying Officers concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report are effective.
On December 1, 2012, we completed our acquisition of Coperion, which included its existing information systems and internal controls over financial reporting. In
conducting our evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting as of September 30, 2013, we have elected to exclude Coperion from our
evaluation for 2013 as permitted under existing SEC rules. We are currently in the process of evaluating and integrating Coperion’s historical internal controls over financial
reporting with those of the rest of the Company. The integration may lead to changes in future periods, but we do not expect these changes to materially affect our internal
controls over financial reporting. We expect to complete this integration in 2014.
Other than the changes noted above, there have been no changes to our internal controls over financial reporting. Management’s report on our internal control over financial
reporting is included under Item 8.
Item 9B.

OTHER INFORMATION

None.
PART III
Item 10.

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information related to executive officers is included in this report under Part I, Item 1 within the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant.” Information relating to the
directors will appear in the section entitled “Election of Directors” in our Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission relating to our 2014
Annual Meeting of Shareholders (“2014 Proxy Statement”), which section is incorporated herein by reference. The required information on compliance with Section 16(a) of
the Exchange Act is incorporated by reference to the 2014 Proxy Statement, where such information is included under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance.” Information regarding our Code of Ethical Business Conduct and the corporate governance matters covered by this Item is incorporated by reference
to the 2014 Proxy Statement, where such information is included under the heading “The Board of Directors and Committees.”
Item 11.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the 2014 Proxy Statement, where such information is included under the headings “The Board of
Directors and Committees,” “Executive Compensation,” “Security Ownership of Beneficial Owners of More than 5% of the Company’s Common Stock,” and “Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation.”
70

Table of Contents
Item 12.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT, AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the 2014 Proxy Statement, where such information is included under the headings “Election of
Directors,” “Security Ownership of Directors and Management,” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information.”
Item 13.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the 2014 Proxy Statement, where such information is included under the heading “The Board of
Directors and Committees.”
Item 14.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the 2014 Proxy Statement, where such information is included under the heading “Proposal No. 5Ratification of Appointment of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”
PART IV
Item 15.

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) The following documents have been filed as a part of this report or, where noted, incorporated by reference:
(1) Financial Statements
The financial statements of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries listed on the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 33.
(2) Financial Statement Schedule
The financial statement schedule on page 69 is filed in response to Item 8 and Item 15(d) of Form 10-K and is listed on the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(3) Exhibits
The Exhibit Index, which index follows the signature page to this report and is hereby incorporated herein by reference, sets forth a list of those exhibits filed herewith, and
includes and identifies management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed as exhibits to this Form 10-K by Item 601(b)(10)(iii) of Regulation
S-K.
In reviewing any agreements included as exhibits to this report, please remember that they are included to provide you with information regarding their terms and are not
intended to provide any other factual or disclosure information about us or the other parties to the agreements. The agreements may contain representations and warranties by
the parties to the agreements, including us. These representations and warranties have been made solely for the benefit of the other parties to the applicable agreement and:
·
·
·
·

should not in all instances be treated as categorical statements of fact, but rather as a way of allocating the risk to one of the parties if those statements prove to be
inaccurate;
may have been qualified by disclosures that were made to the other party in connection with the negotiation of the applicable agreement, which disclosures are not
necessarily reflected in the agreement;
may apply standards of materiality in a way that is different from what may be viewed as material to you or other investors; and
were made only as of the date of the applicable agreement or such other date or dates as may be specified in the agreement and are subject to more recent
developments.

Accordingly, these representations and warranties may not describe the actual state of affairs as of the date they were made or at any other time.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
HILLENBRAND, INC.
By:

/s/ Joe A. Raver
Joe A. Raver
President and Chief Executive Officer
November 25, 2013
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been duly signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signatures

Title

Date

Chairperson of the Board

November 25, 2013

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

November 25, 2013

/s/Cynthia L. Lucchese
Cynthia L. Lucchese

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

November 25, 2013

/s/Elizabeth E. Dreyer
Elizabeth E. Dreyer

Vice President — Controller and Chief Accounting
Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)

November 25, 2013

/s/Edward B. Cloues II
Edward B. Cloues II

Director

November 25, 2013

/s/Helen W. Cornell
Helen W. Cornell

Director

November 25, 2013

/s/Mark C. Deluzio
Mark C. Deluzio

Director

November 25, 2013

/s/Joy M. Greenway
Joy M. Greenway

Director

November 25, 2013

/s/W August Hillenbrand
W August Hillenbrand

Director

November 25, 2013

/s/Thomas H. Johnson
Thomas H. Johnson

Director

November 25, 2013

/s/ Eduardo R. Menascẻ
Eduardo R. Menascẻ

Director

November 25, 2013

/s/Neil S. Novich
Neil S. Novich

Director

November 25, 2013

/s/Stuart A. Taylor II
Stuart A. Taylor II

Director

November 25, 2013

/s/F. Joseph Loughrey
F. Joseph Loughrey
/s/Joe A. Raver
Joe A. Raver
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Exhibit Index
Exhibit 2.1

Distribution Agreement dated as of March 14, 2008 by and between Hill-Rom Holdings, Inc. and Hillenbrand, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 1, 2008)

Exhibit 2.2

Letter Agreement dated as of March 31, 2008 between Hill-Rom Holdings, Inc. and Hillenbrand, Inc. regarding interpretation of Distribution
Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 14, 2008)

Exhibit 2.3

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 8, 2010, by and among Hillenbrand, Inc., Krusher Acquisition Corp. and K-Tron
International, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 11, 2010)

Exhibit 3.1

Restated and Amended Articles of Incorporation of Hillenbrand, Inc., effective March 31, 2008 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 12, 2008)

Exhibit 3.2

Articles of Correction of the Restated and Amended Articles of Incorporation of Hillenbrand, Inc., effective March 31, 2008 (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 12, 2008)

Exhibit 3.3

Amended and Restated Code of By-laws of Hillenbrand, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed
March 1, 2010)

Exhibit 4.1

Form of Indenture between Hillenbrand, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association as trustee, dated July 09, 2010 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.11 to Form S-3 filed July 6, 2010)

Exhibit 4.2

Form of Hillenbrand, Inc. 5.5% fixed rate 10 year global note (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed
July 9, 2010)

Exhibit 4.3

Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 10, 2013, by and among Hillenbrand, Inc., Batesville Casket Company, Inc., Batesville
Manufacturing, Inc., Batesville Services, Inc., Coperion Corporation, K-Tron Investment Co., TerraSource Global Corporation, Process
Equipment Group, Inc., Rotex Global, LLC, and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on January 11, 2013)

Exhibit 10.1

Judgment Sharing Agreement dated as of March 14, 2008 among Hill-Rom Holdings, Inc., Hillenbrand, Inc. and Batesville Casket
Company, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 1, 2008)

Exhibit 10.2

** Employee Matters Agreement dated as of March 14, 2008 between Hill-Rom Holdings, Inc. and Hillenbrand, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 1, 2008)

Exhibit 10.3

Tax Sharing Agreement dated as of March 31, 2008 between Hill-Rom Holdings, Inc. and Hillenbrand, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 1, 2008)

Exhibit 10.4

** Form of Employment Agreement between Hillenbrand, Inc. and Kenneth A. Camp (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Registration
Statement on Form 10)

Exhibit 10.5

** Employment Agreement dated as of March 31, 2008 between Hillenbrand, Inc. and Cynthia L. Lucchese (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 1, 2008)

Exhibit 10.6

** Employment Agreement dated as of March 31, 2008 between Hillenbrand, Inc. and John R. Zerkle (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 1, 2008)

Exhibit 10.7

** Employment Agreement dated as of March 31, 2008 between Batesville Services, Inc. and Michael L. DiBease (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 1, 2008)
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Exhibit 10.8

** Employment Agreement dated as of March 24, 2008 between Hillenbrand, Inc. and P. Douglas Wilson (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 14, 2008)

Exhibit 10.9

** Employment Agreement dated as of June 15, 2008, between Hillenbrand, Inc. and Joe A. Raver (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 12, 2008)

Exhibit 10.10

** Form of Change in Control Agreement between Hillenbrand, Inc. and Kenneth A. Camp (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to
Registration Statement on Form 10)

Exhibit 10.11

** Form of Change in Control Agreement between Hillenbrand, Inc. and certain of its non-CEO executive officers, including certain named
executive officers (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Registration Statement on Form 10)

Exhibit 10.12

** Form of Change in Control Agreement between Hillenbrand, Inc. and certain of its non-CEO executive officers, including Kimberly K. Ryan
and Scott P. George (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Annual Report on Form 10-K filed November 28, 2011)

Exhibit 10.13

** Form of Indemnity Agreement between Hillenbrand, Inc. and certain executive officers, including named executive officers (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Registration Statement on Form 10)

Exhibit 10.14

** Form of Indemnity Agreement between Hillenbrand, Inc. and its non-employee directors (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to
Registration Statement on Form 10)

Exhibit 10.15

** Hillenbrand, Inc. Board of Directors’ Deferred Compensation Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Quarterly Report on Form 10Q filed May 14, 2008)

Exhibit 10.16

** Hillenbrand, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Registration Statement on Form 10)

Exhibit 10.17

** Hillenbrand, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Program (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Registration Statement on Form 10)

Exhibit 10.18

Credit Agreement dated as of March 28, 2008 among Hillenbrand, Inc., the lenders named therein, and Citibank, N.A., as agent for the lenders
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 1, 2008)

Exhibit 10.19

** Hillenbrand, Inc. Short-Term Incentive Compensation Plan for Key Executives (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed February 11, 2009)

Exhibit 10.20

** Employment Agreement dated as of October 27, 2008, between Hillenbrand, Inc. and Jan Santerre (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed February 6, 2009)

Exhibit 10.21

Voting Agreement, dated as of January 8, 2010, by and among Hillenbrand, Inc., Krusher Acquisition Corp. and certain shareholders of K-Tron
International, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 11, 2010)

Exhibit 10.22
Exhibit 10.23

** Hillenbrand, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 1, 2010)
Letter Agreement dated as of March 31, 2008 between Hillenbrand, Inc. and Forethought Financial Group, Inc. regarding Repurchase of
Promissory Note and Redemption of Warrants (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 6, 2010)

Exhibit 10.24

Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement dated as of March 28, 2008 among Hillenbrand, Inc., the lenders named therein, and Citibank, N.A., as
agent for the lenders (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 6, 2010)
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Exhibit 10.25

Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement dated as of March 28, 2008 among Hillenbrand, Inc., the lenders named therein, Citibank, N.A., as
resigning agent for the lenders and J.P. Morgan Chase Bank NA as successor agent (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report
on Form 8-K filed July 6, 2010)

Exhibit 10.26

** Employment Agreement dated November 11, 2008 between K-Tron International, Inc. and Kevin C. Bowen (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.29 to Annual Report on Form 10-K filed November 23, 2010)

Exhibit 10.27

** Form of Hillenbrand, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan Performance Based Unit Award Agreement between Hillenbrand, Inc. and certain executive
officers (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to Annual Report on Form 10-K filed November 23, 2010)

Exhibit 10.28

** Hillenbrand, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (As Amended and Restated July 1, 2010) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31
to Annual Report on Form 10-K filed November 23, 2010)

Exhibit 10.29

** Hillenbrand, Inc. Supplemental Retirement Plan effective as of July 1, 2010 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed November 23, 2010)

Exhibit 10.30

** Form of Hillenbrand, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement between Hillenbrand, Inc. and certain executive officers, including
named officers (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to Annual Report on Form 10-K filed November 23, 2010)

Exhibit 10.31

** Form of Hillenbrand, Inc. Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement between Hillenbrand, Inc. and certain executive officers, including named
executive officers (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to Annual Report on Form 10-K filed November 23, 2010)

Exhibit 10.32

Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of August 4, 2011, by and among Hillenbrand, Inc., Rotex Global, LLC, and Rotex Holdings, LLC
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 5, 2011)

Exhibit 10.33

** Employment Agreement dated as of January 30, 2012 between Hillenbrand, Inc., and Scott P. George (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 7, 2012)

Exhibit 10.34

Credit Agreement dated as of July 27, 2012 among Hillenbrand, Inc., the subsidiary borrowers named therein, the lenders named therein, and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent for the lenders (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K
filed July 30, 2012)

Exhibit 10.35

Confidential Settlement Agreement dated as of October 1, 2012, by and among Batesville Casket Company, Inc., Hill-Rom Holdings, Inc., and
certain parties, on the one hand, and Funeral Consumers Alliance, Inc. and certain other parties, on the other hand (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed February 4, 2013)

Exhibit 10.36

Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 16, 2012, by and among Hillenbrand, Inc., Hillenbrand Germany Holding GmbH, DBAG Fund
V GmbH & Co. KG, DBAG Fund V International GmbH & Co. KG, DBAG Fund V Konzern GmbH & Co. KG, DBAG Fund V Co-Investor
GmbH & Co. KG, Deutsche Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH, Günter Bachmann, Axel Kiefer and Thomas Kehl (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on October 16, 2012)

Exhibit 10.37

Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of November 19, 2012, among Hillenbrand, Inc., the subsidiary borrowers named therein, the
lenders named therein, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent for the lenders (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on November 21, 2012)

Exhibit 10.38

Guarantee Facility Agreement dated as of December 3, 2012, by and between Coperion GmbH and Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed February 4, 2013)

Exhibit 10.39

Guaranty dated as of December 3, 2012, by Hillenbrand, Inc. in favor of Commerzbank Aktiengesellschaft (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed February 4, 2013)
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Exhibit 10.40
Exhibit 10.41
Exhibit 10.42

Private Shelf Agreement dated as of December 6, 2012, by and between Hillenbrand, Inc. and Prudential Investment Management, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed February 4, 2013)
** Form of Hillenbrand, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan Performance Based Unit Award Agreement by and between Hillenbrand, Inc. and certain
employees including executive officers (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed February 4, 2013)
Annex to Guaranty dated as of January 9, 2013, by Coperion Corporation in favor of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, and
various other agents and lenders named therein (Incorporated by reference to the Form of Subsidiary Guaranty and Form of Annex to Guaranty,
copies of which were filed as exhibits to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 21, 2012)

Exhibit 10.43

** Written description of oral agreement between Hillenbrand, Inc. and Kenneth A. Camp (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed May 8, 2013)

Exhibit 10.44

** Employment Agreement dated as of April 26, 2013, by and between Hillenbrand, Inc. and Joe A. Raver (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 5, 2013)

Exhibit 10.45

** Change in Control Agreement dated as of April 26, 2013, by and between Hillenbrand, Inc. and Joe A. Raver (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 5, 2013)

Exhibit 10.46
Exhibit 10.47

** Amendment Agreement dated as of April 26, 2013, by and between Hillenbrand, Inc. and Joe A. Raver (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 5, 2013)
Syndicated L/G Facility Agreement dated as of June 3, 2013, by and among Hillenbrand, Inc., and certain of its subsidiaries, and Commerzbank
Aktiengesellschaft, as arranger and lender, and various other lenders named therein (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on June 4, 2013)

Exhibit 10.48

* Employment Agreement dated as of August 29, 2013, by and between Hillenbrand Germany Holding GmbH and Thomas Kehl

Exhibit 10.49

* Change in Control Agreement dated as of August 29, 2013, by and between Hillenbrand, Inc. and Thomas Kehl

Exhibit 14.1

Code of Ethical Business Conduct (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to Annual Report on Form 10-K filed November 23, 2010)

Exhibit 21.1

* Subsidiaries of Hillenbrand, Inc.

Exhibit 23.1

* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Exhibit 31.1

* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 31.2

* Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 32.1

* Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

Exhibit 32.2

* Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002
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Exhibit 101

*** The following materials from the Hillenbrand, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2013, formatted in XBRL
(eXtensible Business Reporting Language); (i) Consolidated Statement of Income for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
(ii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iii) Consolidated Balance Sheet for the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012,
(iv) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, (v) Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’
Equity and Comprehensive Income for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, tagged as blocks of text

* Filed herewith.
** Management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed as exhibits to this form pursuant to Item 15(a)(3) of this
Form 10-K.
*** As provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, this information is furnished herewith and not filed for purposes of Sections 11 and 12 of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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Exhibit 10.48
Anstellungsvertrag

Employment Agreement

Dieser ANSTELLUNGSVERTRAG (dieser “Vertrag”) wird am 29th August 2013
mit Wirkung zum 01. September 2013 (“Datum des Inkrafttretens”) zwischen
Hillenbrand Germany Holding GmbH, einer deutschen Gesellschaft,
Theodorstraße 10, 70469 Stuttgart, Deutschland (der “Gesellschaft”) und Thomas
Kehl (“Geschäftsführer”) geschlossen.

This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), is made as of the 29 th day
of August, 2013, to be effective as of the 1 st day of September, 2013 (the “Effective
Date”), by and between Hillenbrand Germany Holding GmbH, a German
corporation, Theodorstraße 10, 70469 Stuttgart, Germany (the “Company”), and
Thomas Kehl (the “Executive” or “Managing Director”).

Die Gesellschaft und der Geschäftsführer werden mitunter jeweils als eine “Partei”
bezeichnet und sind zusammen die “Parteien”. Die jeweiligen unmittelbaren und
mittelbaren Mutter- und Tochtergesellschaften der Gesellschaft sowie Gesellschaften,
die mit der Gesellschaft unter gemeinsamer Beherrschung stehen, werden
nachstehend als deren “verbundene Unternehmen” bezeichnet”.

Each of the Company and Executive is sometimes referred to below as a “Party” and
together they are the “Parties.” The Company’s direct and remote parent and
subsidiary companies, and those companies under common control with the
Company, as constituted from time to time, are referred to below as its “affiliated
companies.”

PRÄAMBEL

RECITALS

Die Parteien haben vereinbart, dass das bestehende Anstellungsverhältnis zwischen
dem Geschäftsführer und Coperion Capital GmbH mit Wirkung vom Datum des
Inkrafttretens und im Hinblick auf die neue Aufgabe des Geschäftsführers auf die
Gesellschaft übergeht. Die Gesellschaft wird den Geschäftsführer in einer leitenden
Funktion gemäß den Bedingungen dieses Vertrages beschäftigen. Dieser Vertrag
dient dem Zweck, die Bedingungen dieses Anstellungsverhältnisses darzulegen.

The Parties have agreed that as of the Effective Date and with respect to the new role
of Executive the existing employment relationship between the Executive and
Coperion Capital GmbH shall be transferred to the Company. The Company will
employ Executive in an executive capacity in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement. This Agreement is made to document the terms and conditions of such
employment relationship.

VEREINBARUNGEN

AGREEMENTS

Die Parteien treffen daher in der Absicht, sich gesetzlich zu verpflichten, die
folgenden Vereinbarungen:

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

1.

Wirksamkeit des Vertrages; Anstellung. Die Bedingungen dieses Vertrages
werden ab dem Datum des Inkrafttretens wirksam. Bis zum Datum des
Inkrafttretens bleibt der bestehende Anstellungsvertrag zwischen dem
Geschäftsführer und Coperion Capital GmbH vom 24. Februar 2011 (der
“vorherige Anstellungsvertrag”) uneingeschränkt wirksam. Dieser vorherige
Anstellungsvertrag endet bei Inkrafttreten dieses Vertrages.

1.

Effectiveness of Agreement; Employment. The terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall become effective commencing on the Effective Date. Until the
Effective Date, the existing employment agreement by and between Executive
and the Coperion Capital GmbH, dated as of February 24, 2011 (the “Prior
Employment Agreement”), shall continue in full force and effect. Such Prior
Employment Agreement shall terminate upon the effectiveness of this
Agreement.

2.

Position und Pflichten. Mit Wirkung vom Datum des Inkrafttretens wird der
Geschäftsführer in der Position eines Geschäftsführers der Gesellschaft und
President der Coperion Group tätig werden. Die “Coperion Group” umfasst
derzeit die Coperion Capital GmbH mit allen ihren deutschen und nichtdeutschen
Tochtergesellschaften, wobei die Parteien anerkennen, dass ggf. weitere
Unternehmen der Coperion Group beitreten oder diese verlassen können. Der
Geschäftsführer ist verpflichtet, alle Pflichten wahrzunehmen und alle
Verantwortlichkeiten zu übernehmen, die mit dieser Position (oder einer anderen
Position, in der der Geschäftsführer ggf. beschäftigt wird) verbunden sind oder
mit denen der Geschäftsführer ggf. betraut wird. Position und Pflichten des
Geschäftsführers können auf Weisung der Gesellschaft eine Anstellung oder
Tätigkeit als Geschäftsführer, Leitender Angestellter oder
Verwaltungsratsmitglied einer oder mehrerer der verbundenen

2.

Position and Duties. Executive’s position and title on the Effective Date will be a
Managing Director (“Geschäftsführer”) of the Company and President of the
Coperion Group. “Coperion Group” currently consists of Coperion Capital
GmbH with all its German and non-German subsidiaries, although the Parties
acknowledge that additional entities may from time to time join or exit the
Coperion Group. Executive agrees to perform all duties and accept all
responsibilities incidental to that position (or any other position in which
Executive may be employed) or as may be assigned to Executive. Executive’s
position and duties may include being employed by, serving as a managing
director, an officer or director of, and providing services to or for, one or more of
the Company’s affiliated companies, as directed by the Company.

Unternehmen der Gesellschaft und die Erbringung von Dienstleistungen für eines
oder mehrere derselben beinhalten.
3.

Berichtslinie. Der Geschäftsführer ist dem Chief Executive Officer von
Hillenbrand, Inc. oder einem anderen vom Chief Executive Officer von
Hillenbrand, Inc. benannten Vertreter unterstellt.

3.

Reporting Line. Executive will report to the Chief Executive Officer of
Hillenbrand, Inc. or another representative as designated by the Chief Executive
Officer of Hillenbrand, Inc.

4.

Befugnisse, zustimmungspflichtige Geschäftsvorgänge. Der Geschäftsführer
vertritt die Gesellschaft allein.

4.

Scope of Authority, Transactions Subject to Consent. Executive represents the
Company alone.

Für alle Geschäftsvorgänge, die über die normale Geschäftstätigkeit der
Gesellschaft, einschließlich Coperion Group, hinausgehen, hat der
Geschäftsführer die vorherige schriftliche Genehmigung des Chief Executive
Officer von Hillenbrand, Inc. oder eines anderen Senior Vice President von
Hillenbrand, Inc. einzuholen. Anlage 1 zu diesem Vertrag enthält eine Liste der
Geschäftsvorgänge, für die der Geschäftsführer diese Zustimmung in jedem Fall
und ungeachtet des vorangehenden Satzes benötigt.
5.

Einsatz und Loyalität. Während der Dauer des Anstellungsverhältnisses des
Geschäftsführers im Rahmen dieses Vertrages verpflichtet sich der
Geschäftsführer, bei der Führung der ihm anvertrauten Geschäfte der Gesellschaft
bestmögliche Anstrengungen zu unternehmen und seine Arbeitszeit und
Bemühungen, Aufmerksamkeit und Energie im Wesentlichen vollständig der
Wahrnehmung seiner Pflichten und Verantwortlichkeiten als Geschäftsführer für
die Gesellschaft zu widmen. Der

For all business transactions beyond the ordinary operations of the Company
including Coperion Group, Executive shall obtain the prior written approval of
the Chief Executive Officer of Hillenbrand, Inc. or another Senior Vice President
of Hillenbrand, Inc. Attachment 1 to this Agreement provides for a list of
business transactions for which Executive requires this consent in any event and
irrespective of the previous sentence.
5.

Efforts and Loyalty. During the term of Executive’s employment under this
Agreement, Executive agrees to use Executive’s reasonable best efforts in the
conduct of the Company’s business endeavors entrusted to Executive and agrees
to devote substantially all of Executive’s working time and efforts, attention and
energy to the discharge of the duties and responsibilities of Executive to and for
the Company. Executive agrees not to engage in any other activities that interfere
with

Geschäftsführer wird keine anderen Tätigkeiten ausüben, die die Leistung des
Geschäftsführers im Rahmen dieses Vertrages beeinträchtigen, und in keiner
Funktion für andere Unternehmen tätig zu werden, ohne zunächst die
diesbezügliche schriftliche Zustimmung der Gesellschaft einzuholen.
6.

Vergütung. Der Geschäftsführer erhält für alle von dem Geschäftsführer für die
Gesellschaft oder ihre verbundenen Unternehmen erbrachten Dienstleistungen die
folgende Vergütung:

Executive’s performance under this Agreement and agrees not to work in any
capacity for any other business or enterprise without first obtaining the
Company’s written consent thereto.
6.

Compensation. For all services rendered by Executive to or for the Company or
its affiliated companies, Executive shall be paid as follows:

(a) Ein Grundgehalt in einer anfänglichen Höhe von EUR 350.000 brutto
jährlich, zahlbar in zwölf (12) gleichen monatlichen Teilbeträgen à EUR
29.166,66 abzgl. Einbehalte und Abzüge; die Auszahlung erfolgt jeweils zum
Ende eines Monats. Das Grundgehalt wird bereits mit Wirkung ab dem 01.
August gezahlt. Mit dem Gehalt für September 2013 erhält der
Geschäftsführer den Differenzbetrag zu seinem jetzigen Gehalt gemäß dem
vorherigen Anstellungsvertrag in Höhe von EUR 6.250 brutto ausgezahlt

(a) A base salary at an initial annual rate of EUR 350,000 gross, payable in
equal monthly installments of EUR 29,166.66 in arrears, less withholdings
and deductions. The base salary will be paid with effect to August 1, 2013
already. The Managing Director will receive the difference to his base salary
according to the Prior Employment Agreement in the amount of EUR 6,250
gross together with the salary for the month of September 2013;

(b) Darüber hinaus ist der Geschäftsführer berechtigt, an dem Short-Term
Incentive Compensation (STIC)-Programm der Coperion Group
teilzunehmen. Die für das Geschäftsjahr 2013 gültige Version des STICProgramms ist als Anlage beigefügt und wird bis zum Ende des
Geschäftsjahres 2013 in Kraft bleiben, wobei das STIC-Programm jedes Jahr
neu definiert wird. Für die Restlaufzeit des Geschäftsjahres 2013 wird der
jährliche Zielbonus gemäß dem STIC-Program mit 100 % des

(b) In addition, Executive will be entitled to participate in the Coperion Group
Short-Term Incentive Compensation (STIC) Program. The version of the
STIC Program applicable for fiscal year 2013 is attached and will continue
in effect with respect to Executive for the remainder of fiscal year 2013;
provided, however, that the STIC Program will be re-defined each year. For
the remainder of fiscal year 2013, Executive’s annual target bonus according
to the STIC

Grundgehalts wie im STIC-Program definiert vorgegeben (dies ist das
Septembergehalt des jeweiligen Jahres). Mit Beginn des Geschäftsjahres
2014 wird als jährlicher Zielbonus des Geschäftsführers gemäß dem STICProgramm ein Bonus in Höhe von 75 % des Grundgehaltes vorgegeben. Der
STIC-Pool wird eingerichtet, sofern die Coperion Group festgesetzte
Finanzziele erfüllt oder übertrifft. Diese Ziele werden von Hillenbrand, Inc.
zu gegebener Zeit vor oder gegen Beginn jedes Geschäftsjahres definiert;

Program will be targeted at 100% of base salary as defined in the STICProgram (which is the September salary of the respective year). Beginning
with fiscal year 2014, Executive’s annual target bonus according to the STIC
Program will be targeted at 75% of base salary. The STIC pool is established
if and when the Coperion Group meets or exceeds established financial
goals. These goals will be defined by Hillenbrand, Inc. in due course before
or near the beginning of each fiscal year.

(c) Zusätzlich, ab dem Geschäftsjahr 2014 ist der Geschäftsführer außerdem
berechtigt, jährliche Long-Term Incentive-Based Compensation (LTIC)Prämien zu erhalten, die nach alleinigem Ermessen von Hillenbrand, Inc.
gemäß dem jeweils anwendbaren LTIC-Programm gewährt werden.
Tatsächliche LTIC-Prämien, soweit vorhanden, können aufgrund einer
Vielzahl von Faktoren, einschließlich der individuellen Leistung des
Geschäftsführer, höher oder niedriger ausfallen als erwartet. Die Teilnahme
an dem LTIC-Programm ist als eine gesonderte Rechtsbeziehung zu
betrachten, die ausschließlich zwischen dem Geschäftsführer und
Hillenbrand, Inc. besteht. Die Gesellschaft kann in keiner Weise für
Verpflichtungen im Rahmen des LTIC-Programms zur Verantwortung
gezogen werden; wobei es sich - um Missverständnissen vorzubeugen — bei
der Teilnahme an dem LTIC-Programm um eine Vergütung für die Dienste
des Geschäftsführers für die Gesellschaft und nicht um eine

(c) In addition, beginning with the fiscal year 2014, Executive will also be
eligible for annual long-term incentive-based compensation (LTIC) awards
which are granted at the sole discretion of Hillenbrand, Inc. in accordance
with the respective LTIC Program as applicable. Actual LTIC grants, if any,
may be higher or lower than expected, depending on a variety of factors,
including Executive’s individual performance. The participation in the LTIC
Program is to be seen as a separate legal relationship which exclusively is
between Executive and Hillenbrand, Inc. The Company can in no respect be
held liable for any obligations under the LTIC Program; provided, that for
the avoidance of doubt, participation in the LTIC Program is compensation
for Executive’s service to the Company and not in connection with any
service to Hillenbrand, Inc.

Vergütung in Verbindung mit etwaigen Dienstleistungen für
Hillenbrand, Inc. handelt;
(d) Zusätzlich wird dem Geschäftsführer ein Firmenfahrzeug der gehobenen
Mittelklasse für geschäftliche und private Zwecke entsprechend der Coperion
Dienstwagenrichtlinie (Gruppe „A”) der Gesellschaft zur Verfügung gestellt,
welches bei Beendigung des Anstellungsverhältnisses mit allem Zubehör,
Reifen, Schlüsseln etc. innerhalb von sieben (7) Tagenzurückzugeben ist.

(d) In addition, Executive will be provided a company car of upper middle class for
business and private use in accordance with applicable Coperion Car policy
group “A” Company policy; provided, that such car shall be immediately
returned to the Company upon termination of Executive’s employment for any
reason. Executive shall return the Company car with all equipment, tires,
keys, etc. within seven (7) days.

(e) Die zusätzlichen Vergütungen, Nebenleistungen und Vergünstigungen, die
die Gesellschaft jeweils für angemessen hält. Derartige weitere
Vergütungselemente, sofern vorhanden, werden freiwillig und nach
alleinigen Ermessen der Gesellschaft gezahlt. Eine in einem Jahr erfolgte
Zahlung begründet keine Verpflichtung der Gesellschaft, diese Zahlung in
künftigen Jahren zu leisten.

(e) Such additional compensation, benefits and perquisites as the Company may
from time to time deem appropriate. Any such other compensation, if any, is
paid voluntarily and to the entire discretion of the Company. A payment in
one year does not create any obligation for the Company to render any such
payments in future years.

(f) Der Geschäftsführer ist derzeit unter dem Vorherigen Anstellungsertrag von
der Beitragspflicht in der gesetzlichen Sozialversicherung in Deutschland
befreit. Sofern diese Befreiung auch unter diesem Vertrag erteilt wird,
werden die Arbeitgeberanteile zur gesetzlichen Sozialversicherung
entsprechend der Beitragsbemessungsgrenze direkt an den Geschäftsführer
ausgezahlt. Dieser Betrag ist in Deutschland einkommensteuerpflichtig und
wird mit den sonstigen Bezügen versteuert. Dieser Betrag ist nicht Teil des
festen

(f) Under the Prior Employment Agreement the Executive currently is exempted
from the obligation to contribute to the statutory social security insurance.
Provided this exemption will also be granted under this Agreement, the
employer’s part of the contribution to the statutory social security insurance
according to the contribution ceiling will be paid to the Executive directly.
This amount is subject to income tax in Germany and will be taxed together
with the other remuneration. This amount is

Jahresgehaltes und damit nicht bonusrelevant. Der Geschäftsführer
verpflichtet sich, für seine soziale Absicherung selbst angemessen
entsprechend Vorsorge zu treffen.

not part of the fixed annual base salary and therefore not eligible for the
bonus. The Executive is obliged to take care for his own social coverage
appropriately.

(g) Die Gesellschaft wird den Geschäftsführer außerdem in der freiwilligen
gesetzlichen Unfallversicherung bei der Berufsgenossenschaft anmelden und
die Beiträge übernehmen. Die hierauf anfallende Steuer trägt der
Geschäftsführer.

(g) Further, the Company will enroll the Executive in the statutory accident
insurance and will bear the contributions. Any taxes that incur in this respect
shall be borne by the Executive.

7.

Änderungen der Vergütung. Vorbehaltlich nachstehendem Abschnitt 13 und
außer in Bezug auf das in vorstehendem Abschnitt 6 (a) vorgesehene Grundgehalt
behält sich die Gesellschaft das Recht vor, und der Geschäftsführer akzeptiert das
Recht der Gesellschaft, nach alleinigem Ermessen der Gesellschaft Änderungen
der Vergütung des Geschäftsführers vorzunehmen, u. a. einschließlich der
Änderung oder Streichung einer Vergütungskomponente; jedoch unter dem
Vorbehalt, dass der Geschäftsführer weiterhin berechtigt ist, an allen
Pensionsplänen, die von der Gesellschaft jeweils nach ihrem alleinigen Ermessen
unterhalten werden, auf derselben Grundlage teilzunehmen, wie andere
vergleichbar gestellte Geschäftsführer.

7.

Changes to Compensation. Subject to Section 13 below, and except with respect
to the base salary as provided for in Section 6 (a) above, the Company reserves
the right to, and Executive agrees that the Company may, make changes to
Executive’s compensation from time to time in the Company’s sole discretion,
including, but not limited to, modifying or eliminating a compensation
component; provided, however, that Executive shall be and shall remain entitled
to participate in all benefit plans maintained by the Company in its sole discretion
from time to time on the same basis as other executive officers similarly situated.

8.

Urlaub. Der Geschäftsführer hat Anspruch auf einen Urlaub von 30 Arbeitstagen
pro Jahr. Samstage gelten nicht als Arbeitstage. Die Urlaubszeit ist unter
Berücksichtigung der Erfordernisse der Gesellschaft und der persönlichen
Wünsche des Geschäftsführers

8.

Vacation. Executive shall be entitled to an annual vacation of 30 working days.
Saturdays are not considered working days. The time of vacation shall be
determined by taking into consideration the necessities of the Company and the
personal wishes of Executive. Vacation

festzulegen. Urlaub, der in einem Kalenderjahr nicht in Anspruch genommen
wird, verfällt.
9.

not taken during the calendar year will forfeit.

Lohnfortzahlung bei Krankheit.

9.

Continued Remuneration upon Sickness.

(a) Der Geschäftsführer ist verpflichtet, der Gesellschaft jede Dienstverhinderung,
ihre Gründe und ihre voraussichtliche Dauer unverzüglich anzuzeigen.

(a) The Executive is obliged to inform the Company about any incapacity to perform
his services and its expected duration immediately.

(b) Im Falle von Krankheit oder unfallbedingter Dienstunfähigkeit leistet die
Gesellschaft während der ersten sechs Wochen der Arbeitsunfähigkeit
Entgeltfortzahlung entsprechend der gesetzlichen Vorschriften. Im Anschluss an
den sechswöchigen Entgeltfortzahlungszeitraum zahlt die Gesellschaft an den
Geschäftsführer bis zum Ablauf des 12. Monats nach Beginn der
Arbeitsunfähigkeit - längstens jedoch bis zur Beendigung des Dienstverhältnisses
- die Differenz zwischen den von der Krankenkasse erbrachten Leistungen und
seiner sich aus Ziffer 6 (a) ergebenden monatlichen Nettofestbezüge. Dauert die
Arbeitsunfähigkeit länger als sechs Monate an, so vermindert sich der Bonus nach
Ziffer 6 (b) pro rata temporis um die gesamte Dauer der Arbeitsunfähigkeit.

(b) In case of sickness or incapacity to perform his services due to an accident, the
Company continues to pay the remuneration according to statutory provisions
during the first six weeks. Following the six weeks period, the Company shall
pay to the Executive until the end of the 12th month of incapacity, but in no event
longer than until the termination of this Agreement, the difference between the
benefits provided for by the health insurance and his monthly net fixed salary
according to Section 6 (a). In case the incapacity should last longer than 6
months, the bonus according to Sec 6 (b) will be reduced pro rata temporis by the
total duration of incapacity.

(c) Der Geschäftsführer hat etwaige Schadensersatzansprüche gegen Dritte, die aus
dem die Arbeitsunfähigkeit verursachenden Ereignis herrühren, in Höhe der
weiter gezahlten Bezüge an die Gesellschaft abzutreten.

(c) The Managing Director will assign to the Company any damage claims against
third parties resulting from occurence which caused the incapacity up to the
amount of the continued remuneration.

10. D&O Versicherung. Die Gesellschaft wird den Geschäftsführer in eine
angemessene D&O Versicherung einbeziehen, die entweder bei der Hillenbrand
Inc; oder einer ihrer Tochtergesellschaften besteht.

10. D&O Insurance. The Managing Director will be included in an appropriate D&O
Insurance provided for either by Hillenbrand, Inc., or one of its subsidiaries.

11. Unfallversicherung, Haftpflichtversicherung. Die Gesellschaft schließt für den
Geschäftsführer zusätzlich zur gesetzlichen Unfallversicherung eine private
Unfallversicherung mit 24-Stunden-Deckung nach den geltenden CoperionRichtlinien ab.

11. Accident Insurance, Third Liability Insurance. In addition to the statutory
accident insurance the Company will maintain for the Managing Director a
private accident insurance with 24 hours coverage according to the applicable
Coperion guidelines.

Die Versicherungssummen betragen zur Zeit im Todesfall EUR 110.000 und im
Invaliditätsfall EUR 500.000 (bei Vollinvalidität). Außerdem gibt es eine mit dem
Versicherer vereinbarte zusätzliche Mehrleistung bei einem festgestellten
Invaliditätsgrad von mindestens 70 % in Höhe von derzeit EUR 200.000. Es
gelten die Formulierungen der jeweils geltenden Versicherungspolice.

The amounts insured are currently EUR 100,000 in case of death and EUR
500,000 in case of disability (upon full disability). In addition, as agreed upon
with the insurer, there will be an additional benefit in case of a certified disability
of at least 70 % in the amount of EUR 200,000 for the time being. The wording
of the insurance policies, as applicable, apply.

Im Rahmen der Industrie-Haftpflichtversicherung der Gesellschaft besteht für den
Geschäftsführer eine kostenlose private Haftpflichtversicherung mit einer
Deckungssumme von EUR 10 Mio je Schadensereignis.

The Managing Director will be provided with a private third party liability
insurance with a coverage of EUR 10 mio. per case of damage at no costs within
the Company’s industry third-party liability insurance.

Diese Versicherungen sind freiwillige Sozialleistungen der Gesellschaft. Die
Gesellschaft behält sich das Recht vor, diese Vereinbarungen bei Vorliegen eines
sachlichen Grundes jederzeit mit einer dreimonatigen Ankündigungsfrist zum
Monatsende zu widerrufen oder zu ändern. Der Widerruf kann insbesondere aus
wirtschaftlichen Gründen erfolgen, wenn der Versicherer seine Bedingungen
ändert oder die Versicherungsleistung verteuert wird.

These insurances are voluntary social benefits of the Company. The Company
reserves the right to withdraw or change these insurances with three months
notice in case of an objective reason. The withdrawal may, in particular, be
executed for economic reasons in case the insurer changes its terms and
conditions or increases the premiums for the insurance coverage.

12. Beschränkungen und Verteidigung und Haftungsfreistellung. Der Geschäftsführer
erklärt und gewährleistet gegenüber der Gesellschaft, dass der Geschäftsführer
keine Partei einer Wettberwerbsverbots-

oder anderen Vereinbarung mit einem früheren Arbeitgeber oder einer anderen
Partei ist, die in irgendeiner Weise das Recht des Geschäftsführers als
Arbeitnehmer oder in anderer Funktion beschränkt, von einer Person oder einem
Unternehmen angestellt zu werden oder diese zu beraten oder Dienstleistungen
für diese zu erbringen. Der Geschäftsführer erklärt und gewährleistet ferner, dass
der Geschäftsführer keine der Öffentlichkeit nicht zugänglichen, vertraulichen
Informationen eines oder bezüglich eines Geschäfts oder Unternehmens
(abgesehen von der Gesellschaft oder deren verbundenen Unternehmen) besitzt.
Der Geschäftsführer vereinbart, die Gesellschaft in Bezug auf etwaige Verluste
oder Kosten, die die Gesellschaft oder eines ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen
infolge der Unrichtigkeit oder Verletzung einer der Erklärungen,
Gewährleistungen oder Vereinbarungen seitens des Geschäftsführers in diesem
Abschnitt 12 oder einer Verletzung von Verpflichtungen nach Beendigung des
Anstellungsverhältnisses gegenüber einem früheren Arbeitgeber erleidet oder die
der Gesellschaft oder einem ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen diesbezüglich
entstehen, zu verteidigen und von der Haftung freizustellen.

12. Restrictions and Defense and Indemnification. Executive represents and warrants
to the Company that Executive is not a party to or bound by any noncompetition
or other agreement, with

any former employer or otherwise, that limits or restricts in any manner
Executive’s right, as an employee or in any other capacity, to be employed by or
provide advice or services to, any person or entity. Executive further represents
and warrants that Executive does not have or possess any non-public,
confidential information of or relating to any business or enterprise (other than
the Company or its affiliated companies). Executive agrees to defend and
indemnify the Company from and against any loss or expense suffered or
incurred by the Company or any of its affiliated companies as a result of an
inaccuracy or breach of any of Executive’s representations, warranties or
agreements made in this Section 12, or any breach by Executive of any postemployment obligations to any prior employer.

13. Laufzeit, ordentliche Kündigung. Dieser Vertrag wird auf unbestimmte Zeit
geschlossen. Jede Partei kann diesen Vertrag durch schriftliche Kündigung unter
Einhaltung einer Kündigungsfrist von 12 Monaten zum Ende eines
Kalendermonats kündigen, jedoch frühestens zum 31. Dezember 2014. Die
Kündigung bedarf der Schriftform.

13. Term, Termination Without Cause. This Agreement is agreed upon for an
indefinite term. Either Party may terminate this Agreement by written notice of
termination by observing a notice period of 12 months effective to the end of a
calendar month, but not with effect to a prior date than December 31, 2014.
Notice of termination has to be in written form.

14. Kündigung aus wichtigem Grunde. Das Anstellungsverhältnis des
Geschäftsführers kann von der Gesellschaft jederzeit und ohne Einhaltung einer
Kündigungsfrist “aus wichtigem Grunde” durch schriftliche Kündigung an den
Geschäftsführer, in der das Datum der Kündigung und die Umstände, die den
“Grund” für diese Kündigung darstellen, genannt werden, gekündigt werden. Für
die Zwecke dieses Vertrages hat die Gesellschaft “Grund” zur Kündigung des
Anstellungsverhältnisses des Geschäftsführer, wenn der Geschäftsführer:

14. Termination With Cause. Executive’s employment may be terminated by the
Company at any time and without observing any notice period with “Cause” for
doing so upon written notice of termination to Executive specifying the date of
termination and the factual circumstances constituting “Cause” for such
termination. For purposes of this Agreement, the Company will have “Cause” to
terminate Executive’s employment if Executive has:

(a) Bei der Wahrnehmung der Pflichten und Verantwortlichkeiten des
Geschäftsführers grob fahrlässig oder unter vorsätzlicher Pflichtverletzung
gehandelt hat oder sich geweigert hat, die rechtmäßigen Weisungen der
Gesellschaft oder die Bedingungen dieses Vertrages zu befolgen oder
einzuhalten, sofern diese Weigerung nicht primär auf der gutgläubigen
Einhaltung geltender gesetzlicher oder ethischer Normen seitens des
Geschäftsführers beruht; oder

(a) Acted with gross neglect or willful misconduct in the discharge of
Executive’s duties and responsibilities or refused to follow or comply with
the lawful direction of the Company or the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, provided such refusal is not based primarily on Executive’s
good faith compliance with applicable legal or ethical standards; or

(b) Verhaltensweisen geduldet oder sich an Verhaltensweisen beteiligt hat, die
unehrlich, betrügerisch, rechtswidrig (auf Ebene einer Straftat), unethisch,
moralisch verwerflich oder in anderer Hinsicht unrechtmäßig sind und ein
Verhalten beinhalten, das die Gesellschaft, die mit der Gesellschaft
verbundenen Unternehmen oder ihre bzw. deren Geschäftsführer oder
Verwaltungsratsmitglieder in Verlegenheit bringen oder der Lächerlichkeit
preisgeben könnte; oder

(b) Acquiesced or participated in any conduct that is dishonest, fraudulent,
illegal (at the felony level), unethical, involves moral turpitude or is
otherwise illegal and involves conduct that has the potential, in the
Company’s reasonable opinion, to cause the Company, its affiliated
companies, or its or their officers or its directors embarrassment or ridicule;
or

(c) gegen eine wesentliche Vorgabe einer Richtlinie der Gesellschaft oder eines
Verfahrens oder einer Richtlinie eines verbundenen Unternehmens, die für
den Geschäftsführer gilt, verstoßen hat; oder

(c) Violated a material requirement of any Company policy or procedure or
policy or procedure of an affiliated company that applies to Executive; or

(d) ohne ordnungsgemäße Genehmigung Geschäftsgeheimnisse oder andere
vertrauliche Informationen der Gesellschaft oder eines ihrer verbundenen
Unternehmen weitergegeben hat; oder

(d) Disclosed without proper authorization any trade secrets or other
confidential information of the Company or any of its affiliated companies;
or

(e) eine Handlung vorgenommen hat, die nach begründeter Auffassung der
Gesellschaft deren besten Interessen zuwiderläuft oder eine mögliche ziviloder strafrechtliche Haftung der Gesellschaft, die mit der Gesellschaft
verbundenen Unternehmen oder ihrer bzw. deren Geschäftsführer oder
Verwaltungsratsmitglieder bewirken könnte, unter dem Vorbehalt, dass
derartige Handlungen keinen Grund für eine Kündigung aus wichtigem
Grunde darstellen, wenn der Geschäftsführer gutgläubig unter Einhaltung
geltender gesetzlicher oder ethischer Normen handelte.

(e) Engaged in any act that, in the reasonable opinion of the Company, is
contrary to its best interests or would hold the Company, its affiliated
companies, or its or their officers or directors up to probable civil or criminal
liability, provided that, if Executive acts in good faith in compliance with
applicable legal or ethical standards, such actions shall not be grounds for
termination for Cause.

Bei Kündigung des Anstellungsverhältnisses des Geschäftsführers aus wichtigem
Grunde hat der Geschäftsführer nur Anspruch auf die Vergütung,
Nebenleistungen und Vergünstigungen, die bis zum Datum des Wirksamwerdens
der Kündigung gezahlt oder erworben wurden. Soweit eine Verletzung im Sinne
dieses Abschnitts von dem Geschäftsführer unverzüglich beseitigt werden kann
(oder innerhalb einer angemessenen Frist zur Zufriedenheit der Gesellschaft
beseitigt werden kann), vereinbart die Gesellschaft, dem Geschäftsführer
angemessen Gelegenheit zur Beseitigung dieser Verletzung zu

Upon the termination of Executive’s employment for Cause, Executive shall only
be entitled to such compensation, benefits, and perquisites that have been paid or
accrued as of the effective date of termination. To the extent any violation
according to this Section is capable of being promptly cured by Executive (or
cured within a reasonable period to the Company’s satisfaction), the Company
agrees to provide Executive with a reasonable opportunity to so cure such defect.
Absent written mutual agreement otherwise, the Parties agree in advance that it is
not possible for Executive to cure any violations according to sub-

geben. Für den Fall, dass keine andere schriftliche Vereinbarung getroffen wird,
vereinbaren die Partei im Voraus, dass der Geschäftsführer keine Verletzungen
gemäß Unterabschnitten (b) bis (d) beseitigen kann und ihm daher in diesen
Fällen keine Gelegenheit zur Beseitigung derselben gegeben werden muss.

section (b) or (d) and, therefore, no opportunity for cure need be provided in
those circumstances.

15. Freistellung. Nach einer Kündigung gemäß vorstehendem Abschnitt 13 ist die
Gesellschaft, unabhängig davon, welche Seite die Kündigung ausgesprochen hat,
jederzeit berechtigt, den Geschäftsführer bis zum Ende dieses Vertrages von
seinen Arbeitspflichten zu entbinden (“Freistellung”). Während der Freistellung
ist der Geschäftsführer weiterhin an alle anderen in diesem Vertrag vorgesehenen
Verpflichtungen gebunden und bezieht sein Grundgehalt zuzüglich 50 % jeglicher
Vergütung gemäß dem STIC-Programm für die jeweilige Dauer der Freistellung.
Die Freistellungszeit wird mit ausstehenden Urlaubsansprüchen verrechnet.

15. Garden Leave. Following a notice of termination according to Section 13 above,
irrespective from which side, the Company is at any time entitled to release
Executive from his duties to perform his work until this Agreement terminates
(“Garden Leave”). During the Garden Leave Executive is still bound to all other
obligations stipulated in this Agreement and will be paid his Base Salary plus 50
% of any STIC remuneration attributable to the period. The Garden Leave will be
set off against open vacation claims.

16. Beendigung infolge Tod oder Arbeitsunfähigkeit. Falls der Geschäftsführer
während der Laufzeit dieses Vertrages verstirbt oder arbeitsunfähig wird, endet
dieser Vertrag automatisch am Datum des Todes oder dieser Arbeitsunfähigkeit.
Für die Zwecke dieses Vertrages wird unterstellt, dass der Geschäftsführer
“arbeitsunfähig” ist, wenn die Gesellschaft feststellt oder wenn der
Geschäftsführer einräumt, dass der Geschäftsführer die wesentlichen Aufgaben
der Position des Geschäftsführers infolge einer körperlichen oder mentalen
Beeinträchtigung nicht wahrnehmen kann

16. Termination Due to Death or Disability. In the event Executive dies or suffers a
disability (as defined below) during the term of employment, this Agreement shall
automatically be terminated on the date of such death or on account of such
disability. For purposes of this Agreement, Executive shall be considered to have
suffered a “disability” upon a determination by the Company, or an admission by
Executive, that Executive cannot perform the essential functions of Executive’s
position as a result of physical or mental incapacity and the occurrence of one or

und wenn einer oder mehrere der folgenden Umstände eintreten:

more of the following events:

(a) Der Geschäftsführer hat Anspruch auf oder erhält Leistungen im Rahmen
einer Arbeitsunfähigkeitsversicherung, da gemäß dieser Versicherung
festgestellt wird, dass der Geschäftsführer dauerhaft arbeitsunfähig ist;

(a) Executive becomes eligible for or receives any benefits pursuant to any
disability insurance policy as a result of a determination under such policy
that Executive is permanently disabled;

(b) Der Geschäftsführer hat Anspruch auf oder erhält Leistungen wegen
Erwerbsunfähigkeit von einer öffentlichen Sozialversicherung; oder

(b) Executive becomes eligible for or receives any disability benefits from the
public Social Security Insurance; or

(c) Die Gesellschaft entscheidet gutgläubig, dass der Geschäftsführer aufgrund
einer körperlichen oder mentalen Behinderung nicht in der Lage ist und
wahrscheinlich dauerhaft nicht in der Lage sein wird, die wesentlichen
Aufgaben und Verantwortlichkeiten des Geschäftsführers im Rahmen dieses
Vertrages auf Vollzeitbasis mit oder ohne behindertengerechte
Arbeitsplatzgestaltung wahrzunehmen.

(c) a good faith determination by the Company that Executive is and will likely
remain unable to perform the essential functions of Executive’s duties or
responsibilities hereunder on a full-time basis, with or without reasonable
accommodation, as a result of any mental or physical impairment.

Im Falle der Beendigung des Anstellungsverhältnisses des Geschäftsführers
aufgrund von Arbeitsunfähigkeit hat der Geschäftsführer nur Anspruch auf die
Vergütung, Nebenleistungen und Vergünstigungen, die mit Wirkung bis zum
Datum der Beendigung Kündigung gezahlt oder erworben wurden.

In the event of the termination of Executive’s employment on account of
disability, Executive shall be entitled only to such compensation, benefits and
perquisites as shall have been paid or accrued as of the date of such termination.

Im Falle der Beendigung dieses Vertrages durch Tod des Geschäftsführers zahlt
die Gesellschaft das Grundgehalt gemäß Abschnitt 6 (a) an die
unterhaltsberechtigten Hinterbliebenen des Geschäftsführers als Gesamtgläubiger
bis zum Ablauf von 6 Monaten nach dem Sterbemonat.

In case of a termination of this Agreement due to death of the Executive, the
Company continues to pay the base salary according to Section 6 (a) to the
surviving dependents entitled to maintenance as joint credit ors until the expiry of
6 months following the month of death.

17. Vertrauliche Informationen. Eigentum der Gesellschaft. Der Geschäftsführer
bestätigt, dass der Geschäftsführer aufgrund seiner Anstellung durch die
Gesellschaft und/oder eines ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen Zugang zu
vertraulichen Informationen von Hillenbrand, Inc., der Gesellschaft und aller
ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen hat oder haben wird, u. a. einschließlich
Informationen und Kenntnisse in Bezug auf Geschäftsstrategien, finanzielle
Ergebnisse, Produkte, Erfindungen, Entdeckungen,
Verbesserungen, Innovationen, Konzeptionen, Ideen, Geschäftsgeheimnisse,
proprietäre Informationen, Herstellung, Verpackung, Werbung, Vertrieb und
Verkaufsmethoden, Kunden- und Klientenlisten sowie Beziehungen zwischen der
Gesellschaft und ihren jeweiligen Händlern, Vertriebspartnern,
Außendienstmitarbeitern, Großhändlern, Kunden, Klienten, Lieferanten und
anderen, die geschäftliche Beziehungen mit diesen unterhalten (“vertrauliche
Informationen”). Der Geschäftsführer bestätigt ferner, dass diese vertraulichen
Informationen ein wertvolles und einzigartiges Gut der Gesellschaft und ihrer
verbundenen Unternehmen darstellen. Der Geschäftsführer verspricht, dass der
Geschäftsführer sowohl während und jederzeit nach seiner Anstellung durch die
Gesellschaft oder eines ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen ohne die vorherige
schriftliche Genehmigung der Gesellschaft keine dieser vertraulichen
Informationen an irgendeine Person oder irgendein Unternehmen weitergeben
wird oder jegliche dieser vertraulichen Informationen zum Vorteil des
Geschäftsführers oder einer anderen Person oder eines anderen Unternehmens
nutzen wird (außer, in beiden Fällen, soweit die

17. Confidential Information; Company Property. Executive acknowledges that, by
reason of Executive’s employment by the Company and/or any of its affiliated
companies, Executive has had and/or will have access to confidential information
of Hillenbrand, Inc., the Company and all their affiliated companies, including,
without limitation, information and knowledge pertaining to business strategies,
financial performance, products, inventions, discoveries, improvements,
innovations, designs, ideas, trade secrets, proprietary information, manufacturing,
packaging, advertising, distribution and sales methods, customer and client lists,
and relationships among and between the Company and its affiliated companies
and their respective dealers, distributors, sales representatives, wholesalers,
customers, clients, suppliers and others who have business dealings with them
(“Confidential Information”). Executive also acknowledges that such
Confidential Information is a valuable and unique asset of the Company and its
affiliated companies. Executive promises that, both during and at all times after
the period during which Executive is employed by the Company or any of its
affiliated companies, Executive will not disclose any such Confidential
Information to any person or entity or use any such Confidential Information for
the benefit of Executive or any other person or entity (except in either case as
Executive’s duties as an employee of the Company may require) without the
prior written authorization of the Company. In this regard, and in order to comply
with Executive’s obligations regarding the non-use and non-disclosure of
Confidential

Pflichten des Geschäftsführers als Angestellter der Gesellschaft dies ggf.
erfordern). Der Geschäftsführer verspricht diesbezüglich und zwecks Einhaltung
der Pflichten des Geschäftsführers bezüglich der Nichtnutzung und
Nichtweitergabe von vertraulichen Informationen, dass der Geschäftsführer in
keiner Funktion Beratung oder Dienstleistungen für irgendeine Person oder
irgendein Unternehmen erbringen wird, falls die im Besitz des Geschäftsführers
befindlichen vertraulichen Informationen im Wettbewerb mit der Gesellschaft
oder einem ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen oder in anderer Hinsicht für diese
Person oder dieses Unternehmen nützlich oder von Vorteil wären. Die
Bestimmungen in diesem Abschnitt und diesem Vertrag in Bezug auf
“vertrauliche Informationen” sollen ergänzend und zusätzlich zu und nicht
anstelle oder unter Einschränkung von Schutzbestimmungen und Rechtsbehelfen
bezüglich Missbrauch oder widerrechtlicher Aneignung, die nach geltendem
Recht für die Geschäftsgeheimnisse der Gesellschaft und ihrer verbundenen
Unternehmen zur Verfügung stehen, gelten.

Information, Executive promises that Executive will not provide advice or
services to any person or entity, in any capacity whatsoever, if the Confidential
Information possessed by Executive would be useful or of benefit to such person
or entity in competing against the Company or any of its affiliated entities or
otherwise. The provisions in this Section and this Agreement regarding
“Confidential Information” are intended to be supplemental and in addition to,
and are not intended to be in lieu or in any way a limitation of, the protections
afforded by, and remedies for misuse or misappropriation available under,
applicable law regarding the trade secrets of the Company and its affiliated
companies.

Der Geschäftsführer darf, außer bei der Wahrnehmung seiner Aufgaben oder mit
Genehmigung der Gesellschaft, Eigentum oder Informationen der Gesellschaft
oder ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen nicht aus den Räumlichkeiten der
Gesellschaft entnehmen. Der Geschäftsführer hat innerhalb von sieben (7) Tagen
nach Beendigung des Anstellungsverhältnisses des Geschäftsführers aus
jeglichem Grunde sämtliches Eigentum und sämtliche Informationen der
Gesellschaft oder ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen zurückzugeben. Auf Wunsch
der Gesellschaft hat der Geschäftsführer schriftlich zu bestätigen, dass alle
Kopien

Executive shall not remove any property or information of Company or its
affiliated companies from the Company’s premises, except in discharge of
Executive’s duties or when otherwise authorized by the Company. Executive
shall return all of the Company’s or its affiliated companies’ property and
information within seven (7) days following the cessation of Executive’s
employment for any reason. Upon request by the Company, Executive shall
certify in writing that all copies of information subject to this Agreement located
on Executive’s computers or other electronic storage

von Informationen, die diesem Vertrag unterliegen, von den Computern und
anderen elektronischen Speichergeräten des Geschäftsführers dauerhaft gelöscht
wurden; unter dem Vorbehalt, dass der Geschäftsführer Kopien der Personalakte
und Unterlagen in Bezug auf Personalvorsorgepläne und Versicherungspläne, die
für den Geschäftsführer gelten sowie Gehaltsnachweise, soweit diese für die
Erstellung der persönlichen Einkommenssteuererklärung des Geschäftsführers
erforderlich sind, aufbewahren darf.

devices have been permanently deleted; provided, that Executive may retain
copies of Executive’s personnel file and documents relating to employee benefit
programs or insurance plans applicable to Executive and income records to the
extent necessary for Executive to prepare individual tax returns.

18. Wettbewerbsverbot. Der Geschäftsführer verspricht, dass der Geschäftsführer
während der Dauer seiner Anstellung bei der Gesellschaft oder einem ihrer
verbundenen Unternehmen und während eines Zeitraums von 12 Monaten danach
außer in seiner Funktion als Angestellter der Gesellschaft oder eines ihrer
verbundenen Unternehmen oder mit der vorherigen schriftlichen Genehmigung
der Gesellschaft weder direkt noch indirekt ein Geschäft oder Unternehmen, das
(a) im Bereich des Entwurfs, der Konstruktion, der Herstellung, der
Vermarktung, des Verkaufs oder des Vertriebs von Produkten oder
Dienstleistungen tätig ist, die mit jeglichen Produkten, die von der Gesellschaft
oder einem ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen innerhalb des Jahres vor der
Beendigung des Anstellungsverhältnisses des Geschäftsführers entworfen,
konstruiert, hergestellt, vermarktet, verkauft oder vertrieben wurden oder deren
Entwurf, Konstruktion, Herstellung, Vermarktung, Verkauf oder Vertrieb die
Gesellschaft oder eines ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen zum Zeitpunkt der

18. Non-Competition. Executive promises that, during the period that Executive is
employed by the Company or any of its affiliated companies and for a time period
of 12 months thereafter, Executive will not, unless acting as an employee of the
Company or any of its affiliated companies or with the prior written consent of
the Company, directly or indirectly, own, manage, operate, finance, join, control
or participate in the ownership, management, operation, financing or control of,
or be connected in a competitive capacity as an officer, director, employee,
partner, principal, agent, representative, consultant or otherwise with, or use or
permit Executive’s name to be used in connection with, any business or enterprise
that (a) is engaged in the business of designing, engineering, manufacturing,
marketing, selling or distributing any products or services that compete with, or
are a functional equivalent of or alternative for, any of the products or services
designed, engineered, manufactured, marketed, sold or distributed by the
Company or any of its affiliated companies within the

Beendigung des Anstellungsverhältnisses im Sinne hat, konkurrieren oder
funktional gleichwertig sind oder eine Alternative zu diesen darstellen
(“Konkurrenzprodukte”), und (b) innerhalb Deutschlands oder eines anderen
Landes, in dem die Gesellschaft oder eines ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen,
einschließlich Coperion Group, eine dieser Tätigkeiten ausübt oder auszuüben im
Begriff ist, eine derartige Tätigkeit ausübt, besitzen, leiten, betreiben, finanzieren,
in ein solches eintreten oder dieses beherrschen wird oder sich an dem Eigentum,
der Leitung, dem Betrieb, der Finanzierung oder der Beherrschung desselben
beteiligen wird oder in einer konkurrierenden Funktion als leitender Angesteller,
Verwaltungsratsmitglied, Mitarbeiter, Partner, Erfüllungsgehilfe, Vertreter,
Berater oder in anderer Eigenschaft mit einem solchen verbunden sein wird oder
den Namen des Geschäftsführers in Verbindung mit einem solchen nutzen wird
oder dessen Nutzung gestatten wird.

year prior to the termination of Executive’s employment or that the Company or
any of its affiliated companies are about to so do at the time of such termination
of employment (the “Competing Products”), and (b) is engaged in any such
activities within Germany or any other country in which the Company or any of
its affiliated companies including Coperion Group engages in or is about to
engage in any of such activities.

Angesichts des nachvertraglichen Wettbewerbsverbots erhält der Geschäftsführer
eine monatliche Entschädigung in Höhe von (i) 50% seines letzten Grundgehalts
zum Zeitpunkt der Beendigung dieses Vertrages zuzüglich (ii) 50 % des im Jahr
der Beendigung des Vertrages gültigen Zielbonus gemäß dem STIC Program
zuzüglich (iii) dem geldwerten Vorteil des dem Geschäftsführer zur Verfügung
gestellten Dienstwagens, abzüglich jeglicher anderen Einkünfte gleich welcher
Art, die der Geschäftsführer während dieses Zeitraums verdient. Auf Anfrage hat
der Geschäftsführer jegliche anderen Einkünfte offen zu legen. Für jede
Zuwiderhandlung gegen das Wettbewerbsverbot hat der Geschäftsführer eine
Vertragsstrafe in

In consideration of the post contractual non-compete covenant Executive shall
receive a monthly compensation equivalent to 50 % of the following: (i) his last
monthly base salary at the time of the termination, plus (ii) his targeted STIC
remuneration at the time of termination, plus (iii) the value of his car allowance
(as described above) at the time of termination; less any other income whatsoever
earned by Executive during that time. Upon request, Executive shall disclose any
other income. For each case of a breach of the non-compete obligation, Executive
shall pay to the Company a contractual penalty in the amount of two times (2x)
his last monthly base salary. In case of a continuing breach, a new breach shall be
deemed to occur at the beginning of each

Höhe des Zweifachen (2-fachen) seines letzten monatlichen Grundgehalts an die
Gesellschaft zu zahlen. Im Falle einer fortlaufenden Zuwiderhandlung wird
unterstellt, dass bei Beginn jedes Kalendermonats eine neue Zuwiderhandlung
eingetreten ist. Die Gesellschaft behält sich das Recht vor, zusätzlichen
Schadenersatz geltend zu machen.

calendar month. The Company reserves the right to claim additional damages.

Die Gesellschaft kann jederzeit vor der Kündigung dieses Vertrages einseitig auf
ihre Rechte verzichten und den Geschäftsführer von den Bestimmung der
Wettbewerbsverbotsklausel freistellen, in welchem Falle die Gesellschaft nach
einer Frist von sechs (6) Monaten nach Abgabe der Verzichtserklärung von der
Zahlung der Entschädigung entbunden ist.

At any time before the termination of this Agreement the Company may
unilaterally waive its rights and release Executive from the provisions of the noncompete clause in which event the Company shall be released from paying
compensation after a period of six (6) months following the date the waiver has
been declared.

Soweit nicht anders bestimmt gilt § 74 Handelsgesetzbuch (HGB).

As far as not otherwise provided, Section 74 et seqq. of the German Commercial
Code (Handelsgesetzbuch - HGB) shall apply.

19. Abwerbeverbot. Der Geschäftsführer verspricht, dass der Geschäftsführer
während der Dauer seiner Anstellung bei der Gesellschaft oder einem ihrer
verbundenen Unternehmen und während eines Zeitraums von vierundzwanzig
(24) Monaten danach außer in seiner Funktion als Angestellter der Gesellschaft
oder eines ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen oder mit der vorherigen schriftlichen
Genehmigung der Gesellschaft weder (a) direkt noch indirekt für irgendwelche
Zwecke, die den Entwurf, die Konstruktion, die Herstellung, die Vermarktung,
den Verkauf oder den Vertrieb von Konkurrenzprodukten betreffen, jegliche
Personen, Firmen, Unternehmen oder andere Organisationen aufsuchen oder

19. No Solicitation. Executive promises that, during the period that Executive is
employed by the Company or any of its affiliated companies and for twenty-four
(24) months thereafter, Executive will not, unless acting as an employee of the
Company or any of its affiliated companies or with the prior written consent of
the Company, (i) call on or solicit, either directly or indirectly, for any purposes
involving the designing, engineering, manufacturing, marketing, selling,
purchasing or distributing of any Competing Products, any person, firm,
corporation or other entity who or which is or had been, at the time of or within
two years prior to the termination of Executive’s employment by the

abwerben wird, die zum Zeitpunkt oder innerhalb von zwei Jahren vor der
Kündigung des Anstellungsverhältnisses des Geschäftsführers durch die
Gesellschaft Kunden der Gesellschaft oder eines ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen
sind oder waren oder (ii) wissentlich Personen, die Angestellte der Gesellschaft
oder eines ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen sind oder innerhalb der sechs Monate
vor der Kündigung des Anstellungsverhältnisses des Geschäftsführers waren,
zum Zwecke der Anstellung oder anderweitig für die Durchführung von Beratung
und Dienstleistungen abwerben wird.

Company, a customer of the Company or any of its affiliated companies, or
(ii) knowingly solicit for employment, or otherwise for the providing of advice or
services, any person who is an employee of the Company or any of its affiliated
companies or who was such an employee within six months prior to Executive’s
termination of employment.

20. Fortdauernde Wirkung der restriktiven Bestimmungen. Die Wirksamkeit der
Verpflichtungen des Geschäftsführers gemäß Abschnitten 17, 18 und 19
überdauert die Kündigung dieses Vertrages und die Kündigung des
Anstellungsverhältnisses des Geschäftsführers aus jeglichem Grunde, u. a.
einschließlich einer ordentlichen Kündigung dieses Anstellungsverhältnisses
durch die Gesellschaft. Ein Verstoß gegen vertragliche, gesetzliche oder andere
Pflichten der Gesellschaft gegenüber dem Geschäftsführer führt weder dazu, dass
der Geschäftsführer von der Einhaltung seiner Verpflichtungen im Rahmen dieser
Abschnitte entbunden wird oder dass diese aufgehoben werden noch ergibt sich
daraus eine Einrede gegen eine Unterlassungs- oder andere Verfügung oder der
Ausschluss der Beantragung derselben durch die Gesellschaft im Falle eines
Verstoßes oder drohenden Verstoßes gegen diese Verpflichtungen seitens des
Geschäftsführer.

20. Survival of Restrictive Covenants. The obligations of Executive under Sections
17, 18 and 19 shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the termination
of Executive’s employment for any reason, including without limitation a
termination of such employment by the Company without Cause. A breach by the
Company of any contractual, statutory or other obligation to Executive shall not
excuse compliance with or terminate Executive’s obligations under those
Sections or otherwise provide a defense to or preclude the Company from
seeking injunctive or other relief in the event of a breach or threatened breach of
those obligations by Executive.

21. Durchsetzung/Unterlassungsverfügung. Der Geschäftsführer und die Gesellschaft
stimmen überein, dass die Ermittlung des Schadens für die Gesellschaft oder eines
ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen infolge eines Verstoßes gegen die
Bestimmungen der Abschnitte 17, 18 und 19 schwierig wäre, dass der mögliche
Schaden jedoch groß, nicht kalkulierbar und irreparabel wäre und dass
finanzieller Schadenersatz allein eine inadäquate Abhilfemaßnahme darstellen
würde. Daher willigt der Geschäftsführer ein, dass die Gesellschaft berechtigt ist,
bei jedem zuständigen Gericht eine unmittelbare Unterlassungsverfügung gegen
diese Zuwiderhandlung zu beantragen, und der Geschäftsführer verzichtet auf das
Recht, in einem von der Gesellschaft oder einem ihrer verbundenen Unternehmen
angestrengten Verfahren zur Durchsetzung dieses Vertrages als Gegenvorbringen
oder in anderer Weise geltend zu machen, dass der Gesellschaft oder einem ihrer
verbundenen Unternehmen ein geeignetes Rechtsmittel zur Verfügung stehe oder
dass dieser durch einen Verstoß oder drohenden Verstoß gegen eine dieser
Bestimmungen durch den Geschäftsführer kein irreparabler Schaden zugefügt
worden sei oder zugefügt würde. Bei den vorstehend beschriebenen Rechtsmitteln
handelt es sich nicht um die ausschließlichen Rechtsmittel, und die Gesellschaft
kann jegliche weiteren Rechtsmittel einlegen, die ihr laut Gesetz oder
Billigkeitsrecht zur Verfügung stehen, wie beispielsweise gesetzliche
Rechtsmittel bezüglich widerrechtlicher Aneignung von Geschäftsgeheimnissen,
und einschließlich der Beitreibung von Schadenersatz. Bei jeglichen Klagen, die
zur Durchsetzung der Bestimmungen der Abschnitte 17, 17 und 17 angestrengt
werden, hat die obsiegende Partei zusätzlich zu jeglichen anderen ihr
zugesprochenen Beträgen Anspruch auf

21. Enforcement/Injunctive Relief. Executive and the Company stipulate and agree
that it would be difficult to measure any damages to the Company or any of its
affiliated companies resulting from a breach of any of the provisions of Sections
17, 18 and 19, but that the potential for damages in such event would be great,
incalculable and irremediable, and that monetary damages alone would be an
inadequate remedy. Accordingly, Executive agrees that the Company shall be
entitled to immediate injunctive relief against such breach, or threatened breach,
in any court having jurisdiction, and Executive waives the right in any proceeding
to enforce this Agreement by the Company or any of its affiliated companies to
assert as a matter of defense or otherwise that the Company or any of its affiliated
companies has an adequate remedy at law or has not been or will not be
irreparably harmed by a breach or threatened breach by Executive of any of such
provisions. The remedies described above shall not be the exclusive remedies,
and the Company may seek any other remedy available to it either in law or in
equity, including, by way of example only, statutory remedies for
misappropriation of trade secrets, and including the recovery of compensatory
damages. The prevailing Party, in addition to any other award in its favor, shall
be entitled to recover its attorneys’ fees and other costs of litigation from the nonprevailing Party in any action brought to enforce the provisions of Sections 17, 17
or 19.

Erstattung ihrer Rechtsverteidigungskosten und anderen Prozesskosten durch die
unterliegende Partei.
22. Angemessenheit und gerichtliche Änderungen der Beschränkungen. Der
Geschäftsführer bestätigt und stimmt zu, dass die Bedingungen der
Beschränkungen, die dem Geschäftsführer in Abschnitten 17, 18 und 18
auferlegt werden, gerecht und angemessen sind, ihrem Geltungsbereich nach
nicht unverhältnismäßig sind, angemessenerweise notwendig sind, um das
Eigentum und die anderen Interessen der Gesellschaft und der verbundenen
Unternehmen zu schützen und den Geschäftsführer nicht daran hindern, im Falle
der Beendigung des Anstellungsverhältnisses des Geschäftsführers bei der
Gesellschaft eine andere geeignete Stelle anzutreten. Wenn jedoch ein
zuständiges Gericht entscheidet, dass der Geltungsbereich jeglicher in
Abschnitten 17, 18 und 19 enthaltenen Bestimmungen zu weitgefasst ist, um die
vollständige Durchsetzung dieser Bestimmungen zu erlauben, sind diese
Bestimmungen trotzdem in dem nach geltendem Recht maximal zulässigen
Umfang durchzusetzen, und die Gesellschaft und der Geschäftsführer beantragen
hiermit beide bei einem solchen Gericht, dass in einem Verfahren zur
Durchsetzung dieser Bestimmung eine entsprechende gerichtliche Änderung
dieser Bestimmung vorgenommen wird und stimmen beide einer solchen
gerichtlichen Änderung zu.

22. Reasonableness and Judicial Modification of Restrictions. Executive
acknowledges and agrees that the terms of the restrictions on Executive in
Sections 17, 18 and 19 are fair and reasonable, are not unreasonably broad in
scope, are reasonably necessary to protect the property and other interests of the
Company and the affiliated companies, and will not prevent Executive from
obtaining other suitable employment in the event Executive’s employment with
the Company terminates. Nevertheless, if the scope of any provision contained in
Sections 17, 18 and 19 is deemed by any court having jurisdiction to be too broad
to permit enforcement of such provision to its fullest extent, then such provision
shall nevertheless be enforced to the maximum extent permitted by applicable
law, and the Company and Executive each hereby request any such court to
judicially modify any such provision accordingly, and each consent to such
judicial modification, in any proceeding brought to enforce such provision.

23. Börsengehandelte Aktien. Durch die Bestimmungen in Abschnitt 18 wird dem
Geschäftsführer nicht untersagt, maximal

23. Publicly Traded Stock. The provisions of Section 18 shall not prohibit Executive
from owning not more than

ein Prozent (1 %) der umlaufenden Aktien oder anderen
Unternehmenswertpapiere eines Unternehmens, die an einer nationalen
Wertpapierbörse oder einem nationalen Marktsystem gehandelt werden oder
notiert sind, zu besitzen.

one percent (1%) of the outstanding stock or other corporate security of a
company that is traded or quoted on a national securities exchange or national
market system.

24. Rechtswahl, Vertragssprache. Dieser Vertrag ist nach deutschem Recht
auszulegen und durchzusetzen. Die maßgebliche und rechtlich bindende Sprache
ist deutsch.

24. Choice of Law; Contractual Language. This Agreement shall be interpreted,
construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of Germany. The relevant and
legally binding language is German.

25. Salvatorische Klausel. Die Parteien vereinbaren, dass sämtliche Abschnitte,
Sätze, Klauseln, Bedingungen und Bestimmungen dieses Vertrages trennbar sind
und dass, falls ein Teil dieses Vertrages für unwirksam oder nicht durchsetzbar
befunden wird, die übrigen Bestimmungen desselben wirksam bleiben und im
vollen gesetzlich zulässigen Umfang durchzusetzen sind.

25. Severability. The Parties agree that each and every paragraph, sentence, clause,
term and provision of this Agreement is severable and that, in the event any
portion of this Agreement is adjudged to be invalid or unenforceable, the
remaining portions thereof shall remain in effect and be enforced to the fullest
extent permitted by law.

26. Änderungen und Verzichtserklärungen. Außer soweit in diesem Vertrag
ausdrücklich bestimmt bedürfen Änderungen, Erweiterungen oder
Verzichtserklärungen bezüglich dieses Vertrages oder einer Bestimmung
desselben, einschließlich dieses Abschnitts 26, der Schriftform. Ein Verzicht der
Gesellschaft oder des Geschäftsführers auf Anspruch wegen Verletzung einer
Bestimmung dieses Vertrages ist nicht als ein Verzicht auf Anspruch wegen
einer nachfolgenden Verletzung auszulegen.

26. Amendments and Waivers. Except as specifically provided herein, any
modification, amendment, extension or waiver of this Agreement or any provision
hereof, including this Section 26, must be in writing. A waiver by the Company or
Executive of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as
a waiver of any subsequent breach.

27. Für den Geschäftsführer geltende Leitfäden, Richtlinien etc. Unbeschadet der
Bestimmungen dieses Vertrages haben die Gesellschaft und ihre verbundenen
Unternehmen das Recht, bei Veranlassung jegliche Mitarbeiterleitfäden, richtlinien oder —verfahren, die für Mitarbeiter allgemein (einschließlich des
Geschäftsführer) gelten, festzulegen, abzuwandeln oder zu ändern und deren
Wirksamkeit aufrechtzuerhalten, und eine derartige Festlegung, Abwandlung
oder Änderung ist uneingeschränkt wirksam, ohne als Änderung oder
Abwandlung dieses Vertrages zu gelten.

27. Executive Manuals, Policies, Etc. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to
the contrary, the Company and its affiliated companies shall have the right from
time to time to adopt, modify or amend and maintain in full force and effect any
employee manuals, policies or procedures applicable to employees generally
(including Executive) and any such adoption, modification or amendment shall be
in force and effect without it being considered an amendment or modification of
this Agreement.

28. Durchsetzung durch verbundene Unternehmen. Die verbundenen Unternehmen
der Gesellschaft sollen im Hinblick auf die Abschnitte 20 — 29, jeweils
einschließlich, Drittbegünstigte sein, soweit für sie relevant, und diese Abschnitte
erstrecken sich auf diese verbundenen Unternehmen und sind durch diese im
eigenen Namen oder durch die Gesellschaft in deren Namen durchsetzbar.

28. Enforcement by Affiliated Companies. The affiliated companies of the Company
are intended to be third party beneficiaries with respect to the provisions of
Sections 20-29, both inclusive, to the extent relevant to them, and such Sections
shall extend to and may be enforced by any of such affiliated companies in their
own names or by the Company on their behalf.

29. Ersetzung vorhergehender Bedingungen. Mit Wirkung vom Datum des
Inkrafttretens ersetzt dieser Vertrag den vorherigen Anstellungsvertrag, der
hiermit einvernehmlich aufgehoben wird, und der Geschäftsführer bestätigt, dass
sämtliche Ansprüche im Rahmen des vorherigen Anstellungsvertrages
ordnungsgemäß erfüllt wurden. Dasselbe gilt für mündliche oder schriftliche
Mitteilungen (einschließlich, falls anwendbar und soweit im Widerspruch
stehend, eines Angebots der Gesellschaft oder eines verbundenen Unternehmens)
bezüglich der Bedingungen des Anstellungsverhältnisses des Geschäftsführers
und anderer Sachverhalte, die in diesem Vertrag

29. Previous Terms Superseded. As of the Effective Date, this Agreement replaces the
Prior Employment Agreement which hereby is mutually cancelled and the
Executive confirms that all and any claims under the Prior Employment
Agreement have duly been fulfilled. The same applies to oral or written
communications (including, if applicable and to the extent in conflict, an offer
letter with the Company or an affiliated company) regarding the terms of
employment of Executive, and other matters, addressed in this Agreement.
Notwithstanding that statement, the Company and Executive will or may enter
into other written agreements from

behandelt werden. Unbeschadet dieser Erklärung werden oder können die
Gesellschaft und der Geschäftsführer bei Veranlassung weitere schriftliche
Vereinbarungen über verschiedene Angelegenheiten in Verbindung mit der
Anstellung des Geschäftsführers bei der Gesellschaft abschließen.

time to time concerning various matters pertaining to Executive’s employment by
the Company.

Angesichts des Umstands, dass der Geschäftsführer seit dem 01. Januar 2008 bei
Coperion Capital GmbH beschäftigt ist, gilt für die Zwecke der Berechnung der
Betriebszugehörigkeit der 01. Januar 2008 als das Beginn des
Anstellungsverhältnisses mit der Gesellschaft.

Given the fact that Executive has been employed with Coperion Capital GmbH
since January 1, 2008, the date of the beginning of employment with the Company
for purposes of applicable length of service calculations is January 1, 2008.

ZU URKUND DESSEN die Parteien diesen Vertrag am eingangs genannten Datum
mit Wirkung vom Datum des Inkrafttretens unterzeichnet haben.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have signed this Agreement as of the day and
year first above written, to be effective as of the Effective Date.

COPERION CAPITAL GMBH

HILLENBRAND GERMANY HOLDING GMBH

By:

By:

/S/ Joe Raver

/S/ Cynthia Lucchese

Hillenbrand Germany Holding GmbH

Hillenbrand Switzerland GmbH

Name: Joe Raver

Name: Cynthia Lucchese

Title: Geschäftsführer

Title: Authorized Person

(for the purpose of mutual
termination of Prior Employment
Agreement)
EXECUTIVE

/S/ Thomas Kehl
Thomas Kehl

ATTACHMENT 1

ANLAGE 1

a.

Entry into, or conclusion, amendment or termination of agreements between
the Company and a shareholder;

a.

Abschluss, Abänderung oder Beendigung von Verträgen zwischen der
Gesellschaft und einem Gesellschafter;

b.

Granting of statutorily defined signature authority (Prokura,
Handlungsvollmacht)

b.

Bestellung von Prokuristen und Handlungsbevollmächtigten;

c.

Acquisition, encumbrance and sale of real property;

c.

Erwerb, Belastung und Verkauf von Grundstücken;

d.

Entry into, or conclusion, amendment or termination of any contract with
close family members;

d.

Abschluss, Abänderung oder Beendigung von Verträgen mit nahen
Familienangehörigen;

e.

Granting of loans or credit, with the exception of granting normal payment
terms to customers in the usual course of business of the Company;

e.

Gewährung von Darlehen oder Krediten, mit Ausnahme der Einräumung von
gewöhnlichen Zahlungszielen an Kunden im Rahmen des normalen
Geschäftsgangs der Gesellschaft;

f.

Acquisition or disposal from participations in other companies, and other
mergers, acquisitions, dispositions or business combinations;

f.

Erwerb oder Veräußerung von Beteiligungen an anderen Unternehmen oder
andere Zusammenschlüsse, Erwerbe, Veräußerungen oder Zusammenlegung
von Geschäftsbereichen

g.

Establishment and abandonment of branches;

g.

Einrichtung und Auflösung von Zweigniederlassungen;

h.

Sale of all or parts of Company’s business;

h.

Verkauf eines Teils oder des gesamten Geschäfts der Gesellschaft;

i.

Entry into of financing arrangements in excess of EUR 750,000;

i.

Abschluss von Finanzierungsverträgen oberhalb

von EUR 750.000
j.

Matters of litigation (including but not limited to settlement), other than
with respect to ordinary labor matters.

j.

Rechtsstreitigkeiten (einschließlich Vergleiche) außer normale
arbeitsgerichtliche Streitigkeiten.

Exhibit 10.49
KONTROLLWECHSEL-VERTRAG

CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT

Dieser Kontrollwechselvertrag (der „Vertrag”) wird am 29th August 2013 („Datum
des Inkrafttretens”) zwischen der Hillenbrand, Inc., einer Gesellschaft nach dem
Recht des US-Bundesstaates Indiana (die „Gesellschaft”), und Thomas Kehl (der
„Geschäftsführer”) geschlossen.

This Change in Control Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of the 29th day of
August, 2013 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Hillenbrand, Inc., an Indiana
corporation (the “Company”), and Thomas Kehl (the “Executive”).

WÄHREND es die Gesellschaft im besten Interesse der Aktionäre für wichtig
erachtet, konstante Anstellungsverhältnisse der wichtigsten Führungskräfte bei der
Gesellschaft und deren Tochtergesellschaften zu fördern;

WHEREAS, the Company considers it essential to the best interests of its
shareholders to foster continuous employment by the Company and its subsidiaries
of their key management personnel;

WÄHREND der Vergütungs- und Managemententwicklungsausschuss
(Compensation and Management Development Committee) (der „Ausschuss”) des
Board of Directors (das „Board”) der Gesellschaft empfohlen und das Board
genehmig hat, dass die Gesellschaft mit den Führungskräften der Gesellschaft und
ihrer Tochtergesellschaften, die von Zeit zu Zeit von der Unternehmensleitung
ernannt und vom Ausschuss genehmigt werden, einen Kontrollwechselvertrag
schließt; und

WHEREAS, the Compensation and Management Development Committee (the
“Committee”) of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company has
recommended, and the Board has approved, that the Company enter into Change in
Control Agreements with key executives of the Company and its subsidiaries who
are from time to time designated by the management of the Company and approved
by the Committee; and

WÄHREND der Ausschuss und das Board der Ansicht sind, dass der
Geschäftsführer wertvolle Beiträge zur Produktivität und Rentabilität der
Gesellschaft und deren Tochtergesellschaften geleistet hat und dass es im besten
Interesse der Gesellschaft und ihrer Anteilseigner liegt, den Geschäftsführer darin zu
bestärken, im Falle eines vorgesehenen Kontrollwechsels (gemäß unten stehender
Definition) im Unternehmen zu bleiben und das Board hinsichtlich des
Kontrollwechsels beraten zu können, ohne dass Bedenken aufkommen, der
Geschäftsführer könnte von den durch den vorgesehenen Kontrollwechsel
entstehenden persönlichen Risiken und Unsicherheiten über Gebühr irritiert sein;

WHEREAS, the Committee and the Board believe that Executive has made valuable
contributions to the productivity and profitability of the Company and its subsidiaries
and consider it essential to the best interests of the Company and its shareholders that
Executive be encouraged to remain with the Company in the event of any proposed
Change in Control (as defined below) and be in a position to provide assessment and
advice to the Board regarding any proposed Change in Control without concern that
Executive might be unduly distracted by the personal uncertainties and risks created
by any proposed Change in Control;
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vereinbaren die Gesellschaft und der Geschäftsführer Folgendes:

NOW, THEREFORE, the Company and Executive agree as follows:

1.

1.

Inkrafttreten.

Effectiveness.

Die Bestimmungen dieses Vertrages gelten ab dem Datum des Inkrafttretens.

The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall become effective commencing on
the Effective Date.

2.

2.

Beendigung nach einem Kontrollwechsel.

Termination following a Change in Control.

Hat ein Kontrollwechsel stattgefunden, so stellt die Gesellschaft dem Geschäftsführer
die in Artikel 3 unten beschriebenen Rechte und Leistungen zur Verfügung bzw.
sorgt dafür, falls das Anstellungsverhältnis zwischen dem Geschäftsführer und der
Gesellschaft und deren Tochtergesellschaften:

After the occurrence of a Change in Control, the Company will provide or cause to be
provided to Executive the rights and benefits described in Section 3 hereof in the
event that Executive’s employment with the Company and its subsidiaries is
terminated:

(a) seitens der Gesellschaft oder ihrer Tochtergesellschaften (oder deren
Rechtsnachfolger) vor Ablauf des zweiten Jahres nach dem Kontrollwechsel aus
anderen Gründen als Tod, Dauerinvalidität, Ruhestand des Geschäftsführers oder
aus wichtigem Grund (gemäß unten stehender Definition) beendet wurde; oder

(a) by the Company or its subsidiaries (or its or their successors) for any reason other
than on account of Executive’s death, permanent disability, retirement or for
Cause (as defined below) at any time prior to the second anniversary of a Change
in Control; or

(b) seitens des Geschäftsführers vor Ablauf des zweiten Jahres nach dem
Kontrollwechsel aus berechtigtem Grund (gemäß unten stehender Definition)
beendet wurde.

(b) by Executive for Good Reason (as defined below) at any time prior to the second
anniversary of a Change in Control.

Ungeachtet anders lautender Bestimmungen dieses Vertrages gilt dann, wenn ein
Kontrollwechsel stattfindet und das Anstellungsverhältnis des Geschäftsführers mit
der Gesellschaft von der Gesellschaft nicht aus wichtigem Grund oder vom
Geschäftsführer nicht aus berechtigtem Grund

Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, if a Change in Control
occurs and if the Executive’s employment with the Company is terminated by the
Company without Cause, or by Executive for Good Reason, prior to the date on
which the Change in Control occurs, and if it is
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vor dem Datum gekündigt wird, an dem der Kontrollwechsel erfolgt, und wenn vom
Geschäftsführer angemessen dargelegt wird, dass diese Beendigung des
Anstellungsverhältnisses (i) auf Ersuchen Dritter erfolgte, die Schritte unternommen
haben, welche nach vernünftigem Ermessen zu einem Kontrollwechsel führen
sollten, oder (ii) anderweitig in Verbindung mit oder Erwartung des anschließend
innerhalb von drei Monaten nach der Beendigung auftretenden Kontrollwechsels
stand, dieser Kontrollwechsel als an dem Tag eingetreten, der unmittelbar vor der
Beendigung dieses Anstellungsverhältnisses liegt; und alle Bezugnahmen in Artikel 3
auf Zahlungen innerhalb eines bestimmten gesetzlich zulässigen Zeitraums im
Anschluss an die „Beendigung” gelten stattdessen als Bezugnahmen auf den
Zeitraum nach dem Kontrollwechsel.

reasonably demonstrated by Executive that such termination of employment (i) was
at the request of a third party who has taken steps reasonably calculated to effect a
Change in Control or (ii) otherwise arose in connection with or anticipation of a
Change in Control which subsequently occurs within three months of such
termination, then for purposes of this Agreement a Change in Control shall be
deemed to have occurred on the day immediately prior to such termination of
employment, and all references in Section 3 to payments within a specified period as
allowed by law following “Termination” shall instead be references to the specified
period following the Change in Control.

Die in Artikel 3 unten beschriebenen Rechte und Leistungen gelten anstelle von
etwaigen Abfindungszahlungen einschließlich, aber nicht begrenzt auf Zahlungen
während einer Freistellungsphase, die ansonsten gemäß einem Anstellungsvertrag
oder Abfindungsplan der Gesellschaft und ihrer Tochtergesellschaften an den
Geschäftsführer zu zahlen wären, lassen aber die sonstigen Rechte des
Geschäftsführers auf Ausgleich und Leistungen gemäß den Mitarbeitervergütungsund Sonderleistungsprogrammen (Compensation and Benefit Programs) der
Gesellschaft, sofern hier nicht ausdrücklich anders vereinbart, unberührt.

The rights and benefits described in Section 3 hereof shall be in lieu of any severance
or similar payments, including but not limited to payments during a “garden leave”
otherwise payable to Executive under any employment agreement or severance plan
or program of the Company or any of its subsidiaries but shall not otherwise affect
Executive’s rights to compensation or benefits under the Company’s compensation
and benefit programs except to the extent expressly provided herein.

3.

3.

Rechte und Leistungen bei Beendigung

Im Falle einer Beendigung des Anstellungsverhältnisses des Geschäftsführers aus
einem der in Artikel 2 („Beendigung”)

Rights and Benefits Upon Termination.

In the event of the termination of Executive’s employment under any of the
circumstances set forth in Section 2 hereof (“Termination”),
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genannten Gründen, gewährt die Gesellschaft dem Geschäftsführer folgende Rechte
und Leistungen, vorausgesetzt der Geschäftsführer unterzeichnet innerhalb von 45
Tagen ab der Beendigung in angemessener Form eine Freigabeerklärung („Release”)
und übergibt diese der Gesellschaft:

the Company shall provide or cause to be provided to Executive the following rights
and benefits, provided that Executive executes and delivers to the Company within
45 days of the Termination a release (“Release”) in a form reasonably acceptable to
the Company:

(a) ein Pauschalbetrag in bar in Höhe von zwei Jahresgrundgehältern des
Geschäftsführers (gemäß unten stehender Definition), zahlbar (i) sechs Monate
nach dem Datum der Beendigung, wenn der Geschäftsführer ein „Specified
Employee” (bestimmter Mitarbeiter) gemäß Artikel 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) des
amerikanischen Einkommensteuergesetzes von 1986 in der geänderten Fassung
(„Gesetz”) (Artikel 409A des Gesetzes nachfolgend „Artikel 409A” genannt),
und den darin veröffentlichten Steuerrichtlinien (in dem für Artikel 409A
erforderlichen Umfang) ist, oder (ii) mit der nächsten regulären
Gehaltsabrechnung entweder - je nachdem was früher eintritt - fünfzehn (15)
Tage nach Eingang der unterschriebenen Freigabeerklärung bei der Gesellschaft
oder dem Ablauf von sechzig (60) Tagen nach der Kündigung des
Geschäftsführers, wenn dieser Geschäftsführer kein „Specified Employee” ist
(oder eine solche Zahlung von Artikel 409A ausgenommen ist); dies setzt
allerdings voraus, dass, wenn der zuvor genannte Zeitraum von sechzig (60)
Tagen in einem Kalenderjahr endet, das auf das Kalenderjahr folgt, in welchem
der Zeitraum von sechzig (60) Tagen begann, alle nicht unter Absatz (i) fallenden
Leistungen erst mit der nächsten regulären Gehaltsabrechnung nach Ablauf des
Zeitraums von sechzig (60) Tagen ab der Kündigung des Geschäftsführers
ausgezahlt werden;

(a) a lump sum payment in cash in the amount of two times Executive’s Annual Base
Salary (as defined below), payable (i) on the date which is six months following
Termination, if the Executive is a “specified employee” as defined in Code
Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(“Code”) (Section 409A of the Code is hereunder referred to as “Section 409A”),
and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder (to the extent required in
order to comply with Section 409A); or (ii) on the next regularly scheduled
payroll following the earlier to occur of fifteen (15) days from the Company’s
receipt of an executed Release or the expiration of sixty (60) days after
Executive’s Termination, if Executive is not such a “specified employee” (or
such payment is exempt from Section 409A); provided, however, that if the
before-stated sixty (60) day period ends in a calendar year following the calendar
year in which the sixty (60) day period commenced, then any benefits not subject
to clause (i) shall only begin on the next regularly scheduled payroll following the
expiration of sixty (60) days after the Executive’s Termination;

(b) reserviert;

(b) Reserved;

(c) sofern zutreffend, die Fortsetzung des

(c) continuation for Executive, if applicable,
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Lebensversicherungs-Bonusprogramms (Executive Life Insurance Bonus
Program) und des Gruppenlebensversicherungs-Programms (Group Term Life
Insurance Program) für den Geschäftsführer, das dem Geschäftsführer von der
Gesellschaft unmittelbar vor dem Kontrollwechsel zur Verfügung gestellt wurde,
über einen Zeitraum von zwei Jahren nach der Beendigung. Die Zahlung von
Leistungen im Todesfall gemäß diesem Unterabschnitt (c) sind in
Übereinstimmung mit dem entsprechenden Programm zu leisten, vorausgesetzt
allerdings, dass, wenn die Leistung im Todesfall dem Artikel 409A unterliegt, die
Leistung im Todesfall nach freiem Ermessen der Gesellschaft nicht später zu
zahlen ist als entweder (i) am letzten Tag des Kalenderjahres, in dem der Tod des
Geschäftsführers eintrat oder (ii) am 90. Tag nach dem Tod des Geschäftsführers,
je nachdem, was später eintritt;

for a period of two years following Termination, of the Executive Life Insurance
Bonus Program (if any) provided for Executive by the Company immediately
prior to the Change in Control and the group term life insurance program
provided for Executive immediately prior to the Change in Control. The payment
of any claim for death benefits provided under this subparagraph (c) shall be paid
in accordance with the appropriate program, provided, however that if the death
benefit is subject to Section 409A, then the death benefit shall be paid, as
determined by the Company in its complete and absolute discretion, no later than
the later to occur of (i) the last day of the calendar year in which the death of the
Executive occurs or (ii) the 90th day following the Executive’s death;

(d) ein Pauschalbetrag in bar, zahlbar innerhalb von 30 Tagen nach der Beendigung
in Höhe aller erstattungsfähigen Geschäftsausgaben und ähnlicher verschiedener
Leistungen zum Beendigungstermin; allerdings vorausgesetzt, dass diese
verschiedenen Leistungen, in dem Umfang, in dem sie Artikel 409A unterliegen,
als ein Pauschalbetrag zu zahlen sind (i) zum Datum sechs Monate nach dem
Datum der Beendigung, wenn der Geschäftsführer ein „Specified Employee”
(bestimmter Mitarbeiter) gemäß Artikel 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) des Gesetzes ist, oder
(ii) mit der nächsten regulären Gehaltsabrechnung entweder - je nachdem was
früher eintritt - fünfzehn (15) Tage nach Eingang der unterschriebenen
Freigabeerklärung bei der Gesellschaft oder dem Ablauf von sechzig (60) Tagen
nach der Kündigung des Geschäftsführers, wenn dieser

(d) a lump sum payment in cash, payable within 30 days after Termination, equal to
all reimbursable business expenses and similar miscellaneous benefits as of the
Termination; provided, however, that to the extent that any such miscellaneous
benefits are subject to Section 409A, such benefits shall be paid in one lump sum
(i) on the date which is six months following Termination, if the Executive is a
“specified employee” as defined in Code Section 409A(a)(2)(b)(i) or (ii) on the
next regularly scheduled payroll following the earlier to occur of fifteen (15) days
from the Company’s receipt of an executed Release or the expiration of sixty (60)
days after Executive’s Termination, if Executive is not such a “specified
employee”; provided, however, that if the before-stated sixty (60) day period
ends in a calendar year following the calendar year in which the
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Geschäftsführer kein „Specified Employee” ist; dies setzt allerdings voraus, dass,
wenn der zuvor genannte Zeitraum von sechzig (60) Tagen in einem Kalenderjahr
endet, das auf das Kalenderjahr folgt, in welchem der Zeitraum von sechzig (60)
Tagen begann, alle nicht unter Absatz (i) fallenden Leistungen erst mit der
nächsten regulären Gehaltsabrechnung nach Ablauf des Zeitraums von sechzig
(60) Tagen ab der Kündigung des Geschäftsführers ausgezahlt werden;

sixty (60) day period commenced, then any benefits not subject to clause (i) shall
only begin on the next regularly scheduled payroll following the expiration of
sixty (60) days after the Executive’s Termination;

(e) sofern zutreffend, ein Pauschalbetrag in bar in Höhe der in den letzten 12
Monaten unmittelbar vor der Beendigung aus der beitragsorientierten Vergütung
(Defined Contribution), dem Matching Account und/oder dem Supplemental
Contribution Account aufgelaufenen Beträge mal zwei, (i) zum Datum sechs
Monate nach dem Datum der Beendigung, wenn der Geschäftsführer ein
„Specified Employee” (bestimmter Mitarbeiter) gemäß Artikel 409A(a)(2)(B)
(i) des Gesetzes ist oder (ii) mit der nächsten regulären Gehaltsabrechnung
entweder - je nachdem was früher eintritt - fünfzehn (15) Tage nach Eingang der
unterschriebenen Freigabe bei der Gesellschaft oder dem Ablauf von sechzig (60)
Tagen nach der Kündigung des Geschäftsführers, wenn dieser Geschäftsführer
kein „Specified Employee” ist (oder eine solche Zahlung von Artikel 409A
ausgenommen ist); dies setzt allerdings voraus, dass, wenn der zuvor genannte
Zeitraum von sechzig (60) Tagen in einem Kalenderjahr endet, das auf das
Kalenderjahr folgt, in welchem der Zeitraum von sechzig (60) Tagen begann, alle
nicht unter Absatz (i) fallenden Leistungen erst mit der nächsten regulären
Gehaltsabrechnung nach Ablauf des Zeitraums von sechzig (60) Tagen ab der
Kündigung des Geschäftsführers

(e) a lump sum payment in cash equal to the amounts accrued, if any, for the last 12
months times two immediately prior to the Termination in any of the Defined
Contribution, Matching Account and/or Supplemental Contribution Account,
payable (i) on the date which is six months following Termination, if the
Executive is a “specified employee” as defined in Code Section 409A(a)(2)(B)
(i) or (ii) on the next regularly scheduled payroll following the earlier to occur of
fifteen (15) days from the Company’s receipt of an executed Release or the
expiration of sixty (60) days after Executive’s Termination, if Executive is not
such a “specified employee” (or such payment is exempt from Section 409A);
provided, however, that if the before-stated sixty (60) day period ends in a
calendar year following the calendar year in which the sixty (60) day period
commenced, then any benefits not subject to clause (i) shall only begin on the
next regularly scheduled payroll following the expiration of sixty (60) days after
the Executive’s Termination;
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ausgezahlt werden;
(f) ein Pauschalbetrag in bar in Höhe des Betrags aus der kurzfristigen MitarbeiterIncentive-Vergütung (Short-Term Incentive Compensation), der dem
Geschäftsführer zu zahlen wäre, wenn die für das gesamte Jahr, in dem der
Kontrollwechsel erfolgte, gültigen entsprechenden Erfolgsziele in Bezug auf
diese Incentive-Vergütung zu 100 % erreicht wurden; und

(f) a lump sum payment in cash equal to the amount of Short-Term Incentive
Compensation which would be payable to Executive if the relevant performance
targets with respect to such incentive compensation in effect for the entire year in
which the Change in Control occurred were achieved at 100% of target; and

(g) die beschleunigte Ausübung aller Zuteilungen, die der Geschäftsführer im
Rahmen des Mitarbeiterbeteiligungsplans (Stock Incentive Plan) besitzt,
einschließlich (unten verwendete und groß geschriebene Begriffe, die nicht
anderweitig definiert wurden, haben die im Mitarbeiterbeteiligungsplan
verwendete Bedeutung):

(g) accelerated vesting of all awards held by Executive under the Company’s Stock
Incentive Plan, including the following (capitalized terms used below and not
otherwise defined shall have the meanings given to them in the Company’s Stock
Incentive Plan):

(i) sofortige Ausübbarkeit aller ausstehenden Zuteilungen von Gratisaktien
(BONUS STOCK);

(i) immediate vesting of all outstanding awards of BONUS STOCK;

(ii) sofortige Ausübbarkeit aller ausstehenden Aktienbezugsrechte (STOCK
OPTIONS);

(ii) immediate vesting of all outstanding STOCK OPTIONS;

(iii) sofortige Ausübbarkeit aller ausstehenden Zuteilungen von eingeschränkt
verwertbaren Aktien (RESTRICTED STOCK);

(iii) immediate vesting of all outstanding awards of RESTRICTED STOCK;

(iv) sofortige Ausübbarkeit aller ausstehenden Zuteilungen von Nachzugsaktien
(DEFERRED STOCK, auch RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS genannt), die an
den Geschäftsführer zu zahlen wären, wenn die maßgeblichen
Leistungsziele, sofern zutreffend, zu 100 % erreicht werden; und

(iv) immediate vesting of all outstanding awards of DEFERRED STOCK (also
known as Restricted Stock Units) which would be payable to Executive if the
relevant performance targets, where applicable, were achieved at 100% of target;
and

(v) sofortige Ausübbarkeit aller Wertsteigerungsrechte (STOCK
APPRECIATION

(v) immediate vesting of all STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS;
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RIGHTS);
unter der Maßgabe, dass der Geschäftsführer, falls der Kontrollwechsel mit einer
Fusion, Übernahme oder einer sonstigen betrieblichen Umstrukturierung einhergeht,
aus der die Gesellschaft nicht als übernehmende Gesellschaft hervorgeht (oder als
Tochtergesellschaft einer anderen Gesellschaft) (eine „Übernahme”), berechtigt ist,
statt der Anteile an Stammaktien der Gesellschaft wie oben beschrieben, eine
Gegenleistung zu erhalten, die vergleichbar mit dem ist, was der Geschäftsführer
erhalten hätte, wenn die Beendigung unmittelbar vor der Übernahme stattgefunden
hätte (und so die oben genannten Rechte und Leistungen realisiert worden wären);
und darüber hinaus unter der Maßgabe, dass die Gesellschaft auf jeden Fall berechtigt
ist, Bargeld durch Stammaktien der Gesellschaft zu ersetzen oder Gegenleistungen in
Höhe des fairen Marktwertes dieser Anteile oder andere von der Gesellschaft als
angemessen betrachtete Gegenleistungen zur Verfügung zu stellen.

provided, that if the Change in Control involves a merger, acquisition or other
corporate restructuring in which the Company is not the surviving entity (or survives
as a subsidiary of another entity) (an “Acquisition”), then, in lieu of any such shares
of common stock of the Company as described above, Executive shall be entitled to
receive consideration equal to that which Executive would have received had the
Termination occurred (and, thus, the rights and benefits set forth above been
realized) immediately prior to the Acquisition; and provided further, that the
Company shall in any case have the right to substitute cash for shares of common
stock of the Company or consideration in an amount equal to the fair market value of
such shares or consideration as reasonably determined by the Company.

Alle gemäß Absatz 3(f) oder (g) vorzunehmenden Ausschüttungen haben nicht später
als zweieinhalb Monate nach der Kündigung des Geschäftsführers zu erfolgen, es sei
denn dies ist für die Einhaltung der Bestimmungen von Artikel 409A erforderlich.

Any distribution to be made under Section 3(f) or (g) shall be made no later than two
and a half months following Executive’s Termination, except to the extent otherwise
required in order to comply with Section 409A.

4.

Anpassung der Zahlungen

4.

(a) Sollte eine Zahlung oder Leistung, die dem Geschäftsführer gemäß diesem
Vertrag oder anderweitig zusteht, einschließlich der beschleunigten Ausübung der
Mitarbeiterbeteiligungen (Equity Compensation) (alle diese Zahlungen und/oder
Leistungen werden nachfolgend „Zahlung” genannt), (i) im Sinne des Abschnitts
280G des Gesetzes eine Abgangsentschädigung („Parachute

Adjustments to Payments.

(a) If any payment or benefit Executive would receive pursuant to this Agreement or
otherwise, including accelerated vesting of any equity compensation (all such
payments and/or benefits hereinafter, “Payment”), would (i) constitute a
“parachute payment” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code, and
(ii) but for this sentence, be subject to the excise tax imposed by
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Payment”) darstellen und (ii); ohne diesen Satz; der durch Abschnitt 4999 des
Gesetzes erhobenen indirekten Steuer (die „indirekte Steuer”) unterliegen, dann
ist diese Zahlung entweder (x) dem Geschäftsführer in voller Höhe zu zahlen oder
(y) dem Geschäftsführer, um weitere USD 5.000 reduziert (einschließlich dieser
weiteren Reduzierung, dem „Kürzungsbetrag”), in einer entsprechend geringeren
Höhe zu leisten, damit kein Teil dieser Zahlung der indirekten Steuer unterliegt,
je nachdem, welcher der vorgenannten Beträge - unter Berücksichtigung der
maßgeblichen bundesweiten (USA), US-bundesstaatlichen, regionalen oder
ausländischen Einkommens- und Beschäftigungssteuern, dieser indirekten Steuer
und sonstigen geltenden Steuern (alle mit den höchsten anwendbaren
Grenzsteuersätzen berechnet) - dazu führt, dass der Geschäftsführer nach Steuern
den höchsten Betrag der Zahlung erhält, unabhängig davon, dass diese Zahlung
ganz oder teilweise der indirekten Steuer unterliegt. Sollte eine Reduzierung der
Zahlungen oder Leistungen, die eine Abgangsentschädigung darstellen,
notwendig sein, damit die Zahlung dem Kürzungsbetrag entspricht, erfolgt die
Reduzierung in folgender Reihenfolge: (A) Barzahlungen werden zuerst und in
umgekehrter chronologischer Reihenfolge reduziert, so dass die Barzahlung, die
zum neuesten Datum geschuldet wird, das auf dieses die indirekte Steuer
auslösende Ereignis folgt, die erste Barzahlung ist, die reduziert wird; (B) die
beschleunigte Ausübbarkeit (Accelerated Vesting) von leistungsorientierten
Optionszuteilungen wird gestrichen oder als nächstes und in umgekehrter
Reihenfolge ab dem Datum der Gewährung dieser Zuteilungen reduziert (d.h. die
Ausübung der zuletzt gewährten Zuteilungen werden zuerst reduziert), wobei die
in voller Höhe

Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax”), then such Payment shall be either
(x) provided to the Executive in full, or (y) provided to the Executive to such
lesser extent which would result in no portion of such Payment being subject to
the excise tax, further reduced by $5,000 (including such further reduction, the
“Cutback Amount”), whichever of the foregoing amounts, when taking into
account applicable federal, state, local and foreign income and employment
taxes, such excise tax and other applicable taxes, (all computed at the highest
applicable marginal rates), results in the receipt by the Executive, on an after-tax
basis, of the greatest amount of the Payment, notwithstanding that all or a portion
of such Payment may be subject to the excise tax. If a reduction in payments or
benefits constituting “parachute payments” is necessary so that the Payment
equals the Cutback Amount, reduction shall occur in the following order:
(A) cash payments shall be reduced first and in reverse chronological order such
that the cash payment owed on the latest date following the occurrence of the
event triggering such excise tax will be the first cash payment to be reduced;
(B) accelerated vesting of performance-based equity awards shall be cancelled or
reduced next and in the reverse order of the date of grant for such awards (i.e., the
vesting of the most recently granted awards will be reduced first), with full-value
awards reduced before any performance-based stock option or stock appreciation
rights are reduced; (C) health and welfare benefits shall be reduced and in reverse
chronological order such that the benefit owed on the latest date following the
occurrence of the event triggering such excise tax will be the first benefit to be
reduced; and (D)
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gewährten Zuteilungen reduziert werden bevor leistungsorientierte
Aktienoptionen (Stock Options) oder Wertsteigerungsrechte (Stock Appreciation
Rights) reduziert werden; (C) Gesundheits- und Sozialleistungen werden in
umgekehrter chronologischer Reihenfolge reduziert, so dass die Leistung, die
zum neuesten Datum geschuldet wird, das auf dieses die indirekte Steuer
auslösende Ereignis folgt, die erste Leistung ist, die reduziert wird; und (D) die
beschleunigte Ausübbarkeit (Accelerated Vesting) von zeitbezogenen
Optionszuteilungen wird gestrichen oder als letztes und in umgekehrter
Reihenfolge ab dem Datum der Gewährung dieser Zuteilungen reduziert (d.h. die
zuletzt gewährten Zuteilungen werden zuerst reduziert), wobei die in voller Höhe
gewährten Zuteilungen reduziert werden bevor zeitbezogene Optionszuteilungen
oder Wertsteigerungsrechte (Stock Appreciation Rights) reduziert werden.
(b) die Gesellschaft bestellt eine national anerkannte
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, um die gemäß diesem Vertrag erforderlichen
Entscheidungen zu treffen und die vorgenannten Berechnungen durchzuführen.
Die Gesellschaft trägt alle Kosten in Verbindung mit den hierfür erforderlichen
Entscheidungen dieser Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft. Die für diese
Entscheidungen in Anspruch genommene Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft stellt
der Gesellschaft und dem Geschäftsführer ihre Berechnungen zusammen mit
ausführlichen Belegunterlagen innerhalb von fünfzehn (15) Kalendertagen nach
dem Datum zur Verfügung, an dem das Recht auf eine Zahlung ausgelöst wird
(sofern zu diesem Zeitpunkt von der Gesellschaft oder dem

accelerated vesting of time-based equity awards shall be cancelled or reduced last
and in the reverse order of the date of grant for such awards (i.e., the vesting of
the most recently granted awards will be reduced first), with full-value awards
reduced before any time-based stock option or stock appreciation rights are
reduced.

(b) The Company shall appoint a nationally recognized accounting firm to make the
determinations required hereunder and perform the foregoing calculations. The
Company shall bear all expenses with respect to the determinations by such
accounting firm required to be made hereunder. The accounting firm engaged to
make the determinations hereunder shall provide its calculations, together with
detailed supporting documentation, to the Company and Executive within fifteen
(15) calendar days after the date on which right to a Payment is triggered (if
requested at that time by the Company or Executive). Any good faith
determinations of the accounting firm made hereunder shall be final, binding and
conclusive upon the Company and
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Geschäftsführer angefordert). Alle im Rahmen dieses Vertrages in gutem
Glauben von der Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft getroffenen Entscheidungen
sind für die Gesellschaft und den Geschäftsführer rechtskräftig, bindend und
endgültig.
5.

Anerkennung des Abschnitts 409A

Executive.

5.

Section 409A Acknowledgement.

Der Geschäftsführer bestätigt, dass er auf den Artikel 409A hingewiesen wurde, in
dem sich die Besteuerung von nicht steuerbegünstigten aufgeschobenen
Vergütungsplänen (Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plans) und Regelungen
erheblich geändert hat. In den vorgeschlagenen und endgültigen zum Datum dieses
Vertrages geltenden Bestimmungen wurde der Geschäftsführer darauf hingewiesen,
dass die Abfindungszahlungen und sonstigen Leistungen bei Beendigung von der
US-Steuerbehörde (Internal Revenue Service) entsprechend Artikel 409A als
„Nonqualified Deferred Compensation” behandelt werden können. In diesem Fall
können mehrere Bestimmungen des Abschnitts 409A Auswirkungen auf den Erhalt
der Abfindungszahlungen durch den Geschäftsführer, einschließlich des Zeitpunkts
dafür, haben. Diese umfassen insbesondere eine Bestimmung, der zufolge
Ausschüttungen an „bestimmte Mitarbeiter” (gemäß Definition in Artikel 409A) auf
Grund des Ausscheidens aus dem Dienst nicht vor Ablauf von sechs Monaten nach
dem Wirksamwerden des Ausscheidens erfolgen können. Gegebenenfalls kann die
Nichteinhaltung des Artikels 409A zur sofortigen Besteuerung dieser
aufgeschobenen Vergütungen mit Strafzinsen und einer 20 %igen indirekten Steuer
(Exise Tax) führen. Auf Grund der Vorgaben der American Jobs Creation Act von
2004 stimmt der Geschäftsführer zu, dass er, wenn er zum Zeitpunkt der Beendigung
als „bestimmter Mitarbeiter” gilt und wenn Abfindungszahlungen

Executive acknowledges that Executive has been advised of Section 409A, which
has significantly changed the taxation of nonqualified deferred compensation plans
and arrangements. Under proposed and final regulations as of the date of this
Agreement, Executive has been advised that Executive’s severance pay and other
Termination benefits may be treated by the Internal Revenue Service as
“nonqualified deferred compensation,” subject to Section 409A. In that event, several
provisions in Section 409A may affect Executive’s receipt of severance
compensation, including the timing thereof. These include, but are not limited to, a
provision which requires that distributions to “specified employees” (as defined in
Section 409A) on account of separation from service may not be made earlier than
six months after the effective date of separation. If applicable, failure to comply with
Section 409A can lead to immediate taxation of such deferrals, with interest
calculated at a penalty rate and a 20% excise tax. As a result of the requirements
imposed by the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, Executive agrees that if
Executive is a “specified employee” at the time of Executive’s termination and if
severance payments are covered as “nonqualified deferred compensation” or
otherwise not exempt, such severance pay (and other benefits to the extent
applicable) due Executive at time of termination shall not be paid until a date at least
six months after
11

als „Nonqualified Deferred Compensation” behandelt und auch anderweitig nicht von
der Steuerpflicht ausgenommen sind, diese Abfindungszahlung (und, soweit
zutreffend, andere Leistungen) wegen dem Zeitpunkt der Beendigung nicht vor
Ablauf von mindestens sechs Monaten nach dem Datum des Wirksamwerdens der
Beendigung gezahlt wird. Der Geschäftsführer bestätigt, dass sowohl er als auch die
Gesellschaft, unbeschadet anders lautender Bestimmungen dieses Vertrages,
unabhängig voneinander dafür verantwortlich sind, ihre eigenen Risiken und
Verbindlichkeiten gemäß Artikel 409A zu bewerten, die im Zusammenhang mit
Zahlungen gemäß diesem Vertrag erfolgen und für die Artikel 409A als anwendbar
erachtet werden könnte. Soweit zutreffend versteht und akzeptiert der
Geschäftsführer, dass er die Verantwortung für die Zahlung sämtlicher
entsprechender Einkommensteuern oder sonstiger steuerlicher Verpflichtungen trägt,
für die der Geschäftsführer verantwortlich ist und/oder die im Zusammenhang mit
dem Erhalt von Leistungen gemäß diesem Vertrag stehen. Der Geschäftsführer
verpflichtet sich, die Gesellschaft gegen alle Steuern, Strafen, Zinsen, oder
Anwaltskosten in vollem Umfang schadlos zu halten, die der Gesellschaft auf Grund
dieser dem Geschäftsführer gewährten Leistungen oder auf Grund mutmaßlicher
Nichtzurückbehaltung von Steuern oder der Befriedigung von geforderten
Verpflichtungen entstanden sind oder gegen sie erhoben werden. Der Geschäftsführer
versteht und akzeptiert, dass weder die Gesellschaft noch deren Mitarbeiter, Anwälte
oder sonstigen Vertreter den Geschäftsführer in rechtlichen oder finanziellen
Belangen im Hinblick auf Steuern oder sonstige Angelegenheiten beraten hat oder
beraten wird und dass sich der Geschäftsführer bei der Entscheidung, diesen Vertrag
einzugehen, nicht auf eine solche Beratung gestützt hat. Unbeschadet anders
lautender Bestimmungen dieses Vertrages

Executive’s effective termination date. Executive acknowledges that,
notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, both Executive and the
Company shall each be independently responsible for accessing their own risks and
liabilities under Section 409A that may be associated with any payment made under
the terms of this Agreement which may be deemed to trigger Section 409A. To the
extent applicable, Executive understands and agrees that Executive shall have the
responsibility for, and Executive agrees to pay, any and all appropriate income tax or
other tax obligations for which Executive is individually responsible and/or related to
receipt of any benefits provided in this Agreement. Executive agrees to fully
indemnify and hold the Company harmless for any taxes, penalties, interest, cost or
attorneys’ fee accessed against or incurred by the Company on account of such
benefits having been provided to Executive or based on any alleged failure to
withhold taxes or satisfy any claimed obligation. Executive understands and
acknowledges that neither the Company, nor any of its employees, attorneys or other
representatives, has provided or will provide Executive with any legal or financial
advice concerning taxes or any other matter, and that Executive has not relied on any
such advice in deciding whether to enter into this Agreement. Notwithstanding any
provision of this Agreement to the contrary, to the extent that any payment under the
terms of this Agreement would constitute an impermissible acceleration of payments
under Section 409A or any regulations or Treasury guidance promulgated thereunder,
such payments shall be made no earlier than at such times allowed under
Section 409A. If any provision of this Agreement (or of any award of compensation)
would cause Executive to incur any additional tax or interest under Section 409A or
any
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werden diese Zahlungen in dem Umfang, in dem sie nach diesem Vertrag eine
unzulässige Beschleunigung von Zahlungen nach Artikel 409A oder sonstiger dort
veröffentlichter Bestimmungen oder Richtlinien der Finanzbehörde darstellen
würden, nicht früher geleistet, als dies gemäß Artikel 409A gestattet wäre. Sollten
Bestimmungen diese Vertrages (oder einer Vergütungszuteilung) dazu führen, dass
dem Geschäftsführer nach Artikel 409A oder sonstiger dort veröffentlichter
Bestimmungen oder Richtlinien der Finanzbehörde zusätzliche Steuern oder Zinsen
entstehen, kann die Gesellschaft oder ihr Rechtsnachfolger diese Bestimmung neu
formulieren, vorausgesetzt, dass sie (i) soweit möglich, die ursprüngliche Absicht der
entsprechenden Bestimmung beibehält, ohne die Bestimmungen des Artikel 409A zu
verletzen und (ii) sie den Geschäftsführer bezüglich dieser Änderungen vor
Inkrafttreten dieser Änderungen kontaktiert und konsultiert.

regulations or Treasury guidance promulgated thereunder, the Company or its
successor may reform such provision; provided that it will (i) maintain, to the
maximum extent practicable, the original intent of the applicable provision without
violating the provisions of Section 409A and (ii) notify and consult with Executive
regarding such amendments or modifications prior to the effective date of any such
change.

6.

6.

Wettbewerbsverbot; Abwerbeverbot.

Non-Competition; Non-Solicitation.

Sofern der Geschäftsführer bei einer Beendigung Rechte und Leistungen aus Artikel
3 erhält, gilt für einen Zeitraum ab der Beendigung bis zum Ablauf von zwei Jahren
danach Folgendes:

In the event that upon a Termination, Executive receives any of the rights and
benefits described in Section 3 hereof, then during the period beginning on such
Termination and ending two years thereafter:

(a) Der Geschäftsführer ist nicht berechtigt, sofern er nicht als Angestellter der
Gesellschaft oder einer ihrer Konzerngesellschaften oder mit vorheriger
schriftlicher Zustimmung der Gesellschaft handelt, direkt oder indirekt, die
Inhaberschaft, die Leitung, den Betrieb, die Finanzierung oder Kontrolle in einem
Geschäft oder Unternehmen zu übernehmen oder daran in irgendeiner Art
beteiligt zu sein oder mit diesem als Führungskraft, Leiter, Mitarbeiter,

(a) Executive will not, unless acting as an employee of the Company or any of its
affiliated companies or with the prior written consent of the Company, directly or
indirectly, own, manage, operate, finance, join, control or participate in the
ownership, management, operation, financing or control of, or be connected in a
competitive capacity as an officer, director, employee, partner, principal, agent,
representative, consultant or otherwise with, or use or permit
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Partner, Direktor, Vertreter, Berater oder anderweitig verbunden zu sein oder
seinen Namen damit in Verbindung zu bringen oder bringen zu lassen, das
(i) innerhalb eines Jahres vor Beendigung Geschäfte im Bereich Konstruktion,
Entwicklung, Herstellung, Marketing, Verkauf oder Vertrieb von Produkten oder
Dienstleistungen betreibt, die mit einem der Produkte im Wettbewerb stehen oder
gleichwertig Funktionen oder Alternativen für Produkte oder Dienstleistungen
bieten, die von der Gesellschaft oder einer ihrer Konzerngesellschaften
konstruiert, entwickelt, hergestellt, vermarktet, verkauft oder vertrieben werden,
oder für die die Gesellschaft oder eine ihrer Konzerngesellschaften dieses zum
Zeitpunkt der Beendigung gerade vor hat (die „Konkurrenzprodukte”), und
(ii) die diese Aktivitäten innerhalb eines Bundesstaates der Vereinigten Staaten
oder des District of Columbia oder einem anderen Land betreibt, in dem die
Gesellschaft oder eine ihrer Konzerngesellschaften diese Aktivitäten betreibt oder
gerade dabei ist, dies zu tun; und
(b) Der Geschäftsführer ist nicht berechtigt, sofern er nicht als Angestellter der
Gesellschaft oder einer ihrer Konzerngesellschaften oder mit vorheriger
schriftlicher Zustimmung der Gesellschaft handelt, (i) direkt oder indirekt
Personen, Unternehmen oder sonstige juristische Personen, die im Zeitraum von
zwei Jahren vor der Beendigung Kunde der Gesellschaft oder einer ihrer
Konzerngesellschaften waren oder sind, zu besuchen oder dort für Zwecke zu
werben, die im Zusammenhang mit der Konstruktion, Entwicklung, Herstellung,
dem Marketing, Verkauf oder Vertrieb von Konkurrenzprodukten stehen, und er
darf nicht (ii) wissentlich bei Personen um

Executive’s name to be used in connection with, any business or enterprise that
(i) is engaged in the business of designing, engineering, manufacturing,
marketing, selling or distributing any products or services that compete with, or
are a functional equivalent of or alternative for, any of the products or services
designed, engineered, manufactured, marketed, sold or distributed by the
Company or any of its affiliated companies within the year prior to the
Termination or that the Company or any of its affiliated companies are about to
so do at the time of such Termination (the “Competing Products”), and (ii) is
engaged in any such activities within any state of the United States or the District
of Columbia or any other country in which the Company or any of its affiliated
companies engages in or is about to engage in any of such activities; and

(b) Executive will not, unless acting as an employee of the Company or any of its
affiliated companies or with the prior written consent of the Company, (i) call on
or solicit, either directly or indirectly, for any purposes involving the designing,
engineering, manufacturing, marketing, selling, purchasing or distributing of any
Competing Products, any person, firm, corporation or other entity who or which
is or had been, at the time of or within two years prior to the Termination, a
customer of the Company or any of its affiliated companies, or (ii) knowingly
solicit for employment, or otherwise for the providing of advice or services, any
person who is an employee
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ein Anstellungsverhältnis oder die Bereitstellung von Beratung oder
Dienstleistungen werben, die Angestellter der Gesellschaft oder einer ihrer
Konzerngesellschaften sind oder innerhalb eines Zeitraums von sechs Monaten
vor der Beendigung waren.

of the Company or any of its affiliated companies or who was such an employee
within six months prior to such Termination.

Die Bestimmungen des Abschnitts 6(a) dürfen den Geschäftsführer nicht daran
hindern, nicht mehr als ein Prozent (1 %) der ausstehenden Aktien oder sonstigen
Unternehmenspapiere eines Unternehmens zu besitzen, die an einer nationalen
Wertpapierbörse oder einem nationalen Marktsystem notiert sind oder gehandelt
werden.

The provisions of Section 6(a) shall not prohibit Executive from owning not more
than one percent (1%) of the outstanding stock or other corporate security of a
company that is traded or quoted on a national securities exchange or national market
system

7.

7.

Definitionen.

Definitions.

In diesem Vertrag haben folgende Begriffe folgende Bedeutungen:

As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

(a) „Jährliches Grundgehalt” bezeichnet das auf Jahr umgerechnete direkt vor dem
Kontrollwechsel oder direkt vor dem Beendigungstermin gültige Grundgehalt des
Geschäftsführers, je nachdem welches höher ist.

(a) “Annual Base Salary” means the annualized amount of Executive’s rate of base
salary in effect immediately before the Change in Control or immediately before
the date of Termination, whichever is greater.

(b) „Wichtiger Grund” hat die gleiche Bedeutung wie in jedem aktuellen
Arbeitsvertrag, den der Geschäftsführer mit der Gesellschaft oder einer ihrer
Tochtergesellschaften geschlossen hat.

(b) “Cause” shall have the same meaning set forth in any current employment
agreement that the Executive has with the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

(c) Ein „Kontrollwechsel” gilt als erfolgt:

(c) A “Change in Control” shall be deemed to occur on:

(i) zu dem Datum, an dem eine Person, Gesellschaft, Partnerschaft, ein
Verband, Trust, eine Vermögensmasse oder eine andere Gruppe, die im
Hinblick auf den Erwerb, den Besitz oder die Veräußerung von Wertpapieren
der Gesellschaft

(i) the date that any person, corporation, partnership, syndicate, trust, estate or
other group acting with a view to the acquisition, holding or disposition of
securities of the Company, becomes, directly or indirectly, the beneficial
owner,
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handelt, direkt oder indirekt entsprechend der Definition in der Verordnung
13d-3 der Securities Exchange Act von 1934 („wirtschaftlicher Eigentümer”)
wirtschaftlicher Eigentümer der Wertpapiere der Gesellschaft wird, die 35 %
oder mehr der Stimmrechte aller Wertpapiere der Gesellschaft ausmachen,
die unter normalen Umständen das Recht haben, an der Wahl des Board
teilzunehmen („stimmberechtigte Wertpapiere”), und zwar aus anderen
Gründen als (x) durch den Erwerb von Wertpapieren der Gesellschaft durch
die Gesellschaft oder ihre Tochtergesellschaften oder einen
Arbeitnehmervergünstigungsplan der Gesellschaft oder ihrer
Tochtergesellschaften oder (y) durch den Erwerb von Wertpapieren der
Gesellschaft direkt durch die Gesellschaft;
(ii) mit dem Vollzug einer Fusion oder einem Zusammenschluss der
Gesellschaft mit einem anderen Unternehmen, es sei denn

as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
(“Beneficial Owner”), of securities of the Company representing 35% or
more of the voting power of all securities of the Company having the right
under ordinary circumstances to vote at an election of the Board (“Voting
Securities”), other than by reason of (x) the acquisition of securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any employee benefit
plan of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or (y) the acquisition of
Company securities directly from the Company;

(ii) the consummation of a merger or consolidation of the Company with
another corporation unless

(A)
die Anteilseigner der Gesellschaft sind unmittelbar vor der Fusion
oder dem Zusammenschluss und unmittelbar nach der Fusion oder dem
Zusammenschluss die wirtschaftlichen Eigentümer der Anteile, die diese
Anteilseigner zu 50 % oder mehr der Stimmrechte aller Wertpapiere der
Gesellschaft berechtigen, die die Fusion oder dem Zusammenschluss
überdauern und die unter normalen Umständen das Recht haben, bei einer
Wahl der Direktoren im Wesentlichen im gleichen Verhältnis wie ihr
Anteilsbesitz unmittelbar vor der Fusion oder dem Zusammenschluss der
stimmberechtigten Wertpapiere

(A)
the shareholders of the Company, immediately prior to the merger
or consolidation, beneficially own, immediately after the merger or
consolidation, shares entitling such shareholders to 50% or more of the
voting power of all securities of the corporation surviving the merger or
consolidation having the right under ordinary circumstances to vote at an
election of directors in substantially the same proportions as their ownership,
immediately prior to such merger or consolidation, of Voting Securities of
the Company;
16

der Gesellschaft abzustimmen;
(B)
keine Person, Gesellschaft, Partnerschaft, kein Verband, Trust,
Vermögen und keine andere Gruppe ist, direkt oder indirekt, der
wirtschaftliche Eigentümer von 35 % oder mehr des Stimmrechts der
ausstehenden stimmberechtigten Wertpapiere der Gesellschaft aus der Fusion
oder dem Zusammenschluss, mit Ausnahme des Anteilsbesitzes, der vor der
Fusion oder dem Zusammenschluss bestand; und

(B)
no person, corporation, partnership, syndicate, trust, estate or other
group beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 35% or more of the voting
power of the outstanding voting securities of the corporation resulting from
such merger or consolidation except to the extent that such ownership existed
prior to such merger or consolidation; and

(C)
die Mitglieder des Board unmittelbar vor der Fusion oder dem
Zusammenschluss machen unmittelbar nach der Fusion oder dem
Zusammenschluss die Mehrheit des Board of Directors der Gesellschaft aus,
die Bargeld oder Wertpapiere in die Fusion ausgeben;

(C)
the members of the Company’s Board, immediately prior to the
merger or consolidation, constitute, immediately after the merger or
consolidation, a majority of the board of directors of the corporation issuing
cash or securities in the merger;

(iii) an dem Datum, an dem die Mehrheit der Mitglieder des Board aus anderen
Personen als den derzeitigen Direktoren (dieser Ausdruck bezeichnet alle
Mitglieder des Board zu diesem Datum und alle Mitglieder, deren
Nominierung oder Wahl von der Mehrheit der zu dem Zeitpunkt im Board
befindlichen derzeitigen Direktoren genehmigt wurde) besteht;

(iii) the date on which a majority of the members of the Board consist of persons
other than Current Directors (which term shall mean any member of the
Board on the date hereof and any member whose nomination or election has
been approved by a majority of Current Directors then on the Board);

(iv) mit dem Vollzug eines Verkaufs oder einer sonstigen Veräußerung aller oder
im Wesentlichen aller Vermögensgegenstände der Gesellschaft; oder

(iv) the consummation of a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of
the assets of the Company; or

(v) an dem Datum, an dem die Anteilseigner der Gesellschaft einen Plan für die
vollständige Auflösung der Gesellschaft genehmigen.

(v) the date of approval by the shareholders of the Company of a plan of
complete liquidation of the Company.
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(d) „Defined Contribution Accounts”, „Matching Accounts” und „Supplemental
Contribution Accounts” haben die im „ergänzenden Pensionsplan für
Führungskräfte” (SERP - Company’s Supplemental Executive Retirement
Program) definierten Bedeutungen.

(d) “Defined Contribution Accounts,” “Matching Accounts,” and “Supplemental
Contribution Accounts” shall have the meanings set forth in the Company’s
Supplemental Executive Retirement Program (“SERP”).

(e) Das „Lebensversicherungs-Bonusprogramm für Führungskräfte” (Executive Life
Insurance Bonus Program) bezeichnet ein Programm, bei dem die Gesellschaft
eine jährliche Prämie für eine Todesfallversicherung auf das Leben des
Geschäftsführers zahlt.

(e) “Executive Life Insurance Bonus Program” shall mean a program under which
the Company pays the annual premium for a whole life insurance policy on the
life of Executive.

(f) „Berechtigter Grund” bezeichnet eine wesentliche Einschränkung der Befugnisse,
Aufgaben und Verantwortlichkeiten des Geschäftsführers.

(f) “Good Reason” shall mean a material diminution in Executive’s authority, duties
or responsibilities.

(g) Die „kurzfristige Mitarbeiter-Incentive-Vergütung” (Short-Term Incentive
Compensation) bezeichnet die Incentive-Vergütung, die nach dem kurzfristigen
Mitarbeiter-Incentive-Vergütungsplan (Short-Term Incentive Compensation
Program) oder einem Nachfolge-Plan oder einem sonstigen kurzfristiger
Mitarbeiter-Incentive-Programm zahlbar ist.

(g) “Short-Term Incentive Compensation” means the Incentive Compensation
payable under the Short-Term Incentive Compensation Program, or any successor
or other short-term incentive plan or program.

8.

8.

Kündigung.

(a) Jede Entlassung und jede Beendigung des Arbeitsverhältnisses gemäß Artikel 2
erfolgt durch schriftliche Mitteilung an die jeweils andere Partei mit Angabe des
Datums für das Inkrafttreten der Entlassung oder der Beendigung (wobei das
Datum nicht später als 30 Tage nach Übergabe der Mitteilung liegen soll) und, im
Falle einer Entlassung aus wichtigem Grund oder einer Beendigung aus
berechtigtem Grund, mit Angabe der
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Gründe für die Entlassung oder Beendigung.

Notice.

(a) Any discharge or termination of Executive’s employment pursuant to Section 2
shall be communicated in a written notice to the other party hereto setting forth
the effective date of such discharge or termination (which date shall not be more
than 30 days after the date such notice is delivered) and, in the case of a discharge
for Cause or a termination for Good Reason the basis for such discharge or
termination.

(b) Im Rahmen dieses Vertrages haben die Mitteilungen und alle anderen in diesem
Vertrag vorgesehenen Nachrichten schriftlich zu erfolgen und gelten als
ordnungsgemäß übergeben, wenn sie von einem anerkannten internationalen
Kurierdienst oder mit der Post der Vereinigten Staaten per Einschreiben mit
Rückschein, Porto im Voraus bezahlt, geschickt wurden und (i) im Falle des
Geschäftsführers an die letzte bei der Gesellschaft registrierte Adresse oder (ii) im
Falle der Gesellschaft, an: One Batesville Boulevard, Batesville, Indiana 47006
gerichtet wird, unter der Maßgabe, dass alle Mitteilungen an die Gesellschaft zu
Händen des Board mit einer Kopie an den Vice President und den Leiter der
Rechtsabteilung oder an eine andere Adresse gerichtet werden, die eine der
Parteien der anderen in Übereinstimmung hiermit schriftlich mitgeteilt hat, wobei
die Mitteilung über eine Adressänderung nur nach deren Erhalt gültig ist.

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, notices and all other communications provided
for in this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly
given when delivered by recognized international courier or mailed by United
States certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid,
addressed (i) in the case of Executive, to the last address the Company has on file;
or (ii) in the case of the Company, to One Batesville Boulevard,
Batesville, Indiana 47006 provided that all notices to the Company shall be
directed to the attention of the Board with a copy to the Vice President and
General Counsel, or to such other address as either party may have furnished to
the other in writing in accordance herewith, except that notice of change of
address shall be effective only upon receipt.

9.

9.

Keine Pflicht zur Begrenzung.

No Duty to Mitigate.

Der Geschäftsführer ist nicht verpflichtet, eine andere Beschäftigung zu suchen oder
die Höhe der von der Gesellschaft gemäß diesem Vertrag zu leistenden Zahlungen zu
mindern.

Executive is not required to seek other employment or otherwise mitigate the amount
of any payments to be made by the Company pursuant to this Agreement.

10. Abtretung

10. Assignment.

(a) Dieser Vertrag ist persönlich an den Geschäftsführer gebunden und kann vom
Geschäftsführer nur durch ein Testament oder die gesetzliche Erbfolge übertragen
werden. Dieser Vertrag ist wirksam zugunsten der gesetzlichen Vertreter und

(a) This Agreement is personal to Executive and shall not be assignable by Executive
other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution. This Agreement shall
inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by Executive’s legal representatives.
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von diesen einklagbar.
(b) Dieser Vertrag ist wirksam gegenüber den Rechtsnachfolgern der Gesellschaft
und ist für diese verbindlich. Die Gesellschaft hat alle, direkten oder indirekten,
durch Kauf, Fusion, Zusammenschluss, Aktienerwerb oder anderweitig
hervorgegangenen Rechtsnachfolger der Geschäfte und/oder
Vermögensgegenstände der Gesellschaft zu verpflichten, diesen Vertrag zu
ausdrücklich zu übernehmen und ihn in der gleichen Weise und im gleichen
Umfang zu erfüllen, wie ihn die Gesellschaft zu erfüllen verpflichtet wäre, hätte
diese Rechtsnachfolge nicht stattgefunden.

(b) This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Company
and its successors. The Company shall require any successor to all or substantially
all of the business and/or assets of the Company, whether direct or indirect, by
purchase, merger, consolidation, acquisition of stock, or otherwise, to expressly
assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same
extent as the Company would be required to perform it if no such succession had
taken place.

11. Schiedsverfahren.

11. Arbitration.

Alle Streitigkeiten oder Auseinandersetzungen im Zusammenhang mit diesem
Vertrag sind ausschließlich durch Schiedsverfahren vor einem einzigen Schiedsmann
in Indianapolis/Indiana/USA gemäß der Schiedsordnung (Commercial Arbitration
Rules) des amerikanischen Schiedsgerichtsverbandes zu regeln. Der Schiedsspruch
ist für alle Vertragsparteien endgültig und bindend. Der Schiedsspruch kann als
Urteil bei jedem zuständigen Gericht eingetragen werden.

Any dispute or controversy arising under, related to or in connection with this
Agreement shall be settled exclusively by arbitration before a single arbitrator in
Indianapolis, Indiana, in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the
American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator’s award shall be final and binding
on all parties to this Agreement. Judgment may be entered on an arbitrator’s award in
any court having competent jurisdiction.

12. Ersatz.

12. Integration.

Zum Datum des Inkrafttretens ersetzt dieser Vertrag alle vorherigen
Kontrollwechselverträge oder ähnliche mündliche oder schriftliche Verträge oder
Absprachen zwischen dem Geschäftsführer und der Gesellschaft oder ihren
Konzerngesellschaften in Bezug auf die hierin behandelten Angelegenheiten. Soweit
die Bestimmungen von Urkunden über die Gewährung von

As of the Effective Date, this Agreement supersedes and replaces any prior change in
control agreement or similar oral or written agreements or understandings between
Executive and the Company or its affiliates in respect of the matters addressed
hereby. To the extent the terms or conditions of any equity award grant instrument
conflict with the terms of this Agreement, the terms of this
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Optionszuteilungen den Bestimmungen dieses Vertrages entgegenstehen, sind die
Bestimmungen dieses Vertrags maßgebend. Im Falle von Widersprüchen und zur
Vermeidung von Missverständnissen ersetzen die Bestimmungen dieses Vertrages
die Bestimmungen des speziellen „Performance Based Unit Award Agreement“
zwischen der Gesellschaft und dem Geschäftsführer vom 16. Mai 2013 (der „MaiPBU-Vertrag”), des speziellen „Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement“ zwischen
der Gesellschaft und dem Geschäftsführer vom 3. Dezember 2012 und des speziellen
„Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement“ zwischen der Gesellschaft und dem
Geschäftsführer vom 16. Mai 2013; in jedem Fall ungeachtet der Tatsache, dass
jeder dieser Verträge ausdrücklich gegenteilige Bestimmungen enthalten kann (zum
Beispiel insbesondere der Artikel 9 des Mai-PBU-Vertrags), die die Parteien
ausdrücklich vereinbart haben.

Agreement shall govern. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event of conflict, the
terms of this Agreement shall supersede the terms of that certain Performance Based
Unit Award Agreement by and between Company and Executive, dated May 16,
2013 (the “May PBU Agreement”); that certain Restricted Stock Unit Award
Agreement by and between Company and Executive, dated December 3, 2012; and
that certain Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement between Company and
Executive, dated May 16, 2013; in each case, notwithstanding the fact that any such
agreement may contain terms expressly to the contrary (for example, including, but
not limited to, Section 9 of the May PBU Agreement), the parties having expressly
agreed.

13. Änderungen.

13. Amendment.

Änderungen dieses Vertrages bedürfen der Schriftform und sind von beiden Parteien
oder deren jeweiligen Rechtsnachfolgern oder rechtlichen Vertretern zu
unterzeichnen.

This Agreement may not be amended or modified otherwise than by a written
agreement executed by the parties hereto or their respective successors and legal
representatives.

14. Salvatorische Klausel.

14. Severability.

Sollte eine Bestimmung dieses Vertrags unwirksam oder undurchführbar sein, so
wird die Gültigkeit oder Durchführbarkeit der übrigen Bestimmungen dieses
Vertrages dadurch nicht berührt.

The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect
the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement.
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15. Einbehaltung von Steuern.

15. Withholding.

Die Gesellschaft ist berechtigt, gemäß den geltenden Gesetzen und Bestimmungen
für im Rahmen dieses Vertrags zu zahlende Beträge bundesstaatliche, staatliche,
lokale oder ausländische Steuern einzubehalten.

The Company may withhold from any amounts payable under this Agreement such
federal, state, local or foreign taxes as shall be required to be withheld pursuant to
any applicable law or regulation.

16. Geltendes Recht.

16. Governing Law.

Maßgebend für diesen Vertrag sind die Gesetze des US-Bundesstaates Indiana ohne
Berücksichtigung der Grundsätze der Kollisionsnormen.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of Indiana without reference to principles of conflict of laws.

17. Anwaltskosten.

17. Attorney’s Fees.

Sollte es in Verbindung mit diesem Vertrag zu rechtlichen Verfahren
(Schiedsgericht, Prozess, Berufung) kommen, hat jede Partei ihre eigenen Kosten
einschließlich der Anwaltskosten zu tragen.

If any legal proceeding (whether in arbitration, at trial or on appeal) is brought under
or in connection with this Agreement, each party shall pay its own expenses,
including attorneys’ fees.

18. Laufzeit des Vertrags.

18. Term of Agreement.

Dieser Vertrag hat eine Laufzeit von einem Jahr, beginnend mit dem Datum des
Vertrags, mit der Maßgabe, dass der Vertrag automatisch am Jahrestag des Vertrags
fortlaufend für jeweils ein Jahr verlängert wird, es sei denn die Gesellschaft teilt dem
Geschäftsführer mindestens 30 Tage vor dem planmäßigen Beendigungsdatum die
Nichtverlängerung mit, und mit der weiteren Maßgabe, dass dieser Vertrag,
ungeachtet des Vorstehenden, (i) nicht vor Ablauf von drei Jahren nach einem
Kontrollwechsel oder während eines Zeitraums, in dem ein Geschäft, das zu einem
Kontrollwechsel führen würde, noch in der Schwebe ist oder im Board of Directors
in der Diskussion steht, beendet wird, und dass (ii) Artikel 6 nach der Beendigung
weiter gilt. Die Beendigung dieses Vertrags darf keine

The term of this Agreement shall be one year commencing on the date hereof;
provided however, that this Agreement shall be automatically renewed for successive
one-year terms commencing on each anniversary of the date of this Agreement unless
the Company shall have given notice of non-renewal to Executive at least 30 days
prior to the scheduled termination date; and further provided that notwithstanding the
foregoing, (i) this Agreement shall not terminate within three years after a Change in
Control, or during any period of time when a transaction which would result in a
Change in Control is pending or under consideration by the Board, and (ii) Section 6
hereof shall survive termination. The termination of this Agreement shall not
adversely affect any
22

nachteiligen Auswirkungen auf die Rechte haben, die der Geschäftsführer vor der
Beendigung erworben hat.

rights to which Executive has become entitled prior to such termination.

19. Vertragssprache.

19. Contract Language

Die für diesen Vertrag maßgebliche und rechtlich bindende Sprache ist Englisch.

The relevant and legally binding language for this Agreement is English.

[Rest der Seite absichtlich leer gelassen]

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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Zu Urkund dessen haben die Vertragsparteien diesen Vertrag mit Wirkung zu dem
am Anfang dieses Vertrages genannten Datum unterzeichnet und übergeben.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be
executed and delivered as of the day and year first above set forth.

HILLENBRAND, INC.
Von/By:

/S/ Joe A. Raver

Name:

Joe A. Raver

Titel:

Senior Vice President

GESCHÄFTSFÜHRER/EXECUTIVE:
Von/By:

/S/ Thomas Kehl
Thomas Kehl
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Exhibit 21.1
HILLENBRAND, INC.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
All subsidiaries of the Company are Indiana companies, unless otherwise noted.
Subsidiaries of Hillenbrand, Inc.
Batesville Services, Inc.
Process Equipment Group, Inc., a New Jersey corporation
Subsidiaries of Batesville Services, Inc.
Batesville Casket Company, Inc.
Batesville Interactive, Inc.
Batesville Logistics, Inc.
Batesville Manufacturing, Inc.
Batesville Casket de Mexico, S.A. de C.V., a Mexican company
Acorn Development Group, Inc.
BCC JAWACDAH Holdings, LLC
BV Acquisition, Inc.
HMIS, Inc., a New Hampshire corporation
The Forethought Group, Inc.
MCP, Inc.
WCP, Inc.
Jointly owned by Batesville Services, Inc. and K-Tron Investment Co.
Hillenbrand International Holding Corporation
Subsidiary of Batesville Casket Company, Inc.
NorthStar Industries, LLC
Subsidiary of Coperion Capital GmbH
Coperion GmbH, a German company
Subsidiary of Coperion Corporation
Coperion de Mexico, S. De R.L. De C.V., a Mexican company
Subsidiary of Coperion GmbH
Coperion AB., a Swedish company
Coperion International Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd., a Chinese company
Coperion K.K., a Japanese company
Coperion Ltd., a UK company
Coperion Machinery & Systems (Shanghai) Co. Ltd., a Chinese company
Coperion (Nanjing) Machinery Co., Ltd., a Chinese company
Coperion Pte. Ltd., a Singapore company
Coperion S.a.r.l., a French company
Coperion S.L., a Spanish company
Coperion S.r.l., an Italian company
OOO “Coperion”, a Russian company
Coperion Ltda., a Brazilian company
Jointly owned by Coperion GmbH and Coperion Capital GmbH
Coperion N.V., a Belgium company
Subsidiary of Hillenbrand Germany Holding GmbH
Coperion Capital GmbH, a German company
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Subsidiary of Hillenbrand International Holding Corporation
Hillenbrand Luxembourg S.à.r.l., a Luxembourg company
Subsidiary of Hillenbrand Switzerland GmbH
Hillenbrand Germany Finance LLC & Co. KG, a German partnership
Hillenbrand Germany Holding GmbH, a German company
K-Tron (Schweiz) GmbH, a Swiss company
Jointly owned by Hillenbrand Switzerland GmbH and K-Tron (Schweiz) GmbH
TerraSource Global CIS Limited Liability Company, a Russian company

Subsidiary of BC Canada Company, ULC
Batesville Canada Ltd., a Canadian company
Subsidiary of Batesville Holding UK Limited
Batesville Casket UK Limited, a UK company
Subsidiary of Batesville Casket de Mexico, S.A. de C.V.
Industrias Arga, S.A. de C.V., a Mexican company
Subsidiaries of Hillenbrand Luxembourg S.à.r.l.
Batesville Holding UK, Limited, a UK company
Hillenbrand Switzerland GmbH, a Swiss company — d/b/a Hillenbrand Switzerland GmbH — US Finance Branch (State of Indiana)
Green Tree Manufacturing, LLC
Modern Wood Products, LLC
Jointly owned by Green Tree Manufacturing, LLC, and Modern Wood Products, LLC
Global Products Co., S.A. de C.V., a Mexican company
Jointly owned by MCP, Inc. and WCP, Inc.
NADCO, S.A. de C.V., a Mexican company
Subsidiaries of Process Equipment Group, Inc.
Coperion Corporation, a Delaware corporation
K-Tron Investment Co., a Delaware corporation
K-Tron Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation
Rotex Global, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Subsidiaries of K-Tron Investment Co.
K-Tron America, Inc., a Delaware corporation
TerraSource Global Corporation, a Delaware corporation
Premier Pneumatics, Inc., a Delaware corporation
Subsidiaries of K-Tron (Schweiz) GmbH
BC Canada Company, ULC, a Canada company
TerraSource Global (Beijing) Co., Ltd., a Chinese company
Hillenbrand Europe, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Coperion K-Tron Asia Pte Ltd, a Singapore company
K-Tron China Limited, a Hong Kong company
K-Tron Deutschland GmbH, a German company
Coperion K-Tron Great Britain Limited, a UK company
K-Tron (Shanghai) Co. Ltd., a Chinese FICE
K-Tron France S.à.r.l., a French company
Rotex Global (Hong Kong) Limited., a Hong Kong company
Rotex Europe Ltd., a UK company
Wuxi K-Tron Colormax Machinery Co., Ltd., a Chinese company
Wuxi Process Equipment Manufacturing Co., Ltd., a Chinese company
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Subsidiary of TerraSource Global Corporation
Jeffrey Rader Corporation, a Delaware corporation - d/b/a TerraSource Global (State of Oregon)
Subsidiaries of Jeffrey Rader Corporation
Jeffrey Rader AB, a Swedish company
RC II, Inc., a Georgia corporation
Subsidiary of RC II, Inc.
Jeffrey Rader Canada Company, a Canadian company
Subsidiaries of K-Tron America, Inc.
K-Tron Colormax Limited, a UK company
K-Tron PCS Limited, a UK company
Subsidiary of Rotex Europe Ltd.
Rotex Japan Limited, a UK company
Subsidiary of Coperion K-Tron Asia Pte Ltd:

PEG Process Equipment India LLP, an Indian partnership
Joint Ventures of Coperion GmbH
Coperion Ideal Ptd. Ltd., an Indian company
Coperion Middle East Co. Ltd., a Saudi Arabia company
PELL-TEC, Pelletizing Technology GmbH, a German company
Weicom S.r.l., an Italian company
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Forms S-8 (Nos. 333-149893 and 333-167508) of Hillenbrand, Inc. of our report dated
November 25, 2013, relating to the financial statements, financial statement schedule, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this
Form 10-K.
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Indianapolis, Indiana
November 25, 2013
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Joe A. Raver, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Hillenbrand, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the periods covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;
b)

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b)

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 25, 2013
/s/ Joe A. Raver
Joe A. Raver
President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Cynthia L. Lucchese certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Hillenbrand, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the periods covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a.) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;
b.) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;
c.) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d.) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b)

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 25, 2013
/s/ Cynthia L. Lucchese
Cynthia L. Lucchese
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Hillenbrand, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending September 30, 2013, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Joe A. Raver, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
/s/ Joe A. Raver
Joe A. Raver
President and Chief Executive Officer
November 25, 2013
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Hillenbrand, Inc. and will be retained by Hillenbrand, Inc. and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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EXHIBIT 32.2
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Hillenbrand, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending September 30, 2013, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Cynthia L. Lucchese, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
/s/ Cynthia L. Lucchese
Cynthia L. Lucchese
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
November 25, 2013
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Hillenbrand, Inc. and will be retained by Hillenbrand, Inc. and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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